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This report and Accounts is for the Glos Cymru
Groyp During March 2016, as stoted shove
and explolned in detad loter in the repor, the
existing holding company re-registerad os Glas
Cymiw Anghyfngedig (on unlimited company}
fallgwing the creation of o maw halding
company Glos Cymiu Holdings Cyfyngedig a
nat for prafit company kmded by guoroniaa

This Is thae Report ond Accounts for the Glas
Group wnder Glas Cymiu Cyfyngedig which is
now registered o% Glas Cyrmre Anghyfyngedig
Raferences to Wetsh Water ore fo the frading
narme for Dwt Cymne Cyfyngedig which s

the bcensed statutory woter ond sewerage
undartoker ond o 100% owned subskiiary of
Glas Cyrmru Angtyfimgedg




CHAIRMAN'S WELCOME

Just fifteen years ago Terry Burns (my predecessor as chairman), Nigel Annett
and Chris Jones, created Glas Cymru, o company hmited by guarontee, borrowed
£19 billion on the London capital markets to buy Dvr Cyrriru Welsh Water out of
the wreckoge of the Hyder Group and, mprobably, succeeded in doing so under
the nose of aggressive competitors Unusually, they did not do so for therr personal
benefit but so that Welsh Water could be managed in the future solely for the
benefit of Its customers, an 1dea that was regarded sceptically by many, including
perhops by some custorners themselves

At the tirme of the acquisithon

the company’s gearing was 93%,
so there was very liftle financial
leeway, ond operating performance
was relotively poor Nine years later,
six years ogo, | inhented from

Terry a much improved business,
finonciolly stronger with gearing

in the 70% range and operatonally
better against Welsh Water's
histoncal best performance

But our customer charges were

stili relotively high and our operchng
performance, against our peers,
not yet where it should be

Our ambihon was to improve
from there and delver even better
outcomes for our customers

Last year | reported our best yeor
since the buy-out and now | am
glad to say we have done better
than that We now ronk towards
the top of industry league tables
on most {though not yet all) of
the measures that matter to our
customers and for our environment

But we also intended to show
that the 'Glas’ model really did work
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for customers and, | believe,
there 1s now no doubt that it does

QOur Members do not receve
dmadends and their only inferest

1s the selfless one of overseeing

the performonce of Welsh Water
and holding the Boord to account
Glas Cyrnru’s business is focussed
on awning, financing ond rmanaging
Welsh Water in the interests of
Welsh Water's customers, both
today's and future generctions

We finonce Welsh Water's

£25 billion network of long Iife
assets and continuing large
capital investrment progromme
through long term, low nsk bonds
ond other largely fixed interest
debt instruments And finoncing
efficiency 1s @ big advantage
Glas’s reserves now stand ot

£2 billlon and our geanng ratio

1s now around 57% with the best
credit ratings n the UK utlities
sector With our £17 billion caprtal
investment pregramme to 2020,
we will continue to support some
6,000 obs in the Welsh economy

This strong finoncial position has
allowed us to do much more for

our customers than would have
otherwise been possible In the past
we poid custormer dwidends to limit
the impact of nsing customer bills
But with Welsh Water's customer
bulls falling by 10% on average n real
terms between 2010 and 2016 the
Board has this year again decided
that our customers' interests are
best served by accelerating future
planned investment to improve the
relhobility and quality of our service
to customers At the same time we
hove helped a record number of
custormers who find 1t difficult to pay
ther bills As in previous years, all
the profits we hove made hove been
reinvested in the business for the
benefit of our customers

While the Board 15 pleased with

this progress, we have set targets
for our bustness which expect huigher
standards shll and which will ensure
that we meet the expectations and
prnorhes of our custormers, which
determined our plan for this AMP
up to 2020

STRATEGIC REVIEW 3




IMAGE REMOVED




o

| would like fo thank
Members for the
significont role they
continue fo play os
‘critical friends' of the
company as they
form a key part of our
system of governance

)
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Qur ability to deliver the best
outcomes for our customers—and

in porheular to accelerate capital
investment while custorner bills

are fallting n reol terms—depends
cruoially on a conhnuing stable
regulatory environrment We have
been able to raise bond finance for
capital iInvestment for up to

50 years of very aHractive interest
rates because we can persuade long-
terrm investors that our company and
our ndustry are fow nsk At a time of
contnutng uncertainty—when investors
are looking for a “sofe home'"—
maintaining the atiractveness of
waoter companies as an investment
has never been more impaortant

We are therefore pleased that both
the UK and Welsh Governments
rematn commuitted fo the stability

of the current regulatory model

The Board also conhinues to place
great store 1n ensuring that Welsh
Water meets all its obligations to s
economic, environmental and water
quality regulators and acts in on open
and fransparent manner so that we
can retain the trust and confidence
of our customers

On the basis of our strong financial
posihon the Board, earlier this year,
proposed to the company’s members
a change 1n the governance structure
to create a new holding company for
the Group {Glas Cyrmnu Holdings Cyf)
ond o aliow for the group to invest
up to £100 million 1n water industry
reloted services ond businesses as
more competihon 1s permitied by
regulators After a very well informed
debate this was opproved by
Members and consented to by
bond-holders in February 2016

and came intc effect in March

| would like to thank all our Members
for the significant role they continue
to play and contnbution they make as
'critical frends’ of the company as o
key part of our systern of governance

It hos been an enarmous pavilege

to have served as Charman of this
company and | am sod to be rehnng
but | am pleased that my colleagues
on the board have selected Alastarr
Lyons as my successor Subyect

to the vote of Members, he will be
taking over as Chairmon immediately
after the AGM in July 2016 | have

no doubf that Alastarr will oversee
conhinuing success

| would like to thank all my colleagues
on the Board (past and present) for
the support they have gven me over
the past six years and for all they

do in the service of the company

I would like to thank Jomes Strachon,
who stepped down as a Director

at the AGM 1n July 2015 after

eight years of service, lotterly

as Charr of the Remuneration
Committee This year we have

also welcomed Joanne Kennck

as a Non-Executive Director

Finally, but most impoertantty,

| thank all the employees both

of Welsh Water tself and of our
contract partners Their unwavering
commitment and enthusiasm in
always puthing our custormers first s
the essenhal ingredient of our success
and the way they have responded

to many challenges throughout the
year, especially dunng some extreme
weather conditions and emergency
incidents, fo mantan services and
protect the environment 1s both
oppreciated and nspinng

| arm therefore proud to report on
behalf of the Board that Glas Cymiru
remains 1n o very strong posifion

Qur finances are sound, we have the
nght monagement team in place,
our uncompromising focus 1s shil

on our core services of providing an
efficient ond high-quality customer
service and affordable prices, and our
plons up to 2020 and beyond are
ambitious but realistic | am proud

to have played o part in contnbuhng
to the Glas Cymru success and wish
everyone involved with company the
very best for the future as 1t strives

to become the industry-leader across
all fronts and push ot the boundanes
of what it means to be a truly
successful and custorner-led water
ond seweroge compaony In the twenty
first century

Rt A

Robert Ayling
Choirmon

3 June 2016
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

| am pleased to report that the past 12 months has continued
to be a penod of very good progress here at Welsh Water as we
conhinue to work fowards achieving our single, clear vision for the
business which 1s to ‘eamn the trust of our custorers every day'
Whilst we have delivered industry leading levels of service in some
areas, we also recognise that we need to improve in other areos
so that we can ensure that all our customers receve the best
possible service at all imes

This s why we're continuing to benchmark ourselves against the
best companies In terms of customer service and rolling out
our Customer-led Success initiative This will help drve @ more
custorer-led culture internally and enable us to use improved
customer insight to drive further service Improvernent
As a company owned on behalf of the three million people It serves
and run solely for therr benefit, we are determined to meet the
increased customer expectations and prionties of our custormers




CUSTOMERS

Overall, we have delvered a good
level of customer service over the
past 12 months which hos been
borne out by the fact thot we
secured second place In Ofwot's
Customer Sohsfachon Survey
league table for 2015-16, compared
to the other water and sewerage
companies This follows findings
published by the UK's Institute of
Customer Service in July 2015
which placed Welsh Water as the
best woter and sewerage company
in England and Wales in terms of
cusfomer sahsfachon and customer
trust Nonetheless, whilst we stil]
receive more written compliments
than complaints in our Water and
Woaostewater Business Units, we
experienced a substantial Increase
in the total number of written
complaints receved from our
customers in 2015-16 This increose
was portially offset by a reduction in
telephone complaints ond s mainly
ohnbutable to the implementation
of our new billing system durning

the course of the year resuthing

in administrative errors, affechng
customers' payment arrangements
We have corrected these errors

and apologised to the custormers
affected, whilst we continue to
address the underying couses

so that, n the longer ferm, our
customers will see the full benefits
from this billing system

With levels of bad debt for this

yeor slightly lower than last yeor at
£27 million, our focus next year will
be pursuing this debt as covering
the cost of those custormers who do
not pay means that we need to add
around £20 extra on customers'
annual bills However, this will not
detract in any way from the work we
do in promoating our tanffs to help
those customers in circumstances
which make them winerable With
nearly 55,000 customers already
recemng help fo poy therr woter
bills, our research shows that 75%
of the wider customer-base support
our plans to increase this

10 100,000 by 2020—but only

if this s supported by increased
efforts to recover debt from those
customers who are refusing or
avoiding paying therr bills
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COMPLIANCE

Over the past 12 months, we
have delivered our best ever
overall performance against the
complonce measures used to
ensure that we are doing a good
Job i protecting public health
and enhancing our natural
environment This s highlighted
by the continuing high quality of
our drinking water, with 9998%
of tests in 2015 being passed

We sthll recognise that we need
to iImprove our performance mn
some areas of our drinking water
network, especially cround key
measures such as interruphions
fo supply and customers
contachng us about the colour,
odour and taste of theirr water
supplies Some of these 1ssues
hove been caused by operational
incidents which are beyond

our control, but we are now
starting a major investment
programme, informed by a better
understanding of our network
through hydraulic monitoring
and modelling {as outlined on
page 29), so that we can ensure
that all custormers recewe the
service they expect and deserve

In terms of our wastewater
services, this has seen our

very good performance in areas
such as infernal sewer flocoding
and polluton, where we have
equalled our best year ever

with only two pollution incidents
deemed ‘senous’ by Natural
Resource Wales' categonsation
This has been achieved whilst
the self-reporting of pollution
incidents was ot its highest level
ever at nearly 74%, moving us
to the upper end of the industry
‘league table'

We continue to work hard and
build our relationships with the
company's key regulofors
all areas

COST AND BILLS

At £17 billion over the five years
unhl 2020, this penod will see
our lorgest ever investment

to mantain and improve an
extensive network of assets

We know that it 1s important that
we continue to deliver real value
for money for our customers
and build on our track record

so that bills remain affordable
{o customers We ore pleased
therefore that we kept the annual
price increase for 2016-17 below
the rate of RPI inflation for the
seventh consecutive year and
we now remain the only water
and sewerage company In
England and Wales on track

to deliver o decade of below

RPI inflation prices by 2020

All thus 1s driven by our strong
balance sheet and unique
awnershup model which means
that we can not only do much
more for custormers than would
otherwise be possible but we can
take a longer-term perspective
n investing to deliver our wision
for the benefit of future, os well
as current, customers We are
considenng how best to use the
£32 millon of 'value' which our
unique structure has created
this year for the benefit of our
customers

In order to help inform the
Board's future decisions about
how this source of funding s
used, we will be engaging with
customers over the summer of
2016 to ask them for therr views
on how such value should best
be returned and what Is the nght
balance between options such
as lower bills, support for those
struggling to pay, environmental
or commurnity projects and
improvernents o services for
those facing repeat problems
such as discoloured water or low
water pressure
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COMMUNITY

We know the responsibility thot

we hove to ensure our investment
supports the communities we
serve ond the environment arcund
us, whilst also faalitating economic
development and growth

We are therefore pleased that our
Developer Services Team topped
Water UK's new national league
table for measuring performance
of new connechions to our dnnking
water and wastewater networks

Qur services are now mnformed

by direct feedback from our
customers through platforms
such the 15th Developers’ Forum
that was held in September
2015, with over 100 attendees
from the house builders and
developers in our area and we
welcome the fact that we became
a statutory consultee for plonring
applications in Wales in

March 2016

We cre olso pleased to have
played a key part in early 2016
1n securing the 999 yeor lease
of Lisvane and Llanishen
reservoirs 1In Cardiff and
safeguarding what 1s o much
valued asset for us and the local
comrmunity This acquisition will
help strengthen the resilence

of the water supply we provide
to custormners in the copital city
but also offers us an opportunity
1o work with local residents to
develop o community faciity
that builds on the great success
of our £2 5 millien Visitor and
Watersports Centre ot our
Llandegfedd reservorr, Pontypool,
which was officiolly opened in
March 2016

LONG-TERM

As we have no shareholders,
our sale focus remains on
rmoking decistons that benefit
our customers - both now and
for future generations Qur
custormers drive our thinking and
our plans aond we welcome the
important contnbution made by
our Customer Challenge Group
in chollenging our customer
engagernent ond research
programme to ensure that we
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deliver the best possible outcomes
for customers | would hke to
thank Diane McCrea as Charr for
her excellent stewardship of this
ndependent forurm over the post
three years and look forward to
working with her successor,

Peter Davies, who was oppointed
Chair 1n February 2016

To help us meet the changing
needs and expectahons of
customers and manoge the wider
challenges facing our industry,
such as climate change, we know
thot we will need to innovate and
think differently about how we
provide our services This 1s why
we are looking beyond the UK and
forging best prachce partnerships
with international counterparts at
the Donish Water and Wastewater
Assaciahion and Qasen
Drinkwater in the Netherlands

We also hosted our third annual
Innovation Conference in January
2016 which enabled us to bring
together Government, regulotors,
water industry experts, as well os
natonal and local companies, to
help us to advance our INnovation
agenda with inhatives such

as our RanScope scheme for
sustainable urbon drainoge

This oward winning approach uses
green infrastructure in Llanell
and Gowerton to remove surface
water from our sewers and helps
reduce the nisk of local sewer
flocoding It wos a pleasure to
welcorme HRH Prince Charles to
Llanell in February this year to
demonstrate how this approach
15 moking o posihve difference to
the communihes that we serve
and the wider environment

COLLEAGUES

Finally, we could not have
achieved any of the progress
that has been moade without
the dedicaton and enthusiasm
of our colleagues They are

the foundation of our success
This has been proven time and
hme agon over the past 12
months with some of the most
extreme weather condhons and
an unprecedented number of
incidents such as significont
burst water mains and nsks te

water supply such as ol spills ond
changing raw water conditions

We operate in o potentially
dangerous environment and so we
take our responsibilihes to protect
our colleagues, our contraciors
and our customers extremely
senously ond conhnue to embed
a strong health, safety and welfare
culture i all our operations by
providing strong leadership, sound
engogement, bullding confidence
and measuring performance

As part of our latest annual
Ernployee Engogement Survey

in Novemnber, it wos therefore
pleasing that 93% of Welsh Water
colleagues recagnised that the
company tokes Health ond Sofety
seriously

Everyone in Welsh Water 15
involved In our plan to deliver
Custormer-led Success which we
are confident will enable us to
become even more customer
focussed acrass all aspects of
our business aver coming years
With 90% of colleagues already
recognising that Welsh Water
puts its customners first, thus beliaf
1s driving o change mn culture
that will ensure that we achieve
our vision to earn the trust of cur
customers every day

Finally, | would like to thank
Robert Ayling for his enormous
contnbution to the company over
eight years as o Non-Executive
Director, six of them as Chairman
of the Board We will greotly miss
his contribution In supporting
and effectively challenging

the monagement team duning

a perncd of significant change
for the Group We look to
welcoming his successor, Alastarr
Lyons, whose appomntment as
Non-Executive Chairman-elect
will be subject to Member
approval at the 2016 AGM

& A =

Chris Jones
Chtef Executive

3 June 2016
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OUR VISION

Because we provide the most essential
of public services our vision I1s
To earn the trust of our customers every day

One of the major advantages of our unique ownership model 1s that it allows
us to focus on this single, clear goal and to take a longer-term perspective
for the benefit of future, as well as current, customers

OUR STRATEGY

This vision 1s underpinned by a clear strotegy which we believe wilt help us deliver the
best possible service fo our customers over the next five years af the most affordable
price whilst also responding to the changing external environment

The key elements of cur strategy are

To be the best in To seek profitable To promote our To be recognised
our core business which opportunities for any achievernents to ensure os a truly innovatve
15 fo provide water commerciol services that custormers and company In how we
ond wastewater which will help us stokeholders are aware provide our services
services to over three deliver more value to of who we are, what we ond engage with
rmillion people our customers do ond how we do # customers
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WHAT WE DO

We provide a
safe, reliable and
affordable water

We do this by abstraching, treating

supply
and distnbuting high quality deaking
woter to the three million pecple that We also collect,
rely on our essentiol service treat ond sofely
dispose of

wastewater whilst
profecting public

We serve most of
Wales, Herefordshire health and the
and parts of Deeside environment
around us

i

: We use part of the

- wastewater process to

generate power that I1s used
to run some of our sites

But there's
more to the

Every penny we
make 15 retained
In the business to

help keep bills down,
IMprove our services
and protect the
environment

Welsh Water 15 different from We think it's a much better
other water companies way of providing the most
We don’t have shareholders essenhal of pubiic services
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WHERE DOES YOUR MONEY GO?

Day to day
maintenance work
Operational cost of
providing water and
wastewater services

Added value for customers

Money retained within
the businass to help fund
further investment and
benefits for custormers
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Where each
£1 of your bill goes

Investment work
Cost of investing in cur
network assets such as
water treatment works

water mains, sewers etc

Qur people
Salories, benefits
and pensions

Tox and government
Business rates,
abstraction charges,
national insurance, etc
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THE VALUE WE BRING

BEING A GOOD NEIGHBOUR
With a record £17 billion capital
mnvestrment programme planned
between 2015-2020, we know that
our achivities, including maintaining
ond repamng our assets and
networks, can cause disturbances
or disruption to local communities

We plan every scheme thoroughly
to try and ensure thot this s
minimised and this includes working
with our construction partners,

local authorities, highways agency,
environmental and archaeological
organisations, households and
businesses to find the best solution
We have completed 175 copital
investrment schermes in 2015-16

In communities across Wales,
Herefordshire and Deeside investing
£116 mithon n our water services
and £136 million 1n cur wastewater
services

We're also doing more than ever
to keep residents and communities
informed about work in their areq
through information events, drop

in sessions, door knocking and
rmeetings with local interest groups
In 2015-16, we hosted over

50 inforrmation events and drop-in
sessions for our customers, sending
125,000 letters and over 600,000
texts to warn thern obout our
planned and emergency work

We try to ensure that we are open
and heonest n every one of the million
calls we receive a year and the 3,600
website contacts every day
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SUPPORTING CUSTOMERS WHO STRUGGLE TO PAY
THEIR BILLS

Qur unigue not-for-profit model means that we con do more for our
customers and this I1s why we already help nearly 55000 custormers
through our different social tanffs, more than any other water company
However, we want to help even further and have increcsed the annual
household inceme threshold on our Helpl tariff from £12,500

to £15,000

ALWAYS PUTTING CUSTOMERS FIRST

Whilst we will always try do our best for our custormers, it's important
that our plans are scrutinised and challenged by others

In 2015, we decided fo place the Customer Challenge Group

on a permanent focting In early 2016 This independent forum,
which played a key role in advising and challenging us on how

we engaged with customers as we developed our most challenging
business plan yet The Group will continue to play an important role
in chollenging our customer research pregramme to ensure we
deliver the best possible outcomes for customers

CUSTOMERS

We work with customers in local communities so that they can help
us deliver improved services for everyone These behawvioural change
campaigns mnclude

Let's Stop the Block

Sewer blockages caused by the wrong things being flushed down
the toilet or poured down the kitchen sink cost our business around
£7 millien every year These can flood homes and pollute locat
streamns The award winning Let's Stop the Block campaign
chaollenges customers to think before they flush This includes

a film (Looloos nightclub) featuring troublesome characters that
cause blockages and has receved over 100,000 YouTube views

Love Dwr

Asking our customers to reduce ther water usage I1s a very difficult
task here in Woles It rains o lot and people don't often consider how
each drop needs to be treated and pumped to homes and businesses,
and then cleoned and pumped again affer they've used it Love Dvr
begins the task of encouraging customers to enjoy using tap water,
but not waste it
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Reservoir Safety

Qur reservoirs are great ploces
to enjoy orgonssed actvities but
all too often people are tempted
to risk toking o swim which can
lead to tragic consequences
Qur annuol Reservorr Safety
campaign highlights the
hidden dangers of reserverrs,
with freezing cold deep water,
underwater machinery and
strong currents all mean that
these reservorrs are dangerous!

Summer shows

Every summer, we take our
compaigns on the road, going
to national events such the Royal
Welsh Show, National and Urdd
Eisteddfods and Hay Festival to
reach arcund 15,000 customers
in a fun and innovative way

FUTURE CUSTOMERS

We know we have a part to play
in helping our future customers
understand how they con help
use water efficiently and protect
the environment

Discovery Centres

We have four Discovery Centres
(see page 100) visited by over
14,000 chiidren every year

They offer o range of fun,
prachcal activities so children
and families can expenence the
world of water at first hand, whilst
focusing on Welsh Water's key
responsibilines to provide high
qualty water supply and toke
away wostewater and return it to
the environment safely

Our outreach progromme
nvolves our four Welsh Water
teachers i visitng primary
and secondary schools across
our operating area to delver
assemblies and workshops on
campaigns to around 31000
pupils every year

We've also lounched o dedicated
website as a resource tool

for the Welsh Boccalaureate
which focusses on helping

young people develop o range
of transferable skills which
businesses are looking for

it helps showcase our
campaigns, promotes career
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ophons avallable 1n cur industry
and prepeores the future
workforce with the skills required
in the workplace

Working with young people

Our work with the 'Business
Class' programme enables

us to work with young people

to improve their understanding
of the world of work, their
awareness of career choices
and employability skills as well
as raising their expectotions
Stnce 2013, we have been
working with Bishop Hedley
Cathalic School in Merthyr Tydfil
supporting pupils with mentonng
sassions, tips for writing their CVs,
and supporting teachers with
leadership workshops We are
helping the Welsh Government
roll this scheme out further from
2016 by Increasing our support
for schools in other target areas

We are proud to support The
Prince's Trust which helps young
and disadvantaged people in
Woales work towards securing
employment and a better quality
of life Since 2010, 48 of our
trainees hove taken part in the
annual Millon Maker's Challenge
Wales This 1s o fundraising
challenge which sees feoms

of employees from companies
across the UK compehing to raise
at least £10,000 or more over a
peried of six menths To date, we
have raised just over £42,000

ACCESS AND RECREATION

We are the custodion of a
nahonaol asset in Wales—some
40,000 hectares, or 99,000
acres of scentc land thot 1s nch
in scenery and biodiversity

This land also offers significant
opportumity for public recreation
with around a millron visitors

a year vistting ane of our 17
major reservor sites where

we provide different sporfing,
recreational and leisure facihhes

In February 2016, we officially
opened our £2 5 milhion
recreahionc! site of Llondegfedd
Reservoir, Pontypoal offening
water sports, fishing and walking,

as well as a visitor centre

The site also offers salling
courses for wheelchair users and
other less able bodied custormers
ond I1s accredited as being
Cementia Friendly, which means
colleagues are trained and hove
faciittes to help visitors with
dementa and their carers

In July 2015, our 45000

acre Elan Vaolley Estate in the
Cambrian Mountains achieved
International Dark Sky Park
status and become the first
privately owned, but publicly
accessible park in the world

to do so

COLLEAGUES

We always encourage colleagues
who want to help others

As o business, we are proud

to suppart WaterAid This i1s
our nominated charity that
transforms lves by improving
occess to sofe water, hygiene
and sanitation in the world's
poorest communities With the
support of many colleague
volunteers, partners and
supplers across the business,
our colleagues and customers
have now raised over £4 milion
for WaterAid since 2001
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MEET OUR BOARD

IMAGE REMOVED

Stonding left to dght Pater Perry, Peter Bridgewater, John Warmman, Robert Ayling, Groham Edwards, Professor Stephen Palmer, Chris Jones
Seated left to right- Joanne Kenrick, Menna Richards, Anna Walker (Alostarr Lyons joined the Board on 1 May 2016)




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Robert Ayling
Chowrman

Peter Bridgewater
Finance and Commerciol Director

Groham Edwards
Non-Executive Director

Chris Jones
Chief Executive

Joanne Kennck
Non-Executive Director
(oppointed with effect from November 2015)

Professor Stephen Palmer
Non-Executive Director

Peter Parry
Chief Operating Officer

Menna Richards
Senor Independent Director

James Strachan
Non-Executive Director
{stepped down m July 2015)

Anna Walker
Non-Executive Director

John Warren
Non-Execuhve Director  +

Alastair Lyons

Non-Executive Director

(joined the Boards of Glas Cymru {Holdings)
Cyfyngedig and Dr Cymru Cyfyngedig

on 1 May 2016}
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OUR INDUSTRY AND REGULATORS

The water and wastewater industry in England and Wales must comply with
substanhial domestic and European Union regulation, placing significant statutory
obligations on woter and wastewater componies with regard to, among other
factors, the quality of drinking water supplied, wastewater treatment; the effects of
our activities on the natural environment, the levels of services we provide ond the
bilingual choice we offer to customers who wish 1o communicate with us

The Health and Safety Executive
The natienal Independent
regulator for work-related

health, safety and illness

€) hse govuk

The Welsh Government

Sets the fromework for public
policy matters for Wales, including
policy and legislahon on water and
environrmental matters

€ wales govuk

Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs

The UK Government departrment
responsible for wastewater policy
in relahon to Wales

€ gov uk/defra

Ofwat

Our economic regulator exists

to ensure that water companies
provide o good quality sernice

at a farr price |t sets price imits
for customer bills to ensure that
they are no higher than they need
fo be It assesses the operatng
costs and investment we need to
rmaintain our network of assets
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QOur regulators include

to meet required standards and
delver high quality servces to
custorners Ofwat promotes

the interests of customers by
incentivising efficiency and good
service ond penalising inefficiency
ond poor service

€ ofwatgovuk

Dnnking Water Inspectorate
Dnnking water quality 1s regulated
and monttored by the Dnnking
Water lnspectorote

€ dwi govuk

The Consumer Council for Water
An independent body estabhshed
to represent the interests of
customers relating to price, service
and value for money it also
mwveshgates customer complaints
about water quality

o cewaterorg vk

WATRS

The independent adjudicator

for disputes between customers
and the water and sewerage
companies of England and Woles

© watrs org

Natural Resources Wales
Environment Agency

Qur environmental performance,
especially the way we abstract
water from nivers and reservorrs
and then dischorge wastewater
after it has been cleaned, 1s
reguloted by Natural Resources
Woales and the Environment
Agency They oversee our
management of designated
sites for nature conservation and
how we meet our obfigahons to
conserve and improve biodwersity
and our natural resources

€ naturalresources wales
€) govuk/ea

Welsh Laonguage Commissioner
The prnncipal oim of the Welsh
Language Comrrissioner I1s to
promaote and facilitate the use of
the Welsh longuage We subrmit
on annual comphance report

to the Commussioner’s office
detaling how we have complied
with the provisions of our statutory
Welsh Language Scheme which
outines how we prowide bilingual
services to our customers

©) comisiynyddygymroeg cymry
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY: 2015-16

To measure performance, the Glas Cymru Board set targets independently
for Welsh Water thot are based on industry benchmarks ond to judge where
we stand compared with the best performers in the sector

These targets are a combination of regulatory targets as agreed by the regulator Ofwat
in our Business Plan for 2015-20 and alse a number of additienal targets which make
up our overall Performance Scorecard

We have met nearly oll of the targets agreed with Cfwat in our Final Determmination with
the excephon of mean zonal compliance, custormer acceptability and treating wastewater
Full details of performance are included in our annual Performance Report, published in July

201516 Ofwat 01 SIM 82 a3 . M
Measures of Success 1415 15016  vs previous Torget met
yeor or faled
D2 At Risk Custormer Service 702 648 . M
Al Safety of Drinking Woter 9998 9998 . N/A
{% comphance)
D3 Properhes flooded 265 223 . M
Alb  Safety of Ennking Water 9994 9996 . F* 1n the year
{% Mean zonal comphonce}
D4a Businass Customer 9N 895 . N/A
A2  Customer occeptolulty 353 291 . F* Sansfacton (%)
" {eontocts p/1,000 pop)
D4ab  Non Household Custorner 895 es . M
A3 Relabiity of Supply 23 217 . M Sahsfachon (%}
D5 Earning the Trust 79 819 . M
81  Absirachon for water for 100 100 . M of Customers (%)
use .
. E1  Affordable Bills -3 -1 M
B2 Treatng wostewater 991 986 . F % befaw inflanon} .
B3a Preventing paltutions 22 w2 o N/A E2  Helpfor Dsadvantoged 49455 54845 @iy M
{oot 1,28:3) custormers
B3b Preventing pollutions nr 0 . M F1 Asset Serviceability Stchie  Stobla . M
{cat 3 only) (x4) (x4)
| €1 Responding to ckmote 1247 1531 . M F2  Leckage 180 80 . M
| change
|
€2  Carbon fostprint 60 a7 M F3  Assel Resience 838/ 868/ M
. Woter/Waste Water} 748 736 .

A definhion of each Meosure of Success can be found in Appendm 1 on page 151
*The final determunahion target

— safe drinking woter {mean zonol compliance) 9998%

— custormer acceptability 2 54%

— treahing wastewoter 100%
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OUR PERFORMANCE IN DETAIL: 2015-16

We conhnue to measure our performance year on year, and by
working with customers and stakeholders, we have identified the
eight essenticl outcomes that we need to achieve, if we are to be

a truly sustainoble business that con continue to earn the trust

of our customers 1n the decades o come

These eight outcomes feature consistently in our business
planning - both 1n the short and long-term

Each outcome 1s underpinned by several Measures of Success
that help us measure how we are performing so that we can
delver improving high qualty service and value for money for

customers, both now and for future generations




OUTCOME1

HIGH QUALITY DRINKING WATER
You will have complete confidence that
your dnnking water 1s safe, relable and
tastes good

OUTCOME 3
RESPONDING TO CLIMATE CHANGE

We will adopt our actvities to deal with the
potential effects of chmate change, whilst
reducing ocur own carbon footprnt

QUTCOME 5
CUSTOMER SERVICE

We will continue to provide our customers
with excellent customer service

OUTCOME 7
DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

We will develop a tearm of people who will
provide a great service to our customers

QUTCOME 2.
PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

We will safeguard o sustainable environment

that we are proud to hand on to future
generahons

QUTCOME 4:

AFFORDABLE BILLS

Qur services will represent good value for
money for our customers, with an effective
range of help for those struggling to pay

QUTCOME &

LOOKING AFTER OUR ASSETS
We will maintain our assets for future
generotions, at efficient cost

&

OUTCOME 8

AN EFFICIENT BUSINESS

We will continue to be an efficient business
with a strong credit rating
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OUTCOME 1.
HIGH QUALITY DRINKING WATER

YOU WILL HAVE
COMPLETE
CONFIDENCE
THAT YOUR
DRINKING
WATER IS SAFE,
RELIABLE AND
TASTES GOOD




6/

WATER TREATMENT WORKS

91

RESERVCIRS

2,500

KMS OF WATER MAINS

ARCUND

700,000

TESTS AYEAR IN TOTAL CARRIED
OUT ON WATER SUPPLIES

Highlights

In 2015, we invested £110 milhion
1n our water treatment works

and distnbution system so that
we could conhnue providing

a high standard of drinking water
to over three million customers
The water quality performance

in 2015 was our best ever in
terms of the total nurmber of
fallures with only 47 of the
238,393 somples taken faibng to
meet the required 41 standards
for parameters included in the
Water Supply (Water Quality)
Regulotions 2010 Wales

Fewer custorners contacted us
regarding the toste, odour and
appearance of their drinking
water reducing with 2 91 contacts
per 1,000 customers in 2015
compared to 353 in 2014,
although this remains an area

of focus for improvement for

the coming year

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOLINTS

Supplying over 800 million litres {(encugh to fill 320
Olympic size swimming pools) of high quality, clean tap
water to our custormers every day I1s our most iImportant
responsibility It 1s why we are here and we are proud

to make such a vital contribution to public health

lan Chnshe
Managing Director, Water Services

Challenges

We need to improve performance in terms of interruptions 1o supply,
ond over the post 12 months, we have had to manage several large
diameter, high pressure burst water mains which has adversely impacted
this measure, including, burst trunk water maoin in Pontypridd in July;
burst water mains in Llechryd in Pembrokeshire and Cross Keys near
Coerphilly 1n November and also in Trapp, Carmarthenshire in February
The safety of our people undertaking these repairs 1s always our

top prnonty and despite these chollenging incidents, our engineerng
innovation and use of temporary supplies meant that the average hime
customers were without water was 22 munutes, marginally better than
23 minutes 1n 2014 and hithng target

Looking Ahead

We know that strengthening the resilience of our drinking water

network is key, and in 2015, we secured planning permission to rebutld
Bryn Cowlyd Water Treatrment Works i the Conwy Valley, North Wales
This £30 million investment will be completed n 2018, will serve around
G0,000 customers and will be the biggest single investrnent in o water
treatment works duning this regulatory penocd In addition, we bought two
important reservoirs in Cardiff in early 2016 ond this will help us support
our water resource avallebility in the area for future population growth and
secure the reservoirs from future development for the people of Corchff
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+£80 MILLION
OF PIPE
IMPROVEMENTS
OVER THE NEXT
FOUR YEARS




OUTCOME 1 :
HIGH QUALITY DRINKING WATER
CASE STUDY

ZONAL STUDIES
INVESTMENT
PROGRAMME

To moke a lasting iImprovement to the service, we need to move

from treating symptoms to targehing the underlying causes of the
problem To achieve this ond address 1ssues such as discolouration
and interruptions o supply, we are currently revewing our performance
n our ‘worst performing' Water Quality Zones where our service

has not been as good as 1t should to our customers

We are combining hydraulic modelling (measunng how water travels
through the network) with innovetive root cause analysis tools to

get to the bottom of why our customners are contacting us and then
fixing the cause This investment of around £80 millien of pipe
improvernents over the next four years will enable us to improve

the drinking water quality of customers
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OUTCOME 2

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

WE WILL

SAFEGUARD A
SUSTAINABLE
ENVIRONMENT
THAT WE ARE
PROUD TO HAND
ON TO FUTURE
GENERATIONS

Highlights

Qur sewer network has continved
to perform well over the post

12 months despite the extreme
weather conditions Notwithstanding
these challenges, the number of
propertes subjected to internal
sewer flooding fell this yeor to

223 (2014 265) and we had two
senous polluton inadents in 2015
{2014 4) which equols our best
ever performance for this measure
Our airm s always to understond

30 STRATEGIC REVIEW

the cause, whether the incident
was predictable (and therefore
preventeble) and whether our
response could be mproved

In 2015, we were delighted to see
Wales retaining its posihon as
having the best bathung woters

in the UK with 41 beaches being
awarded Blue Flags The figure

1s up on 2014 ond the results are
also significant considening Wales
achieved over 30% of the UK's Blue
Flags on 15% of the UK'’s coastine
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OPERATE OVER

300

WASTEWATER
TREATMENT SITES

ARCUND

3,500

COMBINED SEWER
OVERFLOWS

36000

KMS OF SEWERS—
ENOUGH TO STRETCH TO
AUSTRALIA AND BACK

DEAL WITH ARCUND

2,000

BLOCKAGES A MONTH
IN OUR SEWERS

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

Qur relationship with the natural environment is o vital elerment
of our business, and so ensurning that we act In a responsible
and sustainable way 1s an essential part of how we work

Stave Wilson
Managing Director, Wostewater Services

Challenges

The performance of our wastewater
treatment works 1s critical to ensure
that the water we return to the
rivers, streams and sea 1s of the
highest quality We have over

800 wastewater treatment works

In 2015, we hod eight wastewater
treatment works not meeting these
requirernents (2014 5) with 21 works
deemed to be "ot nsk” (2014 20)
Following inveshgatons for these
sites, defective equipment has
been replaced and operational
procedures fightened

The exceptionally heavy rainfoll

last winter led to a high volume

of flows in our sewerage network
and, combined with surface water

1n some areas, this resulted in heavily
diluted wastewater coming up from
some manholes across parts of

our network Whilst we will always
prioritise those customers who
suffer internal flooding, we are also
mindful that external flooding 15 alse
an 1ssue for local communihies
Misuse of the sewers through the
dispesal of fats, olls and grease

and wet wipes into our network 15

a key couse of blockages and sewer
flooding This 1s why we continued
with our award winning ‘Let's Stop
the Block' campaign to raise
customer awareness about the
consequences of sewer misuse

by launching it in two other 'hotspot’
areas for blockages, narmely Milford
Haven 1n South West Wales and
Cowbridge 1n South East Wales

Looking Ahead

To help us protect public health and
local communities from flooding,

our network (including pumpiag
stations, combined sewer overflows
and wastewater treatment works)
contains a series of relief valves that
are designed to release excess storm
water into the environment during
very wet weather Over the past

12 months, we hove installed remote
monitonng equiprment ot over 500
of these high gnionty sites to monitor
their performance and measure therr
impact on the environment We plan
to install such momitoring equipment
on all our sites by 2020

Whilst the quahty of bathing woter
1s offected by factors other than our
operations {e g polluton from water
running off roads and formland),
we will iInvest more than £8 million
over the next two years In scientific
investigations at 43 sites around
the Welsh coastline The project,
which 1s the largest progromme

of coastal investigation work ever
undertaken in Wales, will provide

us with tools to help us all better
understand and protect Wales'
coastal waters for years fo come

We are also on course to adopt
over 500 private pumping stations
by 1st October 2016 This takes
responsibility away from our
custormers and will help us manage
our wastewater netwark more
effectvely
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QUTCOME 2
PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT
CASE STUDY

_OWERING
PHOSPHOROUS
EVELS

We routinely test levels of phosphorous and other metals in the water
at our wastewater treatment works While the level of phosphorous

n the water we release into the environment does not pose o risk

to people, it con be harmful to ony wildhife i the watercourses if
phosphorus levels are too high Stondards are ever hghtening with
even stricter standards expected in the next five to 10 yeors

We tnalled o new technology to help us achieve lower levels of
phosphorous and iron in the water at our Llanbens Wastewater
Treatment Works, in North Wales The Blue PRO technology uses
a sand filter system, removing phosphorous by adsorption and
filtration The tnal hod excellent results, removing 90% of total
phosphate, whilst lowering iron levels This triol forms part of work
across the business to upgrade our treatment works to meet
phosphorus consent Last year, we turned this into o permanent
soluton and invested £25 million in several wastewater treatment
works including Gowerton, Llanell, Pantyberem and Parc y Splott
in Carmarthen to reduce total concantration within final effluent
discharge and ultimately protect our local environment
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OUTCOME 3

RESPONDING TO CLIMATE CHANGE

WE WILL

ADAPT

OUR AC
TO DEAL

EFFECTS
CLIMATE

IVITIES
WITH

THE POTENTIAL

OF

CHANGE, WHILST

REDUCIN
OWN CA

G OUR
RBON

FOOTPRI
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Climate change remains one of the biggest challenges
and nisks facing our company All the main impacts—
temperature change, more intense rainfall, changing
rainfall patterns, and rises in sea levels—directly offect
our company’s achvittes

Tony Harrington
Director of Environment

Highlights

QOur renewoble energy generation hos nisen steodily ond this yvear sow
us generate 97GWh (2014 60GWh)—enough to power nearly 31,000
homes Qur renewable energy now represents mare than 20% of the

volume of power we cansume and we hove committed to increase this
to 30% by 2020

Over the past 12 months, we invested £8 million in renewable energy

and energy efficiency projects—all of which help us become more efficient
and reduce our operating cost This in turn helps keep bills fow, which

we know 15 iImportont fo our customers Projects include the installation

of a hydro generation scheme as part of the £28 milhon upgrade of
Dolbenmaen Water Treatment Works in Gwynedd The scheme 1s already
generating O 69 GWh per year of energy which i1s enough to provide nearly
58% of the energy needed to operate the site At our Felindre Woter
Treatment Works near Swanseq, we also completed the installation of
more than 3,000 solar panels which are generating encugh energy

to power 220 homes

We continue to invest In RamScope urbon drainage projects to stop
storm water from entering the sewerage systemn, reducing flooding and
environmental risks in the Llanelll orea Through RainScape, we now
redirect nearly 2 million litres of surface water per day from our network
during wet weather—which is equivalent to around one QOlympic size
swimming poal every day

Challenges

We are commutted as o company to protecting the environment in our
care and a key feature of this 1Is managing nisks to biodiversity which
continued to be a challenge over the year This has ncluded tackling
species of plants that are not native to our country, including Jopanese
knotweed and Himalayon balsam To help tackle these problerns,

we hove committed funding to a collaboratve project in North Wales
based cround the Dee River This i1s o catchment-wide project aimed of
coordinating the control ond monitoring of tvasive species within the Dee
catchment area to ensure our native wildhfe 1s protected for the future
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SITES AT WHICH RENEWABLE
ENERGY IS GENERATED WHICH
INCLUDE SCLAR, HYDRO AND
ANAEROBIC DIGESTION

1 MILLION

PEOPLE'S WASTEWATER TREATED
AT CARDIFF WWTW WITH THE
ENERGY GENERATED ON-SITE
MEETING 50% OF THE SITE'S NEED

Looking ahead

As well as creating o more
resilient network, we will continue
our dnive over the next twelve
months to generate even more
energy from renewable sources
on our sites by investing a further
£10 milllon Such schemes
include the construction of single
wind turbines at our Swansea
Wastewater Treatment Works
and Nash Wastewater Treatment
Works in Newpart—both of which
will reduce the reliance of the
works on energy from the grid
This will bulld on the extensive
work being undertaken by our
energy team who are monitoring
power performance at our

sites and undertoking energy
audits and modelling to ensure
that we can continue to meet
our ombitious performance
targets In the tonger term, we
are scoping the feasibility of
constructing regional sludge
treatment centres which will help
buld on the current success of
our anaerobic digeshon plents 1n
Cardiff and Afan in South Wales
by increasing the amount of
energy generated from sewage
sludge on our sites By 2020,

we aim to create 100GWh of
renewable energy each year

This will help Welsh Water reduce
its carbon footprint and keep our
energy costs down, =o helping

to keep bills low
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QO 0 O

10,000
SOLAR
PANELS

Five Fords
Woastewater
Treatment Works,
North Wales

2.5GWH OF ENOUGH

ELECTRICITY  ENERGY TO

A YEAR POWER 7,000
HOMES
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OUTCOME 3:
RESPONDING TO CLIMATE CHANGE
CASE STUDY

FIVE FORDS
ENERGY PARK

Dunng 2015-16, our investment to transform our Five Fords
Wostewoter Treatment Works in Wrexham into the industry's first
multi-sourced Energy Park moved o step closer, with the completion
of the installation of nearly 10,000 solar panels The ponels generate
o total of 2 5GWh of electriaity o yeor, which 1s enough to power
7000 homes

DCuning the yeor, o gas fo gnd plant wos also commussioned

at the warks to enable gas created during the waste treatment
process to be upgraded to bro-methane gas and then injected

into the local gas distnbution network The project received nationol
recogriution when it won the Environment Award at the Inshtute

of Water lnnovatton Awards, Woles

ar
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OUTCOME 4
AFFORDABLE BILLS

OUR SERVICES
REPRESEN
GOOD VALUE FOR
MONLEY FOR OUR
CUSTOMERS,
WITH AN
EFFECTIVE

RANGE OF HELP
FOR THOSE
STRUGGLING

TO PAY




£1.20

AVERAGE DAILY COST FOR
QUR HOUSEHOLD WATER
AND WASTEWATER SERVICE

Highlights

In February, we confirmed

thot our customers would see
no increase In the average
household bill for 2016-17,
making this the seventh
consecutive year that the
average household bill will be
increased by below the rote of
RPIl inflohon We rermaoin the only
water company 1n England ond
Woles on course fo achieve

a decade of below inflatien
price increases by 2020

Qur new social tanff, HelpU,
which offers annual savings

of up to £250 {or 55%) on the
average household bill, is now
avallable to customers whose
annual household iIncome 1s
less than £15,000 per yeor
(increased from £12,500}

We cre actvely promoting
practical ways to help customers
strugglng to offord their water
bills and have introduced some
new nthatves to support our
customers
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As o company owned on behalf of its customers and
providing services 1o some of the most deprived areas
of the UK, we have always been keen to help those
customers who have trouble paying their water and

sewerage bills

Julia Cherrett
Managing Director, Retall Services

Affordability 1s o particular concern in our region
Ofwat's research in December 2015 indicated that
32% of our household customers spend rmore than
3% of their ncome on water and sewerage services

(23% in Englond)

Challenges

Qur debt collechions team
continues to work hard to
reduce the level of bad and
doubtful debt and our charge
for 2015-16 fell to £27 milhon
{(2014-15 £30 million) To help
with this work, we implemented
data shanng with credit reference
agencies dunng the year

This means that the credit
record of customers who do not
pay therr water bill 1s adversely
affected, while paying the water
bill improves the credit record
Gur mam nsk to debt collection
1s with those customers who

we have been unable to contact
and so we continue to iImplement
o range of ‘early start’ inthatives
to reconnect with such
customers For exarmple we
introduced texhing in August
2015 as a prompt for payment
early on in the collechon cycle
This 1s proving successful with
around 63,000 texts sent every
month 1n the first six months

Looking Ahead

Around 3,000 customers

have signed up for the HelpU
tanff ond our challenge 1s to
encourage more households that
could benefit to discuss their
crcumstances with us To help
address this, we implermented
a pilot programme in Narth
Wales visihng over 1,000 homes
where custormers are behind
with their water bill and where
we have been faling to engage
them in a repayment plan
Based on what we learned,

we are now establishing a field
bosed tearn Their aim will

be to raise awareness of our
social tanffs and inform our
wider engagement strategy

for promoting HelplU We have
also signed a memorandum of
understanding with the Energy
Saving Trust, who now provide
us with details of contacts they
hove recewed from people who
may benefit from one of our
assistance schemes
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HELPING
SCHOOLS
BECOME
MORE WATER
EFFICIENT




O

N%

OF SCHOOLS
BENEFITED
FROM
EFFICIENCY
DEVICES

O

SAVING

67,000

LITRES OF
WATER PER DAY

O

EQUIVALENT TO
840 BATHS
PER DAY

OUTCOME 4
AFFORDABLE BILLS
CASE STUDY

WATER
EFFICIENCY
LESSONS

The latest independent research into custorner attitudes by CCWater
(August 2015) showed that 77% of our customers think thot cur
water ond sewerage service are offordoble We olways try to provide
the best possible value for money and we helped a number of locaol
schools become more efficient 1n terms of therr water usage dunng
the year After identifying those communities in our supply area which
are clossed as woter stressed, schools were offered woter efficiency
lessons and workshops by a Welsh Water teacher

This was done whilst we conducted an audit and reported back

to the school assembly so they could see what sovings could be
made by fithing water efficient devices on taps ond tallets in ther
schoc! We fitted the devices free of charge with 91% (64 cut of 70)
schools wvisited benehting from the devices which save 67000 litres
of water or 840 boths, per day In addihon, rany thousands of
children are now more aware of the environmental need for water
effictency We are proud that this collaborative initiative won the
Woterwise UK ‘Exemplor Project in Wales' aword in March 2016
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OUTCOME 5

CUSTOMER SERVICE

WE WILL

CON

INUE

O

PROVIDE OUR

CUS

WITH

EXCELLENT
CUSTOMER

SERVICE

"OMERS




Custormers are the heart of our business and
we'll always try to put them first wath everything
that we do By investing time 1n improving our
services ond developing our colleagues, we am
to offer each and every one of our customers an
excephonal service—sornetmes under difficult
crrcumstances—every time they deal with us

Alun Shurmer
Director of Customer Strategy ond Cormmunications

Highlights

Our effarts in putting the interest of our custorners first 1s being
acknowledged and we were delighted to top Ofwot's Customer Service
Sahsfachon results for water and seweroge componies during the finol
quarter of 2015-16 and to come second for the whole vear The survey
results demonstrate our commitrment to doing things nght first ime for
our customers

Listening to our customers is o priority and this year we took this to a
new level with the infroduction of ‘Rant ond Rave' The system provides
customers with the opportunity to provide iImmedtate feedback on the
service they receved Over 43,000 surveys have been conducted since
its introduchion 1n 2015 with the findings olready providing invaluable
informatton on areas where further improvements can be made, such as
keeping customer informed of progress in resolving their enquiry

Challenges

The implementation of the new billing system for our 14 million customers
has continued over the course of the year While the system s now fully
operational, some process issues dunng roll-out did lead to an increase

in the number of billing related complonts While the system issues have
now been resolved, the nurmber of wntten complamnts {including emails)
received for the year hos increased significantly by 4,000 (to 7128)
cornpared to 2015 However, this mcrecse reflected in port chonging
customer behaviour as there was o 19% reduction in the number of
telephone complaints compared to the previous year
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1 MILLION

CALLS A YEAR RECEIVED
FROM CUSTOMERS

600,000

TEXTS SENT TO CUSTOMERS
TO INFORM THEM ABOUT
ISSUES WITH THEIR WATER AND
SEWERAGE SERVICES

100,000

VISITS PER MONTH TO QUR
WEBSITE

4,000

CUSTOMERS USED CUR WEBCHAT
SERVICE DURING THE YEAR

Loocking ahead

Improving and enhancing the
customer experience when
they make contact will form

a cornerstone of our activity
over the carming year This witl
include extending o range of
onhne services to customers
and the launch of My Bill which
will provide customers with the
option 1o recerve ond pay therr
bill online

Qur business customers

will also be at the centre of
improvements we are plonning
to delver over the corming

year We are broadening the
ronge of services offered to
large water users, including
private network maintenance
contracts and private network
investment projects These will
build on the already extensve
range of products offered to our
business customers, mncluding
water audits and o tallored case
monagement service
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OUTCOME 5
CUSTOMER SERVICE
CASE STUDY

NETWORK
INVESTMENT

lavesting In aur extensive network of sewers and water mains

1s essential fo maintain services but can be disruptive for customers
if poerly managed Hoving started o six month project in Oxwich

in October 2015 to renew parts of the local sewer network,

we minimised the iImpact by setting up a Commurnity Licisen Group
and agreeing measures to help mit any Inconverience .

lan Willlams, owner of the Oxwich Bay Hotel said

o

During the work to upgrade the sewer at Oxwich, any restrictions
were planned with Welsh Water to ensure minimum disturbance for
our customers We were very groteful for the understanding which we
recewed from Welsh Water in marntaining the access for oll of our
customers throughout the period of the work A job well donel

O
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OUTCOME 6
LOOKING AFTER OUR ASSETS

WE WILL
MAINTAIN
OUR ASSETS
FOR FUTURE
GENERATIONS,
AT EFFICIENT
COST




(38

CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROJECTS
COMMENCED IN YEAR

44

KMS CF DRINKING WATER
MAIN REPLACED

16

KMS OF SEWERS REPLACED

Highhghts

Targeted investment in our
assets, processes and the
people who operate them haos
enabled us to provide strong
service to our customers through
our extensive ronge of assets,
posihioning us again Qs one

of the best performers n our
sector Over the past 12 months,
we have implemented a range
of investment schemes to help
support the effectiveness of our
assets We have completed 175
investment schemes in 2015-16
In communihes across Wales
and Herefordshire, nveshng
overall £116 milion in our water
services ond £136 million n our
wastewater services

To help mantain high quality
dnnking water, we hove spent
£26 roullion n improving

the robustness of our water
treatment processes, £17
millon on montaining our water
distribution network, £14 miion
on refurbishing some of our
reservorr estate, £8 million on
cleansing water mams and £5
mithon on treating the water to
reduce any discolouration
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It's key that we know that our network of assets
(reservoirs, pumping stohons, treatment works, water
mains and sewer networks) are working efficiently and
rellably Looking after and investing in these assets so
that we can provide high quality services and protect the
environment—both now and info the future—is a vital port

of our business

Pater Porry
Chief Qperating Officer

We have olso improved wostewater
services by inveshng £41 million
Improving processes at our
wastewater treatment works ond
£25 millon on maintoining and
relining our network of sewers

We are aware of the importont role
we play in facilitahng econormic
growth across the area we

serve through working with local
developers, home builders and
businesses We are proud that
research from Water UK has
ranked us amongst the best in the
industry i terrms of the levels of
senvice developers aond others can
expect from water companies in
providing infrastructure for housing
developments

Cver the past 12 months, we have
invested £215 milion wath around
800 local suppliers and contractors
installing water mains and taking
responsibility for sewers that

have been recently built We have
responded to over 4,500 planning
applcations and supported a
number of flagship projects such
as Swanseo University's new £450
millon Bay Campus ond Newport
City Council's new £30 million
shopping centre, Fnars Walk

Challenges

Given the challenges we now
face as a result of extreme
weather conditions, the nsks
assoctated with such events
are now a key element of our
investment programme Qs we
look to mprove the resilience
of our assets We used the
extrerne weather conditions

in December and January to
review our contingency plans
and scope how we would improve
the resilience of our assets

to cope with disruption i order
to mointain services for
customers and protect the
notural environment now and
in the future

Our assets also Include essential
IT systems which could be

a potentiol target for cyber
threats which could have o
significant iImpact on gur
custorners and our operational
ossets We manage this nsk
through IT secunty standords,
angoing rmonitonng of threats
to our IT infrastructure as well
as incident management plans
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OUTCOME 6
LOOKING AFTER OUR ASSETS
CASE STUDY

WATER
SUPPLIES

Preventing bursts 1s a key focus of our strategy to reduce discolouratian
and interruptions to our customers’ supply and 15 measured os the
number of '‘Customer Minutes Lost’ Our own people operate the
network safely to reduce the impact of high pressure surges that cause
bursts Our training to ensure our colleagues are competent has been
supported through the £1 million investment of two state of the art
Valve Operation Training Centres ot Glascoed Woter Treatrment Works
in North Wales and at Sluvad Water Treatment Works in South Wales
The training delivered there forms part of our ‘competent inspector’
development programme

As the increased flow caused by burst water mains clso tends

to couse discoloured water, especially through sorme of our older

cost iIron water pipes, the centres will also aim fo drive iImprovements
in the appearance of the dnnking woter we supply, as measured

in ‘Customer Acceptability’ of water A third of water discolourotion
comptlamnts in 2015 were coused by third parties inapproprately taking
water directly from our network Therefore, these training facilities will
also be used to educate third porties in how woter should be token
safely from our pipes
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OUTCOME 7
DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

WE WILL
DEVELOP

A TEAM OF
PEOPLE WHO
WILL PROVIDE
A GREAT
SERVICE

TO OUR
CUSTOMERS




We are proud of our colleagues, their comrmitment,
efforts and skills are central to our success and to
maintaining our reputation as a leading ond trusted
employer and service provider to our custormers

Linda Wilhams
Director of Human Resources

Highhghts

We continue to develop and embed a strong health, safety and welfare
culture in our day to day operation, with our latest annual Employee
Engagement Survey showing 96% of oll our employees were clear
whot was expected of them with regard to Health and Safety and

93% believing that Health and Safety 15 taken seriously at Welsh Water

We have delivered some of our best ever performance in terms of Health
ond Safety, and in 2015-16, we achieved five yeors of continual reductions
in RIDDOR incidents {Reperting of Injunes, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences) with 12 incidents (2014-15 20) compared 1o an average of
22 ncidents over the past 6 years We have not and will not compromise
on sofety and the number of ‘Pasitive Intervenhions’ reported increased

by nearly 10% to over 19,400 over the last 12 months By increasing the
number of reported 'Positive Interventions’ and taking oction to remove
hozards and nsks, research shows that this leads to o reduction i the
number of reportable injunes

Focusing on the general welfare of colleagues olso led to the launch

of a new programme of operotional heolth checks in October

2015 A senes of clinics were held ot 14 sites ocross Weles and the
assessments were well attended with nearly 300 colleagues being
screened Whilst proud to host the Health and Safety’s Executive Welsh
launch in Apnl 2016 of its new strategy to help Great Brtain Work Well,
our efforfs to promote the health and well-being of our colleogues has
also enabled us to secure the Welsh Government's Gold Corporote Heolth
Standard award in 2016 This invkative 1s the quality merk for such actvity
in Wales and 1s supported by a wide range of measures to encourage
colleagues to take care of therr health, educate managers to enable them
to support colleagues with mental health illnesses ond @ new pilot iInhative
to provide faster access to treotment for musculoskeletal disorders where
appropriate

We are committed to enhanaing our colleagues’ skills and experience
We won the Large Employer of the Year Award this year in the NIACE
Cymiru - Inspire! Adult Learning Award This was in recognrhion of our
commitment to investing in adult educaton by developing colleagues
and the particular success of our Essential Skills Programme Over 500
colleagues have achieved over 1,200 gualifications in literacy, numeracy
and [CT skills and we were commended for being the most successful
workplace essental skills programme 1n Wales
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Challenges faced

To help ensure that we are well
ploced to deliver our latest
business plan and manage
wider changes in the woter
industry, we implemented
significant changes over the
post 12 months These included
rmoving colleagues to new
bases to deliver our cost saving
property strategy Our managers
and trade union representatives
utiised our joint problem solving
approoch to implerment our new
Working Together Agreement
resuthing in changes to terms
and condions and working
patterns for operational
colleagues This approach
ensured this was achieved
without any impact on the
service we provide to customers

We strive to create o culture
that enables our colleagues
to prowide the best possible
customer service, supporting
this with tramning, stoff awards
and a coaching culture

Looking ahead

A key paort of this process
starts with recrutment—

we select people with the
nght attitude, train them
thoroughly, develop theirr skills,
and recognise their efforts
We know that high calibre
colleagues provide excellent
service and an engoged
workfarce results in satisfied
custorners A key enabler for
this 1s our Custormer-led
Success inttiative and our
How2Wow Customer Service
training programme has been
re-accredited by the Instiiute
of Customer Service for the
third year running
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QUTCOME 7
DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE
CASE STUDY

APPRENTICES

Nick Keith (Electrical Apprentice, Lampeter), nominated for NIACE
Cymru Adult Learner Award 2015 and NIACE Cymru Adult Learning
Armbassador NIACE Cymru is the Learning and Work Institute and
adwises providers of adult education in Wales

o

Since Jotrung Welsh Water, I've had a chance to challenge myself and
pursue o coreer in an area that truly inferests me 1've been supported
by the company to do an apprenticeship scheme that offers acadermic
training alongside the practical expernence that's needed by the

role Being an apprentice at Welsh Water has given me o ¢chance to
demonstrate my inthiative and commitment to an employer who invests
in tratning and recognises achievement

o




OUTCOME 8-
AN EFFICIENT BUSINESS

WE WILL
CONTINUE TO
BE AN EFFICIENT
BUSINESS WITH
A STRONG
CREDIT RATING




Highlights

Finoncing efficiency continues to be one of our
most important successes and 1s key to ensunng
that the essental service we provide to over three
million people 1s offordoble Under Glas Cyminu's
ownership of Welsh Water, we have created
financiol reserves which now stand at over

£2 billion by reducing gearing from 93% at the
acquisihon in 2001 to under 60% today

In 2015-16, we have also considered how the
purpose of the business needs to evolve 1n ight
of external changes to the regulatory environment
withtin which we operate This 1s why we
restructured the Glas Cymru Group to establish
a new holding company as the parent of Glas
Cyrmru Cyfyngedig, nomely Glas Cyrnru Holdings
Cyfyngedig This company 1s also hmited by
guarantee {'not-for-profit’} and 1s prohibited from
paying dividends or making other distributions

to its Members The changes allow for the
creatton of new subsidiory componies and
limited commerctal actvhes This will be led by
our Commerciol Team and funded using Welsh
Water's inancial surpluses subject to o cop

of £100 million

Challenges

Our appointed revenues have reduced shghtly
this yeor to £743 milton (2015 £753 million),
attnbuted principally to Ofwot's revenue controls
for the Retall, Water and Wastewater parts of the
business which reduced charges to our custormers
from 1 Apnl 2015 by 1%

Qur total operational costs (excluding excephional
fems) have remained stable at £297 million
{2015 £295 million) - the impacts of inflation
and weather-related increases in the power used
to pumnp water and wastewater have been largely
offset by ongoing effictency imtiatives

All water and sewerage companies need to draw
on significant energy resources, porhicularly for
water treatment and pumping processes, and
Welsh Water —with its network spread across
Woales' undulahng topography—is no exception
Overoll power costs have fallen following the
purchase of hydro assets during the latter part
of 2014-15, reducing power costs by £3 million
in 2015-16
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Qur core objective 1s to provide water
and water services to our custormers
ot the most affordable price

The financial strength of the company
has improved significantly since

its incephon 1n 2001, and we are
therefore able to consider a wider
scope of services which should deliver
addritional value to our customers

Pater Bridgewaoter
Finance and Commercial Director

Looking ahead

If we are to provide the best possible service,

1t 1s iImportant that we retain the best people
and this 1s why colleagues across the business
were given an annyal pay oword of 15%

1n 2015-16 which resulted in costs increasing

by £1 rmillon compared to the prewvtous year
However, we also need to dnve improvements

n the efficiency of service These efficiencies will
continue o be reabsed in the next 12 months
as we refocus after reshaping the business and
facilitatng a voluntary severance pregramme
which led to 216 colleagues leaving the business

Gross capital investment of £279 million in our
water and wastewater operations was lower
than lost year (2015 £379 million), a temporary
reduction as we rebuild our capital delvery
capability with new copital partners to delver
our £17 bilhon investment programme between
2015 and 2020 We plan to invest o further
£365 mullion 1n 2016-17
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OUTCOME 8.
AN EFFICIENT BUSINESS
CASE STUDY

o »

40% REDUCTION ANNUAL SAVINGS
IN MAINTENANCE TO DATE OF
ACTIVITY £400,000

LEAN

To help drive efficiencies and ensure that we continue to ochieve
sector-leading effictencies aocross the compony, we hove introduced
Leon ways of working in the last two years across 21 of our sites and
wastewater treatment sites This is helping us reduce maintenance
actwity by around 40% and has already achieved annual savings
of £400,000 We have developed a certified Lean Trarning
programme this yeor to help embed a culture of continuous
Improvernent amongst colleagues

57




OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

The long-term success of the Group
depends on identifying, assessing
and managing nisks effectively and
all colleagues play o part in nsk
managemant

Qur systerns of mfernal control are
designed to identify, evaluate and
rmonage nsks affechng the business
This year, the Board has carried

out a comprehensve review of its
appreach to nsk monogement, which
has involved o robust assessment

of the principal nsks facing the
company and cur folerance of risk in
these key areas This assessment 1s
then used to inform our mnvestrment
programme and, because of our
not-for-shareholder mede), helps fo
focus where maney, which might go
to shareholders in other organisahons,
may be best invested to manage
key risks The analysis below focuses
on those nsks that would threaten
the company's future performance,
solvency or hquidity The internal
controls to ensure that nsks are
adequately managed are also
considered by the Audit Committee

Where it 15 not possible to mihgate
the nsk fully, o plan has been adopted

Note on sigaificont disputes with the potantial
to impoct the company.

Alblon Watsr and United Utilitles the company
conhnues to be in dispute with Alblon Water ond
with United Uhlities over the cofrect approoch to
pnong supplies of water from the Heronbndge
systern.  1s hoped that further guidance from
Cfwat on approoaches to pricing bulk supplies
of water may assist in resobving this dispute

to reduce the potentiol impact of
the nsk over the medium term to an
acceptable level

Qur approach to nsk management-

— Indmidual teams wthin the
business take responsibility for
managing risks withun thewr areas
of responsibility

— Eoch business unit has the
opportunity to feed mto a “bottomn
up” nsk management system
and risks recorded through that
process are discussed dunng o
more "top down" discussion of
nsk every month at a meeting
of the Executve tearn

—— The Executive teamn’s update
on strategic nsks offecting the
business is reviewed at every
Board Meeting and the Board has
an in-depth review of strategic
nisks twice every year The Board
has now adopted an approoch
assessing the current level and
a torget level for each nsk

— The Audit Comrmittee has
accountability for overseeing the
nsk monagement processes ond
procedures, and reports to the
Board All colleagues haove the

Tato Stesk the final pricing deterrmananon n
raspect of the supply of water o Tota's sites.
n Wales 15 stil owated from Ofwot

Infraction proceadings in the Loughor Estuary-
n March 2014, the UK Government was informed
of on mpending Infroction casa aleging breaches
of the Urban Wastewoter Treatment Directve in
severol coastal woters around the UK, induding
areos of the Loughor Estuary, Gowerton ond

opportunity to maoke confidental
disclosures about suspected
failure to follow procedures or
wrongdoing to fnternal Audit or
to an external whistle-blowing
helpline, n accardance with ocur
Whistle-blowing Policy

—— This bottom up and top down
approach to nsk management
provides assurance that risks are
being effectively monaged by
the business and identifies those
areas where further mihgaton
steps ore needed

We continue to use the Three Lines
of Defence’ model to mitigate risk

of non-cempliance with our processes
and palicies

— First ne of defence 15 ownership
and monagement of nsk This s
fulfilled by our operctional teoms
and monagers

— Second line of defence i1s nsk
rranagement and nsk control
This 1s fulfilled by our complionce
team and internal committees

—— Third line of defence Is
independent review and oversight
This 1s fulfilled by Internal Audit

Llonel cotchments These proceedings ara
ongaong egoinst the UK govemmeni, although

n the cose of the Loughor Estuary catchments,
there 15 on extansive oNgoing programime:

of nvestrant in the arao, n particular with
regard fo sustcuncble urbon droinoge systerns.
The compary contrwes to work closely with
Welsh Government and Notural Resources Wales
fo enoble a response to the darm case




KEY RISKS FACED BY THE GROUP

Key Risk Potential Impoct Mitigahon Changes over Trand relative
and Seventy the period to tast year
Health The hecltth and sofety of The Health & Sofety of colleagues, customers We are currently < >
& Safety our employees and the and members of the public 1s the number one working with on
Major public in the provision of prionty for the business H&S issues are the external consultancy an
Incident our senvices ond on our respansibility of every iIndmduol teom, a personal behavoural nsk issues

sites Is our utmost pronty  H&S torget 1s opplied to each indvidual through  Recent intemnal cudits have

Risks include the potential  the Performance Management Review process, dentified failures to follow

for an acadent or death ond H&S ssues are considered in detall ot procedure m respect of

to @ memnber of the public, every meeting of the Board and the Quality and some instances of work on

onone orour stesoras o  Environment Committee pressunsed pipes, 50 we

result of our actions, or o have improved processes

on employee or contractor Our teams wark to a H&S Strategy and and franing 1n this area

in discharging therr duties Management Ptarn with operaotional procedures

accredited to OHSAS 180G1 ond subject fo Further to the Board's

Health ond sofety 1ssves external Independent assessment In addition, strotegic review of nsks,

remain o key focus in we have rolled out across the business our o reporting ine has been

the management of STEP (Safety Tokes Every Person) safety culture put In place between the

the business ond we improvement plon and traning programme which  Head of Health & Safety

consider that we have includes leadership safety conversations and the Chair of the

::lif]:\n?’l:::::zzsolbr‘leﬂif:ps We olso work with Trade Union H&S Consultative gg:_:n;;ged Envronment

area However, there have Farums at both Campany ond operctional levels

been two fotalifies in the

UK woter sector over the

last two years and there

is no complacency in the

opprooch of the Executve

team to the management

of this nsk
Major public A mojor public health Providing safe, clean drinking water 1s cur primary  We review avery incident ‘ ’
health incrdent would have public health responsibility We toke this matter that impacts on the safety '
incident SEroUs consequences very senously with daily reparting to Director or wholesomeness of

for our customers or
members of the public
A sustoined problem with
drinking water quality
{eg cryptospondiym
or bacteno! nfection)
would require o
widespread "boil water"”
nohce This could be
caused by asset fadure,
an unantiapated
catchment nsk, or
deliberate sabotage

level on water qualty performance including
presumptive bactenclogreal faltures, detechon

of Cryptospondium ond all other failures Mojor
public health incidents related to woter supply ore
rare, however o large scale incident would attract
considerable media and public interest even
when no actual harm i1s caused to public health
We expenenced o number of major incidents

tn the penod 2006-2009 with the most huigh
profile incident ot Cwellyn wiw, o supply zone
where we had on acute Cryplo outbreak Since
then, considerable investment in water treatment
works (the £120m ‘Go to Green' programme),
risk management procedures and water quohty
experhse has resulted 1n significant Improvement
in performance Through this overall iImproverment
programme the lkelihood of o maojor public
incident 15 considered os beng low However,
there is o well-established focus on continuous
improvernent within the business to further
strengthen risk mihgation in this areo

dnnking water or where

it had the capacity fo do
50, 1o ensure that lessons
can be learnt for the site
concerned, and where
appropnate, that relevant
learaing ponts are rolled
out across the supply crea
We maintain and vpdote
Dnnlang Water Safety
Plans In our assessment,
there is no change n the
probabibity of o maojor
public health Incident
since last year ond this
continues fo be on areo
of nsk that demands a key
focus from maonagement
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Koy Risk Potential impact Mitigatton Changes over Trend relohve
ond Saventy the period to last yeor
Follure to Sustained deteriorction in performonce  Our roling five yeor business plon Broadly, Water and Waste ‘ ’
achiove could lead to loss of a custormer confirms our expected ability to performance 1s very
required confidence, impact our reputation with  meet our performonce and costs good measured ogoinst
performance stokeholders and to regulatory achon targets, with the targets and actions  the rest of the sector
levels and The nsk that the cornpany will be required fromn management to However, currently two
efficiancies unable to achieve ifs cost reduchon delvar this performance Progress Water meosures Mean
during the targets over the next yeor and info towards these targets is tracked Zonal Cormmplance and
period 2015- the next fve year nvestment penod throughout the orgenisation each Custormner Acceptability
2020 would reduce the surplus that we month ond they are reset each year  Contacts (CAC) are

have fo retumn value to customer or challenging and we are

could impact our abilify to mamtain therefora ivesting more n

our credit rating these areas than enginally

planned

Failure Failure to deliver cost efficiency We have o mojor Retad We have just completed ‘ >
to deliver {speaifically reduchon in bod debt and  Transformation Programme n our second round of
the retail efficlencies in customer serace} could  place with considerable financiol annual billing using
customer lead to o loss moking retaill business support ond externol expertse our naw billing system,
sarvica plan, The costs challenges are complicated  However, the progromme 15 still RapdXtra While
including by the generol economic environment  at o relatively early stoge of the ecanamic conditions
manogement  {specifically n Wales), changes to the  implementotion Some i1ssues still present a significant
of bad debt welfare benelits system and conhnuing  from the implementation of challenge for some

squeezed Imng standards which put the new billing system are shil of our customers wha

cosh collecton ot nsk being resolved and debt recovery are struggling fo pay,

In the event of o further economie inthatves are bosed on ‘pifot we have nearly 55000

downturn, we could see on Increase schernes’ so far custorners recening help

in bad debt of up to £10m o year, to pay therr woter bills .

os happened aofter the 2008 financial The Retail Transformation

cnsis Custorners in our supply area Programme s now fully

have higher than average bitts and resourced and delvenng

lower than overoge disposable concrete results In terms

incormes Current Business Plan of cash collections,

targefs are very demanding secunng debt and

(to reduce bad debt from around improving service

£30m in 2034 to around £20m

by the later vears of AMPS
Failure to Proposed market reforms could We are committed fo ensuring Qur Market Opening ‘ >
adopt to the see some £60 rmudlion po {8%) of that custorners in Wales ore not project has been sat up,
challenges revenues subject fo some form disadvantaged by the restnichon 1s well resourced ond 1s
ond of compehtion Business Retail of retall cormnpetition to our largest on frack The restructunng
opportunities Market opening presents sigrficant business customers Our ambihon of the Glas Group from
of sector opportunities as well as customer to earn the trust of our custormers 1 March 2016 1s o key
changes service and complance chalfenges every day and to be the bast enabler to allow us o

Some of these nsks may not manidest
themselves within the current AMP
penad, but it i1s important that
structurol, governance and investment
chonges ore implemented now in
order to meet the future challenges
and opportunthes

performing Water and Sewerage
company in the UK will ensure thot
we continue to provide the best
possible serice fo customers while
keeping bilt increases below inflation
This strategy will help us to meet the
changtng expectotions of customers
during a penod of significant chonge
for the sector We have also put in
place a team to review and consider
the aperational, strategic and
procedurol changes we need

to moke as o business fo respond

to developments in the sector

offer o broader range
of servces to business
customers
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Key Rusk
and Severrty

Potential Impoct

Mitigation

Changes over
the period

Trend relative
to lost year

Increased
focus on
Environmental
Regulation

Increased enforcement
of European regulation
1s hkely to impose
significanily Increased
costs which will need to
be funded Changes to
sentencing guidelines
for nfnngement

of envronmental
legiskation have led to
grectly increased levels
of fines for polluhon
incidents

We have menhoned
the current EU
infraction cose involving
the Loughor Estuary
(see page 58)

Other investment

will be required to
address tghtering
environmentol
standards, and

we are monitoring
developments in this
area corefully to allow
us to plan to meet our
requirements

The cost of the mvestment required
at Loughor Is large, currently
estimated ot over £70m While we
can fund this in the short term, this
will impact customers' bills ofter
2020

The proceedings brought by the
Euvropean Commussion in respect
of the UK Government's foilure
to meet the requirements of the
Urban Wastewater Treatment
Directive are continuing and have
nvolved us in prepanng dato
and informaton fo enable UK
Government to respond to the
clam Discusstons are toking
place via EurEau and the UK's
215t Century Drainoge Board to
encble DEFRA tfo issue updated
gudance on what it means to
comply with the Directive

A

Failura to eam
the trust and

confidence of
our customers

Failure to ecrn the
trust and confidence
of our customers
leading to foilure to
achieve our corporate
ohbjectve, reputahional
damaoge, increased
customner service
costs, darmaoge

to regulatory

or government
relationships and loss
of ernployee morale
This nsk 1s mextnoably
hnked to many of the
other nsks identified

YWe have a strong, posifive
reputahon and high levels of trust
with our customers However, trust
15 buillt on customers' perception
of good serice and volue for
money and farmilianty with the
company We are aware from
events elsewhere in the sector that
custorner trust can be easily lost
QOur rutigations for this nsk include
the folloming achons

— roli-out of Custorner-led
Success opproach, across
the business

— plonned profile raising
campaign (Summer 2016)

— inshigation of Glas Member
ond custormer engagement
on how to best return volue
to customers

— ambitious AMP& Custormer
Engagement and Research
Plan

— work with Inshtute of
Custorner Service

Qur understonding of what drives
customer trust and confidence

15 Improving as o result of our
customer led success approach
started in 2015 We hove
appointed o Drector of Customer
Service to focus our research and
achvhes In this area

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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Key Risk Potentiol Impact Mitigothon Changes over Trend relative
and Sevarity tha period 1o last year
Loss of The recent Increases in We need to athact electneions, instrument Due fo the < }
key talent, investrnent in industnes technicians, engineers, procurermnent expected uptum in

capabiity and  where we compete for spaeciabists and daoto analysts Key construchion actty

competence lobour present an emerging  mitigations include and known trend in

nsk to our ability to attract
ordd retamn employees with
the skills and competence
we reguire

~ rolling 5 year Resource Plan drive
identifying nsks ord tming of recrutment

— conbnue with annual apprentice, trainee
and graduate ntake

- project launched to align job evaluation
and assessments ocross wholesale
and retad and benchmarking of current
maorket solanes

— feasibility study to explore benefit of
building Welsh Water Technical Acaderny

autornation, some
skills challenges are
likely In the penod to
2020

We are conhnuing to
successfully recrurt
graduates and
apprentices ond are
continuing to invest
0 our racruitiment
programmes

ICT Risk A major loss of Informahon
ond Communicahons
Technology senace would
put business performance
at rsk, whilst several
business improvernent
plans are rehant on new
ICT systerns Cyber secunty
IS ON INCreQsINg Issue,
although the nahonal
assessment of cyber
threats to the LK water
industry 15 low'

Over recent AMP penads we hove invested
heavily in IT systems, with over £92 5m

1IN AMP 5 (including a naw billing systerm

& coperohng platform) and we will Invest

a further £68 2m in AMP& We are also
plonning to achieve the ‘Cyber Essentals’
level of cerhification for Infarmation Secunty
in 2016

Key rruhgations include

— Payment Card Industry compliance
(which helps to ensure thot our
custormers’ bank and credit card detalls
are sofe)

— 'Inforrnatan Secunty’ Programme & links
with CPNI improved capability within
Business Information Systerns team
since insourcing in 2010

— Information Secunty Steenng Group—
chared by General Counsel

— Systems & Change Boord—Charred
by COO goverming major systems
investment programme

The likelihood and seventy of this nsk will

reduce once the transition to a new ICT

service partner and new data centres

1s achieved by the end of 2016

Transihon plon for
new ICT service
provider, with strong
internal and external
governance and
assuronce

<4

Future There is a nsk that
funding debt funding will not be
risk and avallable to the business
relationships at o reasonable cost when

with frwestors  we need to refinance owr
debt and in particulor our
bonds matunng after 2021
Strong relationships with
our bondholders are key
to the Group's ongoing
success, and o good credit
rating remains essentiol
to ensunng funding s
ovatlable ot a reasonable
price

We regularly review funding oppartunities
and the wider state of the markets to
ensure we are in @ goed posihon to
appreach the markets for funding ot

an appropnate hme Relahonships with
ivestors rernan goed ond we achieved
100% approval on behalf of lenders

fo opprove the limited changes fo the
carporate structure undertokan in the first
quorter of 2016 Our credit rating rernains
the hughest in the industry and geanng 1s
now below the target level of 60%

We hove secured
another £250m
of debt funding
from the European
Investrment

Bank Our credit
ratings have been
confirrmed of Uity
sector leading
levels by all three
of our Rafing
Agencies
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LONG-TERM VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Boord's consideration of the Group's long-term wiability 1s embedded 1n our
business planning process, this includes robust nsk management controls and
financial forecasting ond sensitivity analysis, as well as regular budget reviews

This process s underpinned by a culture of support and challenge that flows fram
our leadership team to all aspects of our operations We consider that o period
of five years 1s the most suitable pertod over which the Board should assess the
prospects of the Group 1t 1s equal to the length of our regulatory determination

and consistent with our annual five-year business planning process

The prinaipal nisks facing the
Group are set cut on pages 59
to 62 n relation to our ability to
deliver our strategic objectives
Fisks are identified and ossessed
through a continuous cycle of
bottom-up reporting and review
and top-down feedback ond
horizon scanning We accept
that nsk 15 o necessory part of
doing business, and our risk
maonagement process oims to
capture a spectrurm of nsk from
inherent to emerging, and across
all business areas

The Board has analysed
the efficacy and robustness
of its control framework in
managing the lkely causes
and consequences of each

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

nsk, and has reviewed the
Group's assumphons and
contingency plans The Board
hos discussed the potential
financial ond reputational
impact of these pnnarpal nisks
ogomst the Group's ability to
deliver its 2016 business plan
{covening the period Apnil 2016
to March 2021) The Board
has stress-tested the business
plon agoinst different financial
scenarnios (including fluctuotions
in inflotion and interest rotes)
and reputational scenarios
(including safety and reliability
events), ncluding o qualitative
assessment of the impact

of plausible combinations

of prnncipal nsks

The Board has ossessed the
potential impocts of these nsks
within the context of its nsk
appehte and i1s confident that
the centrols In ploce are sufficient
to keep the Group's financial
performance within appropnate
tolerance levels In making ther
assessment, the Directors have
taken account of the Group's
robust forecast and actual
georing of around 60%, its strong
level of iquidity and its ability

1o roise finonce Based on its
robust assessment, the Directors
have a recsonable expectation
that the Group will be able to
continue In operation and meet
its habilittes as they fall due over
the penod to March 2021
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INTRODUCTION

Good governance is fundamental to all of our activittes, It helps to build the trust
of our customers and other stokeholders ond oids effective decision making
We have o strang Board with a majonity of independent Non-Executive Directors,
who are focused on delivering the best possible outcomes for customers, supplying
drinking water of the highest quality and minimising the effect on the environment,

while keeping bills to an affordable level

The Board plays a crucial role

In sethng strategy, ensunng
accountability from the Executive
tearn, monitoning performance
and establishing the moral tone
of the cormpany and s culture
We have o clear diversity policy
for Board level recruitment which
15 published on our website,

and which helps tc ensure that
we maintain ond enhance the
dwersity of background and
skillset of our range of Directors
We are fortunate to benefit from
Directors who have o wide range
of qualifications and expenence,
ond who provide a good gender
ond age balonce Joanne Kenrick
Joined our Board in November
2015 Her immedrate past
executive role was as Marketing
Director for Homebase, and she
hos a strong markehng, retal and
customer services background

The focus of the Board this

year has been on continuing
and further improving our hugh
stendords of customer service
and operctional performance
Qur custorner led success
strategy has ensured that our
customers are firmly of the centre
of everything we do As o Board
we have inspected a number of
our sites including our new visitor

&6 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

centre at Llandegfedd Reservorr,
Elan Volley reservoirs, Five Fords
wastewater treatment works

in Wrexham, our new valve test
ng ot Sluvad water treatment
works, and our new capital
projects base af Ty Awen,
Coedkernew, Newport

In March 2016 we changed our
corporate structure We created
a new helding company called
Glos Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig,
a company limited by guarontee
All Glas Cymiry Cyfyngedhg
Members hove become
Members of Glas

Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig

Our Members played a crucial
role in the decision to change
the structure and, on 22nd
February 2016, the company
held a forrmal Court meeting and
Extraordinary General Meeting

to vote on resolutions to effect

a Scheme of Arrangement to
amend the Group Structure
98% of Members present or
veting by proxy voted in favour

of the resolutions recommended
by the Board end the Scheme of
Arrangement was subsequently
approved by the Chancery
dmision of the High Court

The new structure will allow us

to pursue some commercial

actvities but we will keep this
rng-fenced from the operatienal
wholesale business

The Board has also had

o renewed focus on risk
rmanagement this year in light

of corporate governance chonges
ond to reflect changes in nsk
profiles for the current investment
period The Board have held

two sessions considenng nsk
management in more detatl,

one of which was facilitated

by Price Waterhouse Coopers

It 1s the combined role of the
Board and Executive team to
work together to understand

the nisks the company faces

and ensure thot appropricte
mihigotions are put in place

Qur Risk Report 1s included

1n the Strategic Report

This Annual Repoert and Accounts
15 presented in what the Directors
congsider to be o fair, balanced
and understandable manner

Rbbk Aoy

Robert Ayling
Charman

3 June 2016
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THE BOARD

ROBERT AYLING
CHAIRMAN (69)

MENNA RICHARDS

SENIOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR (63)

CHRIS JONES

CHIEF
EXECUTIVE (52)

JOINED APRIL 2008
IN POST SINCE JULY 2010

JOINED NOVEMBER 2010
IN POST SINCE. JULY 2014

IN POST SINCE.
SEPTEMBER 2013

Expenence

A soliertor by profession, with 20
yeors in the City of London and
as o senor government legal
adviser at the Department of
Trade and Industry, Bob held a
number of senior management
posittons at Briish Airways plc,

of which he was Group Monaging
Drector ond Chief Executive from
1993 to 2000

Current other Non-Executive
posihons

Independent Charrman of

HM Courts & Tribunals Service

Previous Non-Execuhve posthons
Forrer Chairman of Dyson

Ltd, The International Dispute
Resolution Centre Ltd, Sonctuary
Group Ple and Holidaybreak plc
and a Non-Executive Director of
Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance
Group ple and QANTAS

Committee membership

Member of the Audit Cormmuttee,
Finance Commuittee, Quality

and Environment Committee,
Remuneration Committee

and Chaour of Nominations
Commuttee
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Experience

Menna's executive career was

In broadcasting as Director BBC
Cymru Wales (2000-2011)

and previously Managing
Director, HTV Wales She was
awarded the OBE for services
to broadcasting 1n 2010

Current other Non-Exacuhve
positions

Non-Executive Director of Welsh
National Opera

Chaosr of the ALOUD chanty
Vice Present of the Royal Welsh
College of Music and Droma

Previous Nan-Execvhve posihons
Chair of Governors of the Royal
Welsh College of Music and
Dramo Board member of

the Cardiff Bay Development
Corporation, Non-Executive
Director, Principality Bullding
Society

Committee membership
Member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nominaotions
Committee and sits on

the Independent Member
Selection Panel

Expenence

Chris became Chief Executive

in September 2013 having
previously been Finance Director
of Welsh Water since Moy 2001
and Glas Cymru since April
2000 He hos also previously
served as Director of Regulation
of Welsh Water and South Wales
Electricity plc Before joining
Welsh Water in 1995, he was

a Director at Natienal Economic
Research Associates ond, prior
to thot, worked for HM Treasury

Current other Non-Executive
posrthons

Deputy Chairman of the
Prniace's Trust Cymru Adwvisory
Council since 2009

Previous Non-Execvhve positions
Non-Executive Directer of the
Principality Bullding Seciety

Trustee of the Inshiute
of Welsh Affairs

Committee membership
Member of the Nominatons
Committee and Quality and
Environment Commuttee
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PETER
BRIDGEWATER

FINANCE
DIRECTCR (53}

PETER
PERRY

CHIEF OPERATING
QFFICER {53)

GRAHAM
EDWARDS

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (62)

IN POST SINCE. IN POST SINCE. JOINED
SEPTEMBER 2014 JULY 2006 OCTOBER 2013
Experience Expernience Expenence

Peter joined Welsh Woter as
Finance and Commercial
Director in September 2014 with
15 years of experience 1n both
finance and Monaging Director
roles across the energy and water
sectors, In the UK and overseas
Peter has been an Executive
Director with E ON and with
Sembcorp Industnes in regulated
uhhttes and competitive
industries as well as o pension
fund trustee Prior to joiming the
energy industry in 1994 Peter
was a chortered accountant and
maonagement consultant with
PwC end studied Psychology

at Durham University

Current other Non-Executive
positions

Non-Executrve Director of Ebico
Limited {a not for profit gas ond
electnaty provider)
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Appointed Operations Director
in July 2006, Peter has o

cwil engineening background
and was formerly the Chief
Operating Officer for United
Utilities Operahonal Services
{UUOS), having previously

been the Operations Director
for UUOS with responsibility for
the operational contract with
Welsh Water and UUOS's water
interests in Scotlond and Irelond
Prior to joining UUOS he worked
for Welsh Water for over 20
years

Current positions

He 1s also o Director
(representing Wales) at The
Woter Regulotions Advisory
Scheme, the national body
specifying standards for
matenals and workmanship
used 1n potable water supply

Committee membership
Member of Quality and
Envirecnment Committee

Groham i1s currentty Chief
Executive Officer of Wales &
West Utilhes (WWU) He has
significant senior management
expenence in the utility sector
running electncity distnbution
and water businesses with South
Wales Electricity, Hyder and
Thames Water Prior to working

in utiities he held senior positions
in varous funchons across a
wide range of manufacturing
businesses including Engineering,
Produchon and Hurnan
Resources Graham has an

MBA from Cardiff Business
School and 1s o Fellow of the
Chartered Inshtute of Personnel
& Development

Current other Non-Executive
posithons

Board member of University
of South Wales and the Royal
Welsh College of Music and
Oroma

Previous Mon-Executive positions
Previous Chair of CBIl Waoles
and Business in the
Community Wales

Committee Membership

Member of the Audit Committee
ond the Quality and Environment
Committee
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JOANNE
KENRICK

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (49)

ALASTAIR
LYONS

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (62)

JOINEO
NOVEMBER 2015

JOINED
MAY 2016

Expenence

Joonne was the Morketing Director for
Homebase untl the end of 2015, responsible

for all communications, the website business,
insight, customer proposition, and the loyalty
relationship with Nectar Prior to rejoining the
world of retall, Joanne was CEO of Start, sething
up and running HRH the Prince of Wales' public
facing imhative for a more sustainable future,
and before working at Clarence House, she held
vanous markehng roles, including Marketing and
Custormer Proposition Director for B&Q, Markehng
Director for the National Lottery, and Group Sales
and Marketing Director at Wilson Connolly, then
among the UK's top five house builders She has
also worked for Woolworths, Asda, Pepsico and
Masterfoods Joonne hos a degree 1n Law from
Nothnghom University, and whilst at college she
was one of the first wormen ever trained to fly by
the RAF

Current other Non-Executive positions

She 1s also o Non Exec Director for Safestore,
the UK's largest self-storage business and
Chairman of trustees of the children's chanty
Make Some Noise

Previous Non-Execuhve posrtions
She was a Non-Executive Director at Pnincipality
Building Society for 7 years

Committee Membership
Member of the Qualty and Eavironment
Committee

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

Expenence

Alastair has over 25 years' expenence In the
finance sector During an extensive executive
coreer, he was Chief Executive Officer of the
Natienal Provident Institution and the National
& Provincial Bullding Society, Managing Director
of the Insurance Bwision of Abbey National ple,
and Director of Corporate Projects ot Nohonal
Westrninster Bank plc

Current other Non-Executive Roles
He is currently Chairman of Admiral plc
and Deputy Chairman of Bowvis Homes Group plc

Previous Non-Executive positions

Alastair previously served as Chairmaon

of Towergate Insurance, Chairman of Serco,

the internohonal services group, and Senmor
lndependent Non-Executive Director at Phoenix,
the Iife assurance consolidator He has also
been a Non-Executive Director of both the
Department for Transport and the Department
for Work and Pensions

Committee Membership

From 1 May 2016, Alastarr has been a Member
of the Nominations Committee, Finance
Committee, Quality and Environment
Coemmittee and Remuneration Commitee
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STEPHEN ANNA JOHN
PALMER WALKER WARREN
NON-EXECUTIVE NON-EXECUTIVE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (64) DIRECTOR (65) BIRECTOR {62)
JOINED- JOINED JOINED
OCTCBER 2009 MARCH 201 MAY 2012
Expenence Expenence Expenence

Stephen 1s ementus professor of
epiderniclogy and public health
at Cardiff University Frorn 2003
unht July 2010, he was Director
of the Heclth Protechon Agency's
chemical hazards dmsion, local
and regional services dmision,
ond head of profession for
epidemiclogy in the HPA A fellow
of the Faoculty of Public Heclth and
the Royal College of Physicions,
he has been an influential figure
in service and acadermic public
heatth for over 25 years He has
along CV of previous public
health professional funchons

and has published numerous
acodemic papers and books

on epidemiology, communicable
diseases and chemrical hazards

Previous Non-Execuhve posrtions
Mansel Talbot and Cochrane
Chairs, Cordiff University, char

of Wales Health Frotection
Committee

Committee Membership
Charr of the Quality and
Eavironment Committee

TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Anna hos a wealth of expenence
N regulation, customer service,
policy maling and working with
governments Anna undertook

an ndependent review for
government in 2008 into
household water charging Farmer
roles include Chief Executive

of the Heolthcare Commussion
{2004-2009), Director General,
Land Use and Rural Affarrs ot
DEFRA, Director General - Energy
Group at DTl, and Deputy Director
General at Oftel, the telecoms
sector regulator

Current other Non-Executive
positions

Anng, who was given a CB In
2003 for public service, 1s Chair
of the chanty Young Epilepsy
and ¢ member of the Council of
Which? and o trustee of Women
in Roil, o chanty supporting
women in the rall sector

Previous Non-Execvhve posrhons
Anna was Char of the Office of
Roil Regulation from 2009-2015
and a former Vice Char

of Consumer Focus, the statutory
consumer champion body

Committee Membership
Charr of the Remunerahon
Commuttee and member
of the Audit Committee

John 1s o qualified accountant
with more than 25 years’
expernence In finance roles
and has extenswve experience
in chainng Audit Committees
of maojor UK listed companies
Untl kus rehrement in 2005,
he was Group Finance Director
for WH Srrith PLC ond, before
that, United Biscuits Plc

Current other Non-Executive
positions

He is currently a Non—Executve
Director and Chairrman of the
Audrt Committee for Greencore
Group plc, 4mpnnt Group plc
and Bloomsbury Publishing Plc

Previous Non-Executive positions
John has been Non-Executive
Director and Chairrman of the
Audit Committee of the following
companies Spectris ple, Rexam
Plec, Bowis Homes Group PLC,
Rank Group Plc, Uniq Plc, Arla
Feods UK plc, BPP Holdings plc,
RAC Ple

Cammittae Membership

Charr of the Audit Carmmittee
and member of the Finonce
Committee and Remuneraton
Committee
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OUR COMPANY STRUCTURE

Previous company structure

° .

Glas
Cymeu
(Secunties)
Cyt

Dwr Cymieu
Holdings
Lid.

Dwr
Cymry
(Financing}
Ltd

v
Cymiru
Cyt

New company structure

o

Glas
Cymry
Holdings
Cyf.

MNaw
commercial
subsidionies

Glos
Cymru
[Secunties)

Cyf

Dwr Cyrmru

Heoldings
Ltd.

Drar
Cymiry
(Financing}
Ltd
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Cur Financic! Statements {from page 108)
provide details of the following componies
n our Group structure

— Duning the financiol yeor we created o new
company called Glos Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig
This company i1s a company imited by guarantee
The Members of Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig are now
Members of Glas Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig
The new compony adopts the same not-for-prafit,
customer-focused ethos of Glas

— Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig wos formed as
o company hmited by guarantee with the single
purpose to acquire and manage Dwr Cyminu
Cyfyngedig Dunng 2015-16 the compony has
been reregistered as an unhmited company
Glas Cymmu Anghyfyngedig

— Glas Cymiru (Securihes) Cyfyngedig 1s the holding
company for Dvr Cymru {Holdings} Limited and
its subsidianes

—— D Cymiru (Holdings) Limited 1s the intermediate
holding company of Dvr Cymru Cyfyngedig and
Dwir Cymiru (Financing) Limited

—- Dvr Cymnu Cyfyngedig 1s o wholly owned
subsidiary of Glas Cyrmiru and 1s the Group's
principal trading company tts principal activity
15 the supply of water and tfreatment and
disposal of wastewater under the lnstrument
of Appointment made by the Secretory of State
for Wales under the Water Act 1989

— Dvir Cymiru {Financing) Limited was formed
in 2001 ond 1s the issuer’ company for the
Group's bonds, which are histed on the Luxernbourg
Bourse Déwr Cymru {(Financing} Limited, 1s
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, but s
monaged, contralled and resident in the UK for tox
purposes The company on-lends the proceeds of
any bond 1ssues to Dvr Cymru Cyfyngedig and all
of its activities were transferred to Dvir Cymiru Cyt

— DWr Cymru Customer Services Limited (as
subsidiary of Dvir Cymiru Cyfyngedig) previously
prowided income collechon and billing services to
Dwr Cymiu Cyfyngedig The company was made
dormant within the year and oll of it's achvihes
were fransferred to Dvr Cymru Cyfyngedig

— Hydro 1 Limited was acquired in 2015,
its principal actwity 1s production of energy

— Welsh Water Uhliihes Finonce Limited principal
actmty s financial intermediary

— It 15 the Group's intenhon to Iiquidate the
dormant entites Hydro 1 Limited, Dvar Cyrary
Customer Services Limited and Welsh Water
Uhlhes Finance Limited by 31 Decernber
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GOOD GOVERNANCE

As o company responsible for providing a wital public service, we understand that
how we are governed Is crucial to gaining the trust of our customers We believe
that strong Board leadership and management, in conjunchion with appropriate

committees including an Audit Committee and robust internal and external audit

funchions, are the pillars of good governonce

Glas Cymru continues to have a
clear diviston of responsibilities
at the head of the company,
demonstrated by a Board of
Directors made up of o majority
of Independent Non-Executive
Directors who constructively
challenge the management
team The Boaord 1s responsible
for promoting the long-term
success of the company, setting
the Group's strategic aims,
monitoring the performaonce

of management against the
strategic asms, advocaoting

goed governance, setting the
nsk appetite and ensuring that
effechive controls are in place in
the business

As a company hrmited by
guarantee, we counterbalance
the fact that we do not have
shareholders by having a
Membership with a clear and
effective governance role
Merbers are drawn from across
our supply area ond have a
range of backgrounds, skills

ond experience Members hold
the Board to account for the
stewardship of our assets and
for our key goal of providing o
very important and essential
public service to more than 3
million people i a manner which
will be sustainable for future
generations Membership is
personal and therefore Members
do not represent any particular
Group or stakeholder interest
They do not receve fees nor

do they have a finoncial stake

T2 CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE

In the business We believe this

independence facihtates robust
governance ond 1s a key feature
of our governance structure

Cur Members are mdmduals,
appointed by the Board but
selected by an independent
Member Selection Panel which s
required to maintain a bolanced
and diverse membership, broadly
reflective of the range of our
customer and other stakeholders
tnterests The independent Charr
of the Member Selection Panel 1s
Glyn Mathias, its other Members
are Arthur Walford and Menna
Richards

’

There are presently 73
independent Members of Glas
Cymry Under the Company's
Articles of Association each
Director i1s also @ Member During
2015-16 three Members stepped
down and four new Members
were appointed by the Member
Selection Panel

We hold an AGM and a second
Members' meehng to report

to Members and we also hold
twice yearly regionol Members’
meetings to provide a more
informal oppoertunity to gain
insrght into our working sites
and to meet local teams Qur
Members appoint the Directors
and the audrtors every year,
challenge the company on
rernuneration and satisfy
themselves that an appropriote
governance structure 1s In place
On 22nd February 2016 the

company held a formal Court
meething and Extraordinary
General Meeting which approved
resoluhons to effect a Scheme
of Arrangernent to omend the
Group Structure (as described
on poge 71)

A list of the independent
Members of Glas Cymruy,
together with our Membership
Policy and the Terms of
Reference of the Membership
Selection Pane), 1s published on
our website dwreymru com

Glas Cymruv complies with the
guidelines of the economic
regulotor and the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance
Code except for relations

with shaoreholders os we hove
members not shareholders

We have o simple structure
which we exploin each year in
our annual report We publish
our governance code, which
documents the framework we
employ to facilitate effective
rmanagement, on our website
Glas Cymru reports to the
Membership openly and honestly
and maintains an open dialogue
with Members where they are
invited and encouraged to put
their views to the company
throughout the year by
correspondence and twice yearly
aof Members' meetngs
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QUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Leadership

more Infermation page e

Accountability

more information page @

We are heoded by an effective Board which 1s
collectively responsible for the long-term success
of the company

There 1s o clear dwvision of responsibilihes ot the head
of the company between the running of the Board
and the executive responsibility for the running of the
company’s business No one indmdual hos unfettered
powers of decision

Qur chairman 1s responsible for leadership of the
Board and ensuring its effectiveness

Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge
and help develop proposals on strotegy

mare information page e

The Board and its cornmittees have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the company to enable them to
discharge therr respective duties ond responsibilities
effectively We regularly assess this as part of our
effectiveness raview

Effectiveness

Glas Cymru has a formal, ngorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Beard Directors receive a tallored programme
of induchon on joining and ongoing educative and
informative programmes on topics relevant to the
operation and governance of the business

Each Director undertakes an individual and Board
effectiveness review annually

All Directors cllocate sufficient time to the company
to discharge their responsibilities effechvely

We provide oll meeting matertals a week 1n advance

Qur Non-Executive Directors have access to the
Company Secretary and external advisars such as
the Reporter, auditors and remunerotion adwisors to
provide the Board with an external viewpoint

The Beoard undertakes a formal and ngorous annual
evaluation of its own performance and that of its
committees and indmdual Directors We undertake
an externally facilitated review every three years
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The Boord presents a fair, balanced and
understandable assessment of the company’s
posittion and prospects

The Boord determines the nature and extent of
the principal risks 1t 1s willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives

The Boord maintains sound nsk management and
internal control systems Risk management has been
an areq of focus this year

The Beoard has formaol and transparent arrangements
for considenng how they should apply the corporate
reporting, risk management and internal control
principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the compaony's auditors

All Directors stand for re-election by Members ot
each Annual General Meeting Each Non-Executive
Director holds office for a penod of three years which
may be extended up to nine years following careful
consideration as to the continuing independence of

the Director
more informohon poge @

Executive Directors' remuneration 1s designed to
promote the long-term success of the company

Remunerahion

Performance-related elements are transparent,
stretching and rigorously cpplied

There 1s a formal and transparent pracedure for
developing policy on executive remuneration and
for fixing the remuneration packages of indvidual
Directors No Director 1s involved in deciding his
or her own remuneration

Relations with shareholders  more information page e

As we do not have shareholders, we voluntarily apply
mony of the shareholder principles on governance
to our Members ond Investors We have regular
diclogue with Members and lnvestors

The Board 1s respansible for ensuning that o
saotisfactory dialogue takes place The Board use
general meetings to communicate with Members

The Company's Treasury team continues to ensure
that our mvestors are well infarmed, through quarterly
reports and the annual investor meeting 1n London,
as well os regular mnformal meetings The Board
receives a report following meetings with investors
and, where appropnote, tokes into account the

views expressed by investors on issues offecting

the Company
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ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Group's Board of Directors 1s collectively responsible for s long-term success
The Board sets the Group's strategic aims, monitors the perfermance
of management agotnst the strategic aims, ensures good governance, sets the nisk
appetite and ensures that effective controls are In place in the business
The Boards of Glas Cyrmru and Dwr Cymru Cyfyngedig (the hcence holder/
operating company) are identical which ensures a unifted approach

There 1s a schedule of matters reserved for the Board under which
the Boord retains ulhmote responsibility for areas such as strategy,
nsk and many other decisions The schedule of matters reserved i1s
penodically reviewed and updated and 1s availoble on our website
glascymru com

Board governance and leadership 1s essential o mantaining the
confidence of our customers The Execuiive team 1s open and
transperent in ts communications with the Board, in order to
support this

The Board has overall responsibility for the ocperation and
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal controls and nsk
management The system of controls 1s designed to manage the
nisk of failure to achieve business objectives, and comprises audited
policies and procedures aimed at identfying ond managing the
most significont risks faced by the business

In considering the development of the system of controls, the
management team reviews the motenality and the relatve cost
benefit associated with each identified sigrificant nsk The internal
control systemns are designed to provide reasonable assurance
against misstaterments, loss or failure

The process to review the effechveness of internal contral includes
discussion with management on significant sk 1ssues and o review
of plons for, and results from, internal and external audit The Audrt
Committee reports the results of its review to the Boord which then
draws its collective conclusion on the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls In fulfillng this responsibility, the Board considers
regular reports from the Audit Committee, Qualty and Environment
Commuttee and from management, and relies on its routine
monitenng of key performence indicators and monthly reports of
financial ond operohonal performonce This enables the Boord to
review the effectveness of the infernal contral system dunng the
course of the year

As part of the work undertaken to review its internal controls on an
annual basis, the Board olso considers the effectiveness of its system
of internal controls with regard to how these have operated in respect
of the specific challenges faced by the company over the course

of the previous reporting pencd

T4 CORPCRATE GOVERMANCE

Role of the Charrman

The Charman of our Board plays a key
role 1n hefping to ensure a unified Board,
factitating meetings, and ensuring good
governance

Meeting agendas are agreed in
consultation with the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary, although any
Director may request that an item be
added to the agenda

At least once a year, the Chairman
rmeets with the Non-Executive Directors
without the Executive Directors present,
to consider the performance of the
Executve Directors and to provide
feedback

Generally, the Chairman also meets
indmdually with each Board Member to
review individual performance during the
year Robert Ayhing 1s our current charr

Robert Ayling will step down from the
Board in July 2016 He hos beena
valuoble Member of the Board since
2008 and has brought his considerable
experience of legal, government and
regulotory matters to bear to enable him
to challenge and support the Executive
tearn effechvely

Role of the Sentor Independent Director
The Semor Independent Director acts
as the bndge between the Charrmon
and Non-Executives and liaises with
our Members The Senior Independent
Director meets with the other
Non-Executive Directors and the
Executive Directors on an annual

basis to review the performaonce of

the Charrman Mennao Richards 1s the
currert Senior Independent Director
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Role of the Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors are appointed
o the Board in accoardance with our
Duversity Policy, to contnibute their
expertise and provide independent
challenge and ngour in the Board's
deliberctions

Role of the Chief Execuhve

Beyond matters reserved for the
Boord, the Chief Executive has primary
responsibtlity for setting the company's
strategy and manoging the doy to day
offairs of the company The Chief
Execute 1s supported by the Executive
team of Welsh Water in implernenting
strategy and day to doy management

Role of the Company Secretary

The Company Secretary 1s responsible
for supporting the Chairman in ensurning
that the Group demonstrates good
governance The Compony Secretary
team 1s ovailable to the Non-Executive
Directors and works fo ensure thot there
are good information flows to the Boord
and its commmittees and between semor
maonagement and the Non-Executive
Directors

Appointments

The company's Articles of Association
empower the Board to appotnt new
Directors The Boord 1s committed to
ensunng the nght bolance of skills and
experence ond diverse backgrounds
Directors must display independent
Jjudgement and an ability to challenge
constructively The search for Boord
candidates 1s conducted by the
Nominations Committee on the basis
of ment, against objective critena set
for the role, ond with due regard to
matntaining an appropriate balance
of skills and expernence and to the
importance of ensuring diversity

of representation on the Board

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of
appointment are made available for
public inspection upon request

to the Company Secretary

Glas Cyrmru 1s committed to promohng
diversity, non-discrimination, and
equality of cpportunity In the way we
treat employees, prospective employees,
visitors, clients, customers and suppliers
The Board has decumented its
approach to recruitment in @ Diversity
Policy which it 1s comrritted to following
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lnduction and development

Directors undergo o personalised induction process, including on
information pack, site visits and one to one meehngs with senior
manogers The Board and committees undertake training and
briefing sessions os appropriate 1n 2015-16 our Board received
Remuneration Committee and heolth ond saofety training This year
the Board has held site visits and meetings around the business,
visiting Llandegfedd Visitor Centre (June), Elan Valley reservairs
(July), Ty Awen—Allionce Copital Partners centre {October), Five
Fords Wastewater Treatment Works and Renewable Energy park
(December), Sluvad high pressure pipe repairs fraining ng and
Llandegfedd Visitor Centre agamn (March)

Length of service

Rabsert Ayling April ‘08

Msnna Richorcds November 10

[ T T

Grobom Edwords Octobar 13

Joonna Kenrick Novembaer 15

T T T 1T T T ..

Alastaoir Lyoss Moy '16

LT[ T T T T T T8

Stephen Paimer Octobaer ‘0%

Anna Wolker Mareh ‘11

[ T T

08 o9 10 n 12 3 " 15 %
YEAR JOINED
Gender diversity
Exacutive Non-Exscutive Directors Company
Directors {including the chalrmon) Secretory

iie ieneRer ¢

The Board 1s commutted to having an approprate level of diversity
across afl levels of the business, and in particular with regard

to the representation of women, and we meet the Davies 2010
Report suggested targets at Board level Currently, 30% of our
Non-Executive Directors are women, 30% of the Executive team
and 29 4% of the Group'’s wider Leadership Teamn are women
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Balance and independence

The Board and Committees have an
appropnate composition to undertake
thetr responsibiities effectively

The Board keeps its mambership

and that of s Committees under
review to ensure that an aceceptable
balance 1s maintained The Board

1s sotisfied that all Directors have
adequate fime to commit to

therr role and that there are no
cross-Directorships or significont
business interests in common between
members of the Board

All of our Non-Executve Directors
are deemed to be independent

in accordance with the Corporate
Governonce Code and free from any
business or other relatonship which
could compromise their independent
Judgement Robert Ayling was an
Independent Non-Executive Director
untl his appointment as Chairman

in 2010

In order to ensure that we have an
effective Board, we undertake a review
once a year to provide opportunity for
continuous iImproverment Our Board and
committees discuss the results in detad
and agree o plan for improvement
Areas of focus in 2015-16 were strategy
and nsk reparting As a result, the Boaord
inshgated an annual strategy doy and
undertook detalled nsk reviews, including
a facilitated session to consider potential
strategic challenges and opportunities
foacing the business

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors seek re-election every year

by Members and any Director appointed
during the year seeks election ot the
next AGM Accordingly, Joanne Kenrick
formoally seeks elechon as a new
Director, having been appointed with
effect frarm November 2015 Alastarr
Lyons will also seek electon os a new
Drrector, having been appainted with
effect from May 2016
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Board Meehngs

In 201516 the Board held nine scheduled meetings and

two additional meetings Our scheduled meetings are held
over two days to give the Board the time it needs to review
progress against strategic objectives and to meet key business
manogers In the past year, the strategic issues focused

on by the Board have included

— 25-year strategic plan,

—the challenges and opportunities highlitghted by the
proposals set out in Ofwat's Water 2020 consultation,

—the nsks and opportunihies presented by the limited
opening of the market for retall services for some
non household customers of componies wholly marnly
in Wales from Aprl 2017,

— commercial opportunities and the benefits of restryctunng
the business to allow some mited commercial achvity
Inked to our core services of water cycle management,

—annual and rolling five year business plans for the business,
— talent review and succession planning,

— sustainable and resilient investment in light of climate
chonge issues, and

——the oppertunity to purchase long feases over Lisvane
and Llarmishen reservoirs in north Caordiff

Attendance

All Directors are expected to attend Board and Committee
meetings for which they are a Member When a Director 1s unable
to participate in o meeting the Chairman will seek their views on

key itemms ahead of the meeting so that these can be added to the

discussion There were no Finance Committee meehngs this year

Board Audlt  Remunemtion Nominations QEC
Committes Commttes Committes
Total no of meatings N 5 3 2 8
Robert Aylng® 0 5 3 1 7
Peter Bridgewater n - - - -
Grohom Edwards 10 2 . 1 3
Chnis Jones mn - - 2 8
Joanne Kennck 5° - - . 2
Stephen Patmer n - - 2 8
Peter Perry n - - - 8
Menno Richards n - 3 1 -
Anna Watker n 4 3 2 -
John Warren n 5 3 2 -
Jomas Strechon 3 v ™ - -

* Robert Afling wos on pury service in Novernber ond Decemnber 2015
*Joanne Kennck jowned y Novernmber 2015

*Jomes Strachan stepped down from the Boord in July 2015
*Joonne Kennck joned QEC in February 2016
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Conflicts of Interest

Under UK company law
conflict situations must be
authonsed in advance to avoid
a Director being 1n breach of
their statutory duty All Directors
must iImmaedtately disclose
conflicts, or potential conflicts,
of interest In addion all
Directors sign an annuol
decloration and disclose therr
external appointments

Persons of Significant Control
From & Apnl 2016 we have
maintained o Register of People
with Significant Control to comply
with the new requirements of the
Small Business, Enferpnse and
Employment Act 2015 (2015
Act) The compony has identfied
registrable relevant legal entities *
(RRLES) within our Group
structure

External Appointments

of Executive Directors

Peter Bridgewater 15
Non-Executive Director

of Ebico Limited, for which
he 15 separately rermunerated

Commuttee written
terms of reference
gloscymru com
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The Role of Board Committees

In arder to ensure the Boord fulfils its role effectively, certam
responsibilihes of the Board are delegated to Comrmittees, which play
an important role in working with management to ensure our business
15 financially strong, well governed and nisks are identifted and mitgated

Each committee 1s chared by a Non-Executive Director and provide
regulor reports to the Board

Each committee of the Board has written terms of reference
(avallable on our website), which have been approved by the Board,
which summanse the responsibilities delegated to it

Cur principal Board committees are

Board
Chared by Robert Aping

Audit Nominations Finance Quality and Env. Ramuneraticn
Committee Committes Commitien Committee Commitee
Chared by Chawed by Charred by Chorred by Chared by

John Warren Robaert Ayling Robart Ayling Stephen Palmer Anna Walker
Report onpoge  Reportonpage  Reporionpoge Reporfonpage Report on page

@ © & © o

D Cymiru Executive team Meeting
Chaired by Chns Jones

Thus 15 the management committee of the company maode up of 10 Duectors
{induding the three Executve Directors)

Numerous monagement comrmittees feed up to Dvir Cymy Executve Meeting

Upon joining o Comrrittee, Directors are provided with an appropnate
induchon and are offered ongoing training and education opportunihes
After each meeting, a summary of matters discussed i1s reported

to the Board, and committee minutes are circulated to Directors

Each committee can engage the services of such advisors as it needs
to fulfil its responsibiliies

In oddihen to chainng or beng o member of o committee, each
Non-Executve Director commits additional me and input on the
following matters

Rabert Ayling Government ond regulation

Groham Edwords Operahons

Joanne Kennck Markehing, commercial and custormer senaces
Stephen Polmer Public Health

Menno Richards Communicahons and Member relohons

Anna Walker Custormer senace, reguiohon ond remunerahon
John Worren Finance and audit
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Intemnal contro!

The Board has overall responsibility for the operation
and effectiveness of the Group's systern of internal
controls and risk management The systern of
controls 15 designed to manage the nisk of faillure to
achieve business objectives, and compnses audited
policies ond procedures aimed ot identifying ond
manoging the most significant risks faced by the

A detailled review of risk

business
availoble on poge @

In considenng the development of the system of
controls, the Executive team reviewed the matenality
and the relative cost benefit associoted with each
identified sigrificant nsk The internal control systems
are designed fo provide reasonable assurance
against misstaternents loss or fallure

The key features of our systemn are typical fora
business of our scale and complexity They include

— dentfication of key strategic risks and thewr
opportunities facing the business, scale
management to an acceptable level

——==reviewing emerging and current issues at
meetings of the Executwe and the Quality and
Ervironment Commuttee,

— clear managernent accountabihity for nsk
management, supported by regular nisk reporting
to the Board, the Quality and Environment
Committee ond the Audd Committee,

— considerchon of acceptable risk parameters set
by the Board, particularly in the context of the
business planming process for the purposes of the
next five yeor penod,

— implementing controts thot recognise that the
nature and balonce of nsk changes and evolves,

— implermenting procedures that govern the
approval ond control of major tems of copital
expenditure, the acquisihon and disposal
of material assets, and comrmitrment to any
arrangement that could give nse to o matengl
lability; and

—ensuning that finanaial systems and procedures
are fit for purpose for preparing management
ond financial accounts
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The Board receves assurance from independent
work by Welsh Water's technical advisor

(Block & Veatch) and from the programme

of internal auvdit, the mojor findings from which
are reviewed of the Audit Committee and the
Quality and Environment Committee

A strategic nsk update 1s considered at each
meeting of the Boord and a strategic review of nsk
1s considered twice a year under o process chawed
by the Chief Executive, who submits on update to
the Board of the Executive team's view of the key
strategic nsks facing the business so that this can
be considered by the Board os a whole

The process to review the effectiveness of internal
controt includes discussion with management on
significant nisk 1ssues and o review of plons for, and
results from, internal and external audit The Audit
Committee reports the results of its review to the
Board which then drows s collective conclusion on
the effectiveness of the system of internal controls

In fulfiling this responsibility, the Boord considers
pernodic reports from the Audit Committee,

Quality and Environment Cornmittee and from
management, and relies on its routine monitoring of
key performance indicators and monthly reports of
finoncial and operational performance This enables
the Board to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system throughout the course of the year
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REPORTS FROM THE COMMITTEES

A REPCRT FROM The role of this Comrmittee 1s to ensure that plons ore in place for orderly

succession for appamtment to the Board We therefore lock at the size,
THE CHAIRMAN OF structure and composition of the Board {and the skills, knowledge and ‘
THE NOMINATIONS expernence around the Board table) and recormmend candidates for ‘
COMMITTEE Board appointment

This year the Neminations Committee appotnted o Sub-Committee,
Chairman Robert Ayling chaired by me, to oversee on open and transparent process to idenhfy

o new Non-Executive Director The recruitment consultant firm, Odgers
Berndtson' assisted in this process, and Joanne Kenrick was appointed

Members. ecch of the as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 November 2015
Non-Executve Directors This appomntment will be subject fo confirmation by the Members
and the Chief Executive ot the AGM n July

Later 1n the year, o separate Sub-Committee was appointed, chaired by
Professor Stephen Polmer, to engage in an open and transparent process
to identfy o new Chairman to succeed me with effect from the AGM In
July 2016 Alestar Lyons CBE was appointed os o Non-Executive Diractor
following o process which wos assisted by Soxton Bamfylde? Subject o the
Members confirming his appointment as a Non-Executive Directer ot the
AGM in July, he will be appotnted as Charman for o three yeor penod

The Group 1s committed to promoting diversity, non-discniminaton,
and equality of opportunity in the way we treat employees, prospective
employees, visitors, clients, customers and suppliers

The Board rmonitors succession planning ot a senior management level
and has documented its approach to recrurtment in a diversity policy
which it 1s committed to following

R *
1 Odgers Berndfson wera apponted following Aj \

a procurernent process and hove no other

connechion wih the Grove Robert Ayling
2 Soxton Bomtyde were apponted following Charr of the Nominations Committee

o procurermnent process and have no other

connection wath the Group 3 June 2016
FINANCE COMMITTEE The Finance Commuttee 15 authonsed to approve financing and treasury-
REPORT reloted transochions where o decision s required between meetings

of the Board In 2015- 2016, the Finance Commuttee did not meet

Chairman Robert Ayling

R&.«J« b,
Members Peter Bridgewater, A“

Chnis Jones and John Warten Robert Ayling
Charr of the Finance Committee

3 June 2016
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

Chatrman  John Warren

Members. Robert Ayling,
Anna Walker and Graham Edwards

The Audit Committee met on five
occasions dunng 2015-16 As in
previous reporting penods, during
the eorly port of the financiol
reporting year 2016-17, the Audit
Committee met on o further two
occasions to recewve the report from
the external ouditors on the 2015-16
annual report, focussing 1In particulor
on the key 1ssues of jJudgerment

in the finoncial statements, with

a wview to ensunng that the Annual
Report for 2015-16 presents a ‘farr,
balanced and understandable’
picture of the company's financral
status, In accordance with the
Septernber 2014 revised UK
Corporate Governance Code

The Audit Commuttee 1s supported
by the external auditors Until
Septemnber 2015 the appointed
audrtors were PwC Following a
formal tender process led by the
Charr of the Audit Committee,
KPMG were appointed from 2nd
September 2015 for a penod of up
to five years

The Audit Committee, and the
external auditors, focus particular
attention, ot each reporhng penod,
on those areas in the financial
statermnents which have the highest
level of management judgment
applied to them or are considered
to be the most inherently nsky For
the end of year financial statements,
these were as follows

Classification of costs batween
operating expendrture and caprtal
expendrture

The company mcurs a high level
of expenditure on fixed ossets,
including repair and maintenance,
ond enhancement costs There s o
high degree of Judgement involved
in determining whether costs, both
inthal and subsequent expenditure,
on both infrastructure and non-
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infroshructure ossets, meet the
relevant cnteno for capitalisatron
The leve! of capital expenditure
decreased in the year to £246m
(2015 £302m) which was expected
given the reduced capital projects
actmty dunng the first yeor of the
investment penod The Committee
were satisfied that the jJudgements
made ond the amaounts capitalised
were appropriate

Prowvision for impairment of trade
receivables

The level of provision required

1s based on an assessment

of historical cash collection
performance, having regard to
ongoing economic uncertainty

and the reform of the state

welfare system A recent minor
increqse in cash collections as

a result of ongoing inhatives to
wmprove performance was also
taken into account In making its
recommendation to the Audit
Committee, management examined
cosh collection performance

for measured and unmeasured
custorners dunng 2015-16,
concluding that Welsh Water could
ultimately expect to collect some
48% of {non billed in advance)
debt outstanding ot 31 March 2016
{2015 475%) Considenng all the
histoncal collechon information, the
Audit Committee agreed that Welsh
Water's bad debt provision be set
at £85 milion (2015 £79million)
which generated a bad and doubtful
debt charge for the yeor {"trade
recevables impairment”) of £27
million (2015 £29 milion)

Retirament benefit obligations
Calculotion of the defined benefit
pension hability for inclusion in the
balance sheet in accordance with
IAS 19 requires the use of two key
finonciol estimates, namely the
discount rate fo be apphed fo the
future lichilihes ond future inflation
of those Liabilites The assurmed
discount rate was denved from the
yields of AA- rated corporate bonds,
and the assumed level of inflotion
was determined hoving regord o
the difference between the yields
on fixed interest and index-hnked
government bonds as well s other
sources of inflation forecosting

The committee discussed these
assumphons with KPMG who

noted that the assumptions were
within an acceptable range, olbert
being slightly more optimishc thon
therr central assumptions These
generated an |AS 19 and balance
sheet deficit of £54 million, an
increase of £20 million since Morch
2015, lorgely as a result of changes
in the discount rate, reflecting o
reduchon in expectahons for long
term interest rates The Committee
concluded that the ossumptions
used were acceptable for the
purposes of the accounts

Derivative financial instruments
The farr values of derivative financial
instruments are provided by swop
counterparties The Bloomberg
financial dataset platform ollows
management to perform an
independent valuation of these
contracts which 1s then compared
to the counterparty confirmations
Given the inherent judgements

in the long ferm assumptions
associated with these instruments,
the Audit Committee noted that
two iImmaterial adjustments had
been made to the onginal valuahons
ansing from the KPMG audit
procedures The total balance sheet
lability ot 31 March 2016 armounted
to £426 milion (2015 £422
millen} The Committee agreed
that this was o reasonable figure

to include In the accounts

Revenue Recognihen including
accrued income on metered sales
Revenue represents the income
recevable for services provided,
where services have been provided
but no nvoice raised an estimate
of the value 15 accrued and included
n revenuve From March 2015

the new billing system Rapid has
calculated the measured income
accruol on an indwidual meter basis
At 31 March 2016 the eshmote Is
£649m, o decrease of £17m since
the prior yeor end Maonagement
reviews the ossumptions used in
the accrual mcluding volume
eshtmates and charges applied,
ond the Committee was satisfred
that the approach taken wos
consistent and acceptable for the
purposes of the accounts
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Other matters

The committee also considered
non-recurring events, most notably
the management decision to
revalue the asset base to Ofwat's
Regulatory Capital Value ("RCV")
during the year This has resulted

In a £1,248m revaluation to fixed
assets dunng the year, representing
management’s best eshmate of the
value of the osset base as ot

31 March 2016

Other achvihes of the Audit
Committee

Dunng 2015-16, as in previous years,
two of the meetings of the Audit
Committee focused on reviewing
the Group's preliminary and intenm
financial results and related areas of
Judgement ond accounting policy

The Audit Committee continues
to rely on the active role played by
the Business Assurance (internol
audit) funchon The Committee
reviews and opproves the Business
Assurance plan of work for the
year and reviews progress against
the plon The Business Assurance
function also works closely with
the external auditors and the
Complionce team

Dunng 2015-16, the Committee
also used private meelings to review
nveshgations of several 1ssues
raised by whistleblowers from within
ond outside the business, using

the whistleblower policy, which
protects indwiduals making relevant
disclosures The outcome of the
ensuing investigations has led to
changes in structure and processes,
and in some coses there have been
associated disciplinary mvestigations
reatting to serious fallures to follow
key company policies

The role of Business Assurance 1s
to provide assurance and to advise
the Executive team and the Board
Committees on the extent to which
systerns of internal control ond
arrangements to manage risk ore
appropriate and operate effectively
The Audit Commuttee also receves
independent advice and assurance
from Welsh Water's Reporter

The Reporter provides independent
assurance in relation to the accuracy
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and completeness of regulatory
reporhng During 2015-16 this was
Black & Veatch However, Jacobs
were appointed as the company's
Reporter for an inihal penod of

3 years from the 14th of Apnl and
they have been involved in providing
ndependent assurance on the
processes ossoctated with reviewing
the non-financial regulatory data
contained within the 2015 -16
Annual Performance Report
Attenhon has focused in parhicular
on the internal assurance processes
put in place to support reporting
aganst the company’s Measures
of Success contained within the
PR14 Final Deterrrunation

Other topics reviewed by the

Committee 1n 2015-16 included

—IT disaster recovery
arrangements,

—— progress of the business
plan for IT secunty, including
reviewing the publicly ovalable
informaton for reported IT
secunty incrdents affecting
other businesses,

—— controls in place to ensure
accurate ond complete
reporhing to regulators,

— controls and processes in place
to ensure sk monagement
across the business,

— treasury policies and controls,
including changes to bank
rmandates to reflect the
changes to the Group's
corporate structure,

— the terms of reference for the
Audit Committee, including
changes necessary as a
result of chonges in corporate
governance best practice

Qur policy 1s that the external
auditors will not generally be used
for internal audit serices, and that
all non-audit work above £250,000
will generally be the subject of a
pnor competitive tender process

in the event thot the auditors
provide non-oudit services, auditor
objectivity and independence

15 safeguarded by meaons of o
formal process of approval by the
Audit Committee, or In an urgent
situation, by the Charr of the Audit

Committee The figures for audit
and non-audit work poid to each of
PwC ond KPMG, respectively, duning
2015-16 appear on page 125 of the
Financial Staterments sechon

This year, cpproximately £268000
{opproximately 61% of the totol
statutory audit fee earned by the
auditors) refoted to non-audt work
These fees were incurred primanty
as o result of work undertaken on
the iImplementation of the retall plan
in the retall dwision of the business
{PwC) end pensions consultancy
ond support for market opening
assurance processes (KPMG)

In each case, the Audit Committee
or the Chair of Audit Committee
was consulted before the instruction
was gven to the audit firm

Audtt plans for both internal and
external audit have been cpproved
far 2016-17 ond are focused on
those areas identified as being

of greatest rnisk to the bustness
The Committee hos also met
privately with both the external
auditors and the Head of Business
Assurance

On the basis of this work, ond
regular meetings with management,
we have concluded that external
and internal oudit ond the Group's
other processes of internal control
continue to operate effechively and
independently

The annual Board effectiveness
review for 2015-16 wos extrernely
positive In relation to the Audit
Committee, but suggestions for
improving nsk management and
invehing operational teams in
dewising the internal audit strategy
hove been followed up during

the year The Committee also
regulorly reviews the effectiveness
of the external auditors, and
considers ways ta improve focus
and value for money

John Warren
Charr of the Audit Committee

3 June 20156
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REPORT FROM
THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE QUALITY AND
ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE (QEC)

Choirman Stephen Palmer

Members Robert Ayling, Graham
Edwards, Joanne Kennck, Chns
Jones, Peter Perry

Independent Scientific Advisors
Steve Brown (Environment),
Andrew Dovies (Water)

The purpose of the Committee
15 to identfy and manage nsks
to the buswness ansing from
operational, environmental

and Health & Safety related
Issues The Committee provides
oversight of the monogement
and rattigotion of these nisks
on behalf of the Board and
moritors the operchonal
performance of the company
on a quarterly basis

The Commuttee 1s responsible for

— ensuring that the company
fulfils its public health
responsibiihes for the
provision of safe, clean
dnnking water and waste
water sanitation 1n ine with
all statutery standards

—reviewing and monitering
the company’s H&S
performance and
tmprovement plons

— inferpreting and
understonding the data
collated by the operational
teams in o way which informs
nsk management and future
strategic planming
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— ensuring arrangements for
risk management are fit for
purpose 1o identfy key nsks
promptly and manage them
appropnately

—— assessing whether the
compoany has oppropriate
strategies and resources
to meet its statutory
oblgations

— reviewing the company’s
plans for key areas such as
AMP investment proposals
for water and waste water
service areas

— encouraging the company
to assess ond adopt
appropriate new technology
or other innovaticn that will
Improve service to customers
and the envircnment

— ensuring the company has
adequate emergency and
security arrongements in
place 1n kine with current
statutory guidance such os
CNI and SEMD standords

There are eight meetings of

the Committee each year

ond these are equally dvided
between a focus on monitonng
performance and reviewing
strategy In detall The Committee
meets af various sites across

the company's supply area In
2015-16, these sites included
Llandegfedd reservorr, Elon
Valley, Glaslyn water analysis
lobaoratory, Five Fords waste water
treatment works, and Sluvad
water treatrment works to visit the
volve operation test rig

QEC meets key stokeholders

on behalf of the Boord, especiclly
serror personnel from regulators
such as the DWI] and NRW

QEC reviews the detall of
long-term operational strotegies
Water and Environment 25 year
visions were presented to QEC
in Decemnber 2015

The Comrmittee also reviews the
findings of Investigations nto any
water quahty, environmental or
customer service fallure Serious
lncident Reviews are undertaken
by the Chief Executive and Chief
Operahng Officer who meet with

the relevont Managing Cirector
for those fallures deemed senous
by the Committee A report s
produced detailing root cause,
lessons learnt and achions to
follow Dunng 2015-16 Senious
incident Reviews were cornted out
in respect of inaidents ot Cwm
Dulyn, Llyswen and Broomy Hill

The committee maintains
oversight of the programmes
of nsk manogement and of
internal and external audits
The committee 1s responsible
for reviewing operotional nsks
an our nsk reqgister

The topics covered by the
Committee in 2015-16 included
~—water quality

— Mean Zonal Comphance
1ssues

—high pressure pipelines
— hygienic practices

— Customer Minutes Lost
—— customer service

— leakage

— externo! flooding

—— health & safety 1ssues
—— Event Duration Monitoring
— renewable energy

— environmental performance
ond considering the impact
of likely future developments

— innovation
—data analysis

Professor Stephen Palmer
Charr of the Quality ond
Environment Commuittee

3 June 2016
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Chair- Anna Walker’

Members Menno Richards, John Warren, Robert Ayling

Cn beholf of the Boaord, | arn pleosed fo present my
first Directors' Remuneration Report since becoming
Chair of the Remuneraton Committee in July 2015
Since appointment, | have scught to ensure, via the
provision of formal fraining and informal discussions,
that the Commuttee fully understand therr role

and responsibilities, best prachce remuneration
governance and the incentive arrangements
currently in place for the Executive Directors and the
wider execuhve team Going forward, we will seek
opportunities to simplify remuneration arrangements
and also take into account the pensions changes that
are currently iImpachng all members of the Group's
defined benefit pension scheme, the DCWW Pension
Scheme

The 2015-16 Directors' Rermuneration Report sets
out details of the remuneration policy for Executive
and Non-Executive Directors, describes how the
rermuneration policy 1s timplemented and discloses
the amounts paid relating to the year ended

31 March 2016

In ine with best practice, the Directors’ Remunerahon
Report includes the following

— a Remunerotion Policy Report (pages 86-88)
Qur Remuneration Policy receved binding
Mermber approval at the 2015 Annual General
Meeting The Committee I1s satisfied that the
policy remomns approprate and fit for purpose
and intends that it will cover a three year penod
to the 2018 Annual General Mesting,

——an Annual Report on Remuneration
{pages 89-95) which describes how the
Remuneration Policy was implemented for
2015-16 and how we intend to apply it for
2016-17 The Annual Report an Rermunerahon
together with this annual staterment will be put
to an advisory Member vote at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting
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REMUNERATICN PRINCIPLES

The Committee has agreed o set of overarching
prnnciples to be opplied in the context of the
consideration of remunerahon policy 1ssues as
these affect the Group These principles provide
the structure for how we design and implerment the
remunerahion policy for the Executive Directors ond
the wider executive team

—— remuneration should reward/incentivise the long
term interests of the compony and refiect s
agreed future strategic approach,

—remuneration should align the interests of
Cirectors and employees with the compony's
customers,

— remuneration should be focussed on the issues
of key concern to the company—water ond
environmental quality, customer service and
financial performance,

— remuneration should reflect Dvr Cymiru's aim
to be one of the best performing companies
in the sector,

- rermuneration targets should be stretching
both in relation to past performonce ond to
other compontes in the sector and should be
demonstrably robust While some targets are
annual, they should also align with the company's
longer term strategic and regulatory objectives,

— remunerahion is intended fo Incentivise
management n the absence of shareholders
and share options,

—— rernunerahon should be far and competitive
both in relotion to the sector ond internally so
as to attract and retawn hugh calibre employees,

— a significant proportion of remuneration should
be vanable so as to achieve the night balonce
in relotion to incentvising risk taking,

——the remunerction structure should be sufficiently
clear so that those offected by it understond
what it I1s arming to ochieve,

—when formulohing remuneration orrangements for
the Executive Directors and the wider Dwr Cymiru
Executive feam, the Committee will consider the
rernuneration of the employee base across the
business ond broader secial, environmental ond
governance 1ssues, ond

— remuneration will be transparent to Glas Cymru
Members and subject to therr regular approval
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PERFORMANCE AND REWARD

FOR 2015-16

Remuneration paid to the Executive
Directors in respect of the financial

year ended 31 March 2016 was

os follows

—a base salary {which had been
increased by 15% in Apnl 2015)
plus pension or equivalent ond
some modest benefits,

— under the Annual Vanable
Pay Scheme {AVPS) 2015-16
owards hove been mode
equivalent to 26 7% of base
salary for performance against
the Customer and Complhance
element of the scherme, 276%
for Operating Cost Performance
and between 16% to 17% against
Strategic (Annual Focus) and
Personal objectives, moking a
total award of between 70 3%
and 71 3% of base salary
This compares with total award
of 79 4% of salary for
performonce in 2014-15, and

——under the Long Term Vanoble
Pay Scherme 2015 (LTVPS),
awards may be made under
the performonce pernods for the
two elements of the scheme
Customer Service and Custemer
Volue {see page 90} 2015-16
wos the first year of the AMP6
five-year plan Welsh Water's
ranking in the Ofwat SIM league
table for 2015-16 will not be
known uati loter this summer
However, it 1s forecast that Welsh
Water will be ranked 2nd ond
o provisional award of 22 5%
of salary 1s being made under the
Customer Service Award, which
1$ colculated on a rolling three
year average Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM} (See page 92),

— for the customer value element
of the scheme measured for the
year to 31 March 2016, a payment
of 24% of salory has been made

1 Jomes Strachan was Char of the Remuneration
Commmuttee until he stepped down os a Non
Executrve Director on 3ed July 2015
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IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY
FOR 201617

Our Remuneration Policy atms to align executive rermunerotion
with the implementation of the Company's strategy to

deliver the best possible outcomes for our customers and to
protect the environment It shows clearly how remuneration

1s linked to performance both annually and over the five year
regulotory period

Key points in relation to the implementation of remuneration
policy for Executive Directors for the finonciol year ending
31 March 2017 are

——salanes were increased by ¥ 5% 1n Apnl 2016 This 1s the some
os the 1 5% general pay award receved by employees,

—under the AVPS the maximum that can be earned in 2016-17
remains at 100% of salary The Scheme will continue to focus
on custormer, compliance, cost ond personal objectives, as well
as o number of other critical measures of success, and

—under the LTVPS the overall maximum that can be earned in
the AMPE five year regulatory penod 1s unchanged ot 300%
of salary {1e 60% per annum) Half of the LTVPS will remain
dependent on customer service ond half on custormer value

The Committee 1s satisfied that, whilst the remunerahon
arrangerments include varable elements linked to performance, ‘
the Policy does not encourage undue risk taking, which 1s
tnappropriate 1n ight of the risk profile of the Company

The incluston of withholding and recovery provisions 1n cur
incentive arrangernents further mihgates nsk The balance of
short and long-term incentives promotes o performance culture
and ensures that remuneration levels rise and foll depending on
achievernent against the key performance mndicators (KPIs) of the
business The inclusion of variable elements of pay also ensures
that the Policy 1s sufficiently competitive to attract and retain high
calibre employees

Further details on how our Remunerahon Policy funchons and
how It 15 iImplemented In practice can be found in the Policy Report
ond Annual Report on Remuneration that follow

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Committee values dialogue with Glas Members and other
stakeholders on the issue of executve remuneration The Annual
Report on Remuneration and this annual statement will be subject
te an advisory vote by Members ot the forthcorming Annuol
General Meeting

Cinnoe wedkes

Anna Walker
Charr of the Rermunerotion Commutiee

3 June 2016

This Remuneration Report hos been prepared in accordance with the provisions of schedule
8 to the Large and Medium sized Compantes and Groups [Accounts and Reports)
[Amendment) Regulations 2013 and s fully compliont with provisions of The UK Corpercta
Genamonce Coda (the Governance Code’)
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POLICY REPORT

Key parts of the Policy Report which was approved by
Members at the 2015 Annual General Meeting have
been included again in this report for the purposes of
clanty and transparency The onginal Policy Report,
approved at the 2015 Annual General Meeting, con be
found on pages 76-78 in the 2015 Report and Accounts
on the Company's website (dwrcymru com)

Remunerahon Policy

The principles and framework of the current
Remuneration Policy were approved by Members
at the Annual General Meeting on 3 July 2015
and becarme effective from that date

The Policy aims to align executive remuneration with
the implementation of the Company’s strategy to
deliver the best possible outcomes for our customers
and to protect the environment it shows clearly

how remuneration i1s nked to performance both
annuolly and over the five year regulatory period thot
commenced in Apnl 2015 {'the AMP6 pencd')

Thus 1s achieved by paying remuneration at levels
which are sufficiently compentive to recruit and
retain high calibre employees whilst ensuring that
remuneration packages are structured so as to
discourage inappropnate rnisk taking

The Policy 1s delvered by

— sething levels of base salary and total
remuneration thaot {when assessed penodically
against market benchmarking) are considered
to be foir and competitive having regord to an
indviduol's expenence and responsibibity,

— encouraging improved performance by having
a significant proportion of totol remuneration
being delvered via variable pay—although the
rnajornity of the target packoge 1s base solary
to ensure that executives are not encouraged
to take inoppropnate nsk, and

—focusing incentives on the relative performonce
of Welsh Water—based on independent
information pubhshed by Gfwot, the Drinking
Woater Inspectorate, Natural Resources Wales,
the Environment Agency and the Consumer
Council for Water—thereby promoting the objective
of proeducing sector-leading performance in
o transparent and accountable woy

The Remuneration Committee remains schsfied
that, whilst the Remuneration Policy includes varoble
elements linked to performance, the Policy does

not encourage nsk taking which 1s inappropnate 1n
Irght of the nsk profile of the Company, and ensures
that remunerohon levels rise and foll depending on
performance The inclusion of vanable elements

of pay also ensures that the Policy 1s sufficiently
competitive to attract and retain high calibre
employees This in turn ensures thot it 1s well aligned
to the long term success of Welsh Water and the
interest of s customers
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When formulating the Remuneration Policy and the
implementation of it, the Remunerotion Committee
considers rernunerotion arrengements across the
business as a whole and considers the impoct of the
Pelicy in ight of broader social, environmental ond
governance 1ssues

The Company negohates salaries for the wider
workforce with three recognised trade unions via

a single table approach The Remuneration
Committee considers the agreed increase for the
wider employee base and also reviews market
prachce and conditions It should olso be noted thot
the Measures of Success and cost element used

1n the Executve Directors' AVPS are applied in o
similar way in variable poy arrangements across the
organisotion, promoting a unified business culture
and consistency i our performance assessment

The LTVPS 1s focussed on the long term strategic and
financial performance of Welsh Water, and 1s reserved
for the Executive Directors who are in a position

to influence such performance The Charr of the
Remuneration Committee discusses remuneration
1ssues with Members aof Members’ meehngs and
values their tnput (n helping to shape Welsh Water's
Remuneration Policy

Figure 1 provides o summaory of the components
constituting the Executive Directors' remuneration
packages as per Welsh Water's Remuneration Policy

For the avoidence of doubt, in approving this
Drectors’ Remuneration policy, authonty is given
to the Company to honour any commitrnents
entered into with current or former Directors that
have been disciosed in previcus Remuneration
Reports Detalls of ony payments to forrmer
Drrectors will be set out in the Annual Report

on Remunerohon os they anse as required under
the Rermuneration Regulations
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Figure 1 Components conthtuting the Executrve Directors’ hon pock

Purpase and Operation Opportunity Performance
link to strategy maetrics
Baose salary To help recruy, Normally revewed annually ond any increases Annual increases generally linked  None |
retain and appled with effact from 1 Apnl Rewview reftects to those of the wider workforce |
motivate —role, experlence and performance, though the Remuneration
high calibre —wider econormic condihions, Committee retain discretion to
emplayees —increases awarded throughout the rest award :rf:chosels“: ndniduols
of the brooder workforce, and above this level whera
appropnate
—takes periodic account of levels in other
utikiies in the wider market Current salaries are disclosed
in the Annual Report on
Remuneration
Banafits To provide Directors are entitied fo private health cover Volue of benefits 1s bosed on the  None
& market ond life insurance cost to the Compaony and 1s not
competitve The Chief Executve and the Chief Operating predefermined
benefits Cfftcer have o historic enhifernent to permonent
packoge to heatth insurance
help recruit
Ond retown DII’ECfoS dD not receve cOMpQny CQrs or car
employees allowonces
Healtheare Gther benefits such as relocohon expenses
benehts or trovel faccommodation allowances, moy be
promote offered as appropriate
business
continuity
Pension To help recrut The Chief Executive and the Chief Cperating Up to 1/45th of solary accrual for  None
and retain Officer parhicipote in the DCWW Defined Benefit  each year of pensionable service
high calibre Pension Scheme subject to maxmum of 2/3rds
employees Where confributions would exceed either the of final pensionable salary
Discrete post- lifehme or annual contribution imits provisicn Maximum employer contribution
retirernent 15 made by woy of an unfunded EFRBS to the DCWW Group Personal
plonming Normal retirement age of 60 Pension Plon of 11% providing
provision the employee contnbutes 6%
hew Executive Duectors are automatically oF more
enrolled in the DCWW Group Personal Pension
Plan with the opportunity to opt aut and receive
o cash allowance equnvalent to the prevolling
Employer contnbution
AVPS To Incentmse AVPS targets reviewed annually by the Meaxarmum AVP potentiat Meosures well
the annual Committee of 100% of salary for the aligned to
delvery of Targets designed To relote o areas of the achievernent of stretching the Business
strefching business over which executive hos particular performance condiions Plon themes
targets and control of Customer,
delivery of Compliance |
parsonal The outturn determined by the Remuneration and Cost with |
abjectves. Carmrruttes ofter the yeor end based on addiional annual |
performance agoinst torgets and ore focus and |
—paid as cash, personal targets
—not pensionable; See page 89

Clowback provisions apply in the following

croumstances

—restatement of occounts,

—moterial misrepresentation, and

—gross misconduct or coused reputational
domage to the Compary or Group Company

AVPS awards moy be clawed back either prior

to the payrment of the award for o particular

Financia! year or for o perod of 6 years from the

date of poyment
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Purpase and Operation Opportunity Purformance
link to sirategy maetrics
LTVPS =To algn the long Cash awards based on siretching perforrmance 300% of salary over the 50% based
term interests of the  torgets relabng to frve year regulotory penod on refotive SIM
Executve Drectors _rolling three year relatve SIM performance, to 31 March 2020 performance
wgﬁgz:oﬁ: —combined measure of the growth in Reserves iS?n:g:j
and stakeholders ond Transfers to the Customer Reserves performance
—To ncentmse Clawbock provisions apply in the following See page 89
achievernent of creumstonces
value creahion over —restatement of accounts,
the long terrn —maotericl misrepresentahon,
—To ad retention —grass misconduct or coused reputational
darnage to the Company or Group Company
LTVPS awards may be clowed back either prior
to the payment of the award for o porhicular
Financial year or for a period of & years from
the date of poyment
Non-Execuhve  Prowides an The Remuneraton Comimitiee determines Non-Executive Directors do None
Directors appropriate level of the fee payable to the Chairman of the Boord not recene any odditonal
fixed fee to recruit and, separately, the Executive Directors and the  fees for chairing committees
ond retan individuals  Chairman opprove the fee level payoble to the
with a broad ronge of  Non-Executive Directors
expenence and skil All Directors must be paid for addhonal
to support the Board o, henses incurred in connection with thetr
in the delvery of its role on the Board and any toxable benefit
dunes mplications that may result
New Executive  —Bose solary levels will be set to reflect the experience of the indnaducl, oppropriate market dota and internal
Directar relotmnes If it Is considered oppropriate fo oppoint o new Executive Director on a below market salary they may
oppointments be subject to a series of increcses to the desred solary positioning over an appropriate tmeframe, subject to
performuance in post This approach will apply to both interncl and externol oppomtments
—The palicy will be for the new Executive Director fo participate in the remunerahon structure detaited above
Excephons to this could be setting different measures or implementing transihonal orrangements should an
Executive Director join part way through the frve yeor reguintory penod For internol promotees to Executive
Director, entitlement to previously accrued AVPS, up fo the appointment date,
will be unaffected
~Should it be the case that the Rermuneration Committee considers It necessary o buy out incentve pay which
an indvidual would forfeit on leaving therr current emplayer, such compensation, where possible, will be structured
so that the terms of the buyout mirror the form ond structure of the remunerahon being replaced
Policy for ~The Executrve Directors have service controcts that are subject to o 12 moath nohce period and which do not
payments provide for compensation fo be payable in the event of eorly fermination by the Company At the Company's
to departing discrenon, an Executve Director moy be paid bose salory alone In eu of notice A significant elerment of
sxecytives rmihgation is built into the contract should the Compony choose to exercise ts ophon to maka a poymentin lieu

of notice

—When on Executive Director leaves via redundancy ond Is not required to work hus/her notice penod, hefshe
will be entiffed to Statutory Redundoncy plus 12 manth poy in leu of notice together with pay in Iieu of accrued
but untaken haolidays

—Should an Executive Director resign, he/she will be expected to work their notice peried unless on alternative
arrangement such as garden leave or a reduced nofice period Is agreed

~In the event that the Compaony terminates the executive’s emplayment, the Compaony will take legal advice
and will pay to the executive only such amount os the executive s legally entitled to receive

In the event of cessaton of employment AVPS and LTVPS owards will be treated in line with the relevant scherne
rules which describe the treotment of any payment with reference fo ‘goed’ or 'bad’ leover terms

Discretions retatned by the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Comrruttee operates the AVPS and the LTVPS according to the rules of each respectve
scheme and cansistent with normal market practice, including flexibility in @ number of regards Ths flexibility
allows the Remuneration Comrmittee fo take account of any serious safety or reputationcl 1ssues or significant
deternioration of performance
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ANNUAL REPORT
ON REMUNERATION

Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors in more detail

Salary

Following a review n March 2016
the Remuneraticn Commuttee
has set the base solaries for the
Executive Directors for 2016-17
(effectve 1 Apnil 2016) shown n
figure 2 This murrors the 15%
increase awarded to employees
on 1 Apnl 2016 in accordance
with the five year poy deal
agreed with the Company's three
recogrised trade unions (GMB,
UNISON and UNITE} in 2015
Details of Executive Directors'
bose solanes within Welsh

Water and the Water Industry
generally were considered duning
negotations

Figure 2 Executive Director's base salaries

Effoctive Effoctive
1Aprl 2015 1Apnl 2016

Chris £288.261 £292,585
Jones

Pater £232943 £236437
Perry

Pater £232943 £236,437
Bridgewater

The fees payable to Non-
Executive Directors were reviewed
in March 2015 and subsequently
in March 2016 No change wos
made followmng erther review
resulting in fees being frozen

at the 2014 levels
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Annual Vanable Pay Scheme {(AVPS)

The maoximum variable pay that Executive Directors can earn under

the AVPS in 2016-17 1s unchanged and equates to 100% of base salary
The achievernent of variable pay 15 assessed across five components,
consistent with how the AVPS was operated in 2015-16, as illustrated

in figure 3 Specific targets for 2016-17 have not been disclosed as they
are considered commercially sensitive but will be disclosed retrospechvely
next year

The Customer ond Compliance measures which we have selected for

the AVPS are intended to place sigmificant emphasis on the areas of

prime importance from the PR14 Business Plan and to maximise the

Annual Focus within the scheme In addition, each year the Board and

Remuneration Committee will choose o small number of measures for the

Annuol Focus element where the aim s for marked rmprovement in the

year aheod ond where the weighting in AVPS is significantly increased

The cost measure used 1s Totex (operating and capital expenditure) as

this 1s o comprehensive and simple measure of expenditure and matches

how company budgets ore set .

Figure 3 Annual Variable Poy Schame Structure

Personot Indsadual objectives reloting to each role

00K

OGS DEREIE  Meosuras of Success taken from the PR14 Plon
2016-37 Retabaity of supply custormer acceplobilty bad debt

Tatal Company Tatex

% of Vanoble Poy

Key Moosures of Success laken from the PR14 Plan safety of drinking
watar treahng used water, praventng poluhion, leckoge asset servceckilty

Key Measures of Success faken from the PR14 Plon buswness customer
Cuttomer satisfochon, custorner acceptobhty rebobsdity of supply properties flooded
+ w1 tha year, net promotar scove

Long Term Vanable Pay Scheme 2015 {LTVPS)

The objective of the LTVPS is to align the longer term aspects of total
rernuneration with Company performance over the course of the five yeor
regulatory period ending on 31 March 2020 The awards comprise a cosh
payment Under the LTVPS, two types of cosh award con be made

—— a Customer Value Award, which combines two financial measures
of the increase in the Reserves (regulatory copital value less net
debt) and Transfers to Customer Reserves (representing amounts
available for return of value to customers) over the regulatory period
The increose in Reserves {os o measure of financial position) and
the transfers to the Customer Reserves {as o measure of financial
flows} colculoted seporotely but added together coptures the total
value generated for customers (returned ond retaned) by the !
company Ulhmately, this is the most important financial objectve for '
the Executive Directors This combined measure remains company
specific and measures performance against Company set targets
which are aligned with the five year Plan, and

— a Customer Service Award, which 1s measured by the Company's
average ranking in the Ofwaf ieague table for SIM over o rolling three
year penod The Custerner Service Aword 1s therefore informed by
ond rewards, the Company's relative performance compared with
similar companies in the sector
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The LTVPS performance
targets reflect the
Board's ambition that
Welsh Water should rank
alongside the leading
cornpanies In the industry
on key measures for
customer service and
long term financial
efficiency for the benefit
of customers SIM s
used for the Customer
Service Aword and
comprises two measures
of customer service One
15 a qualitative measure
reflecting the results of
independent research
carrnied out on behalf

of Ofwat to capture
customer sahsfaction
with the service they have
received and the other

o quantitotive measure
which covers customer
complaints and unwanted
calls The performance
targets under each of
the LTVPS awards are
described more fully in
figure 4

The pertod over

which performance is
deterrmined and the
potential payment dates
over the regulatory perod
to 31 March 2020 are
llustrated 1n schematic
figure 5

Detalls of payments
made under the LTVPS
for 2015-16 are set out in
figure 6 overleof
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Figure 4: LTVPS parformance mecsures

Customner Service Customar Value'
Performonce  Measured by reference to Ofwot's SIM Actugl customer valve created {increase m
Meosures measune Reserves ond transfers fo Custorner Reserves)
at 31 March 2020 (the end of the AMP6 period)
compared o targets
Rationale Ofwat's SiM measure of customer expenence  This 5 the strongest finoncial measure of the total
for selected which is independent, objective ond value genenated for customars by the Company
measures rmeasurcbie, and cliows relative performance
to be compored ogainst other woter and
Sewamge comparnas
Parformances  Thrae finonaial years immediately prior to the 1 Apnl 2015 o 31 March 2020
Pariod financial year in which an oward is gronted
Performance  Qut of UK's 10 water and seweroge companies  Moxmum 30% oward each year if the volue
torget®* created 15 in ine with the targets which are set

—100% of cwerd payable for achipang first
poshon

—75% of aword poyable for achieving second
position

—50% of award poyoble for achieang third
pesihon

—25% of aword payable for achienng fourth
position

—0% of award payable for a ranking of fifth
of below

sach yeor but set three years in odvance

—100% of oward poyoble for achievng stretch
obove torget

- 66% of award poysble for ochueving targst

— 0% for performance o1 or below threshold

— pro rota oward poysble for performance
between theze imits

~ for tha first three performance pencds the
Custorner Valye target for the finol yeor of each
penod 15 £114 million, £133 rmallon and £129
milion

1 The customer value targets may be cmended in certoin arcumstances at the discretion of the Committes These
circumstoncas indude wheve (i) there are dfferances between actual inflonon and the assumphons onginally made
(1) there are ony other signficant external factors which the Committee determines 1o be outside the mifhence of the
Executrve Directors.
2 Payrnant may ba deferred of the discreton of the Committee in the event thot there 1s a sigrficont detenorahon n
performance Deferral maoy be for up to two years, or untl the shortfoll has been rermedied, whichever s the earer
3 When determuning the level of any oword the Commitiee will have regord te tha rating of the Group’s bonds
ond may of ds discrenon, defer oll or part of an award if the Geoup 5 bonds hova been put o credit watch or

downgroded

The Custorner Volue targets for the first Thvee perfarmonce penods have been omended frorm those onginolly
disclosed in lost year's remunearahon report The targets os disclosed lost yeor were bosed salely on figures relating
ta transfers to Custorner Reservas ond excluded orw figures reloting to Increcse in Reserves. Howgver tha infantion
at the outset, and consistent with the 2014/15 disclosure to Members, was fo measure the total value crected (e to
includa any increase In Resenves) and, 65 such, the targets heve been increosed o nclude this value

Figure 5 LTVPS performonce period

ANP & {

31 Mor 16 I Mer T7 31 Mar 18 N Mar 19 31 Mar 20 N Mor 2V
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WHAT WAS PAID IN 2015-16 AND LINK BETWEEN PAY AND PERFORMANCE

Payments made to Directors in 2015-16

Figure 6 sets out the Directors' emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 in comparison to year

ended 31 March 2015

Figure &- Poyments and benafits eormed by Directors in 2015-16

Salory/Fees Toxable benafits’ Cther Avp2

LTVPS?

Tetal

2014015 2015/16 201415 2015116 201415 201516 2015 201516 201415 201516 201415  2015h6

Chris Jones 280417 288261 860D 948 - - 222651 202,647 186092 134041 690020 625897
;“" 133875 232943 502 948 55000 12000 106297 166088 - 108318 295674 520 297
ndgewater
::; 229500 232943 B&O 248 - - 182223 166088 159295 108318 571,878 508, 257
Robert
Avheg 212000 212000 22000 212000
John 22500 - 22900 y
Bryant
Graham
Edwards 58000 58000 58,000 58,000
Joanne
Kannck 24367 24167
Stephen 3000 58000 58000 58000
Polmer
James
e han 58000 15,30 58,000 15,130
Menno
Richards 65133 68700 65133 68,700
Anna
Walkar 58000 58000 58,000 58000
ehn 58000 58,000 58000 58000
Warren
Tatal 1,233,825 1,3086)44 2222 2844 55000 12,000 511N 534823 345387 350677 2147605 2206,488
Pansion* Total®

2004115 201516 2014115 200516
Chns Jones 283,668 142152 Chris Jones 973688 768, 049
Pater Bridgewater 4726 25,624 Pwter Bndgewoter 310,400 545921
Puter Panry 30904 64514 Puter Perry 602,782 572,81
Total 329298 232,290 Non Exec Directors 590033 551997

Total 2476903 2438778

Notes to toble

Tha mnformatiin n igure 6 has been oudited by KPFMG

Changes of director Joanne Kenrick was appointed a Non-Executive Director on 1 Novernber 2015 James Strachan stoad down from the Boord on 3 July 2015
John Bryont stood down from the Board on 4 July 2014 The figures shown in the table obove ore pro rated for the penod i office

1 Taxoble benefits relate to prvote heolth cover

2 Please see Determinahon of AVPS Outcome on poge 92 Performance ogainst AVPS targets in 2015-16 resulted in o lower poyment (between 70.3% end 713%

of selany) compared to 2014-15 (T94%)
3 Please ses Determinahon of LTVPS Outcome on page 92
4 Pension coninbuhon for Peter Bridgewoter Is a cash oltemnative allowance
5 The highest-pad Director in 201516 was Chris Jones who recerved £768,049 (2014-15 £573 688)
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Determination of 2015-16 AVPS outcome
For 2015-16, the Rernuneration Committee measured performance against each target, Iinked directly to the
achtevernent of the Company's strategy, as follows 1n the table below Approved performaonce in 2015-16 resulted
1n on AVPS award of between 70 3% and 71 3% compared to 79 4% for the Executive Directors in 2014-15

Figure T AYPS 2015-16 outcome (oudited)

Measure Metric Waighting Summary of fargets  Result % of maximum
(% of salary}
Customer Key Measures of Success token from the PR14 20% Thresheld 5% N1% 555%
Plan business customer satisfaction, custorner Target 12%
occeptobility, reliobility of supply, propertes
flooded in the year nat promater score Stratch 20%
Compliancs Key measures of suocess token frorm the PR14 20% Threshold 8% 156% 780%
Plan safety of danking water, treating used water, Target 13 6%
preventing pottution, leakage, asset serwceatility
Stretch 20%
Cost Total Cormpony Totex 30% Threshotd 5% Z76% 920%
Target 18%
Stretch 30%
Annvaol focus Measures of success taken from the PR14 Plan  20% Threshold 4% a% 40%
measyies Rehabihty of supply, customer occeptability, bod Torget 12%
debt
€ Stretch 20%
Personal Indeadual obyectives relating ta each role 0% 8% -9% 80% - 90%
Totat 100% Q3% -713% T03% - N3%

Determination of 2015-16 LTVPS
outcome {audited)

Welsh Water's SIM rating relatve to

the SIM rating of the other water and
sewerage companies over the three year
performance penod to 31 March 2016 will
not be known unti later in the year At this
hme, it 1s forecast o be ranked 2nd

As o consequence, a provisional award
of 22 5% I1s payable The maximum
potenhat 1s 30% of salary

For the Customer Value element of the
scheme measured from 1 Apnl 2015

to 31 March 2016, a payment of 24%
of salary has been made This hos been
based on the Remunerction Committee’s
deterrmunation that total value generated
for LFTVPS purposes in the year ended
31 March 2016 was £118 million against
a target of £114 million {and a stretch

of £124 million) The reported total
value created 1s £197 mullion which,

for the purposes of assessing LTVPS
perforrmance, has been adjusted
downwards by £79 million to reflect
higher than expected inflation duning
the year and the deferment of certain
capital schemes to future years
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Pension benefits

For the penod 1 Apnl 2015 to 31 March 2016 Chns Jones and
Peter Perry were active members of the DCWW Penston Scheme
("the Scheme') which 1s o defined benefit pension arrangement

Benefits accrue at 1/45th of Final Penstonable Salory per year

of Pensionable Service for Chns Jones and 1/60th of Final
Pensionable Salary for each year of Pensionable Service for Peter Perry
{subject to @ maximum overall pensien ot normal retrement age of
two-thirds of Final Pensionable Salary) The Scheme also provides life
cover of four times Penstonable Salary for death in senvice, a penston
payable in the event of retirement due to Il health and a spouse's
pension payable on the death of the member

Chns Jones and Peter Perry are Lifetme Allowance andfor

Annual Allowance Capped Mermbers of the Scheme and where therr
Scheme benefits exceed HMRC limits addiional benefits are provided
vio on Employer Financed Retirement Benefit Scheme (EFRBS)

The Comipany's obligahons under the EFRBS will not be funded,
however such obligations constitute liabilies of the Company, poyable
when they are due

The pension benefits earned by the Directors in the Scherne dunng
the yeor ore shown in figure 8 which has been audited

Since his employment begon on 1 September 2014, Peter Bndgewater
has opted out of the DCWW Group Personal Pension Plen ond recenves
o cosh alternchve allowance of 11% of salary instead

Other Benefits
Executive Directors have the benefit of private health cover
Chns Jones and Peter Perry also have permanent health insurance

REPORT & ACCCUNTS | GLAS CYMRU




Figurs B; The pension banefits samed by the Chief Exscutive and Chief Operating Officer in the Scheme during the year are shown below {audited)

Yacr ending 31 March 2015
Normal Accrued Capitalised Revalued Accrued Coprialised Member Punsion Input
Rehrement pangion ot 31 wvalue of capitalised pension volue of contnbutions  Amount (net
Age March 2014 accrued volue of ot 31 March occrued pald during of mamber
pension accrued 2015 pansion the year 2015  contributions
at 31 Manch pension at 31 at 31 March 20158
204 March 2014' 2015
Chris Jonex 60 £106,745 £2,134902 £2192,544 £125072 £2,501,449 £25238 £283668
Potes Perry 60 £12308C £2,461,600 £2528063 £128981 £2,579.622 £20655 £309504
Yeor snding 31 Morch 2016
Normal Accrued Capthahised Revalved Accrued Capitolised Member Pension Input
Rehirement pension at 31  wvalue of capitolised penslon value of contributions  Amount {net
Age March 2015 oaccrued valve of at 31 March accrued poid during of member
pansion occryed 2016 pension the yeor 2016  conimbutions
ot 31 March pansion ot 31 at 31 March 20162
2015 March 2015 2016
Chns Jones &0 £125072 £2,501,44% £253.466 £134978 £2,699562 £25943 £142152
Peter Parry &0 £128981 £2579622 £2610577 £134803 £2,596,056 £20965 £64,514

Banafit Notes

1 Increased by the octuol CPI growth figure at the previous Septamber

—~2 7% for the 2015 disclosure period and 1 2% for 2016

2 Bosed on fre copitohsed volue of the accrued pensios of the yeos-end less
the revalued copitalised value of ocorved pension of the stort of the year

— tha octrued pensions indude previous Pensionable Servce completed in

Hyder Woter ond United Unlities Pension Schemes

— the accrued pension Ligures include both the stondard entitlements within
the Scheme {which are restacted in accordonce with HMRC lirmuts) ond

the top-up benefits which are payoble under the EFRBS

Companison of overall pay and

performance

Figures 9 and 10 show how our
pay policy has compared with

perfarmance and compares the
total pay of our Chief Executive

to year on year growth in

Customer Reserves 1e financial
reserves being Regulatory
Capital Value less net debt}

over the previous seven years
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Figure 9 Customer Reserves over seven years to 31 March 2076
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Figure 10- Overall pay ond performancs

2010 2om 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Total remunsratron for Chief Exacutive - - - . £741569  E9T3688  £168049
{Chris Jones)
Totol remuneration for Manoging Directer ;300350 reasoss  £677770  £5907210 £709.890 - -
(Nigel Annett) '
AVPS oword (Chna Jonas) - - ; - 511% 794% 703%
AVPS oward (Nigel Annet) 382% 76.3% T76% 60 6% 499% - -
LTVPS for AMP6 . . - - ; - 46.5%
LTVPS for AMPS - 250% 400% 500% 786% 90 6% ;
LTVPS (RLTIS) for AMP4 195% - ; . . . .

For 2014 full inoncial figures have been provded for Chins Jones

and Nigel Annett and do not solely relote to the penod as Chief Executve/
Manoging Director

RLTIS Roling Long Term Incentve Scheme in ploce dunng AMP4

Relative importance of spend on pay

It 1s important that the Remuneration Commuittee
considers the cost of remuneration In relohion to other
factors such as company perfermance Figure 11 sets
out the change in total expenditure, total employee
remuneration costs and Customer Reserves in 2016
compared to 2015

Figura 11 Relotive importance of tpend on pay

2015 2016 Change
fm £m £m %

Tatal expenditure’ 8339 7548 {791} {95%)
Employes 1226 1272 46 8%
remunarotion costs

Custormer Resarvas? 1947 2137 150 98%
Executive Director 189 189 00 00%
remunerotion costs

1 Cperationol expenditure, copital expanditure and finoncing costs
2 Regulatory copiol volue less net debt Custemer equity metne included to
enable comparisons with shareholder owned componies
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Figure 12 Percantoge changs in CEQ's remunsrohion compared
with other employses

Chief Exscutive % Employeses % change
change from 2014-15  from 2014-15

Salary 15% 44%
Banafits 0% 0%
Annual Voriable Pay  (9%) (9%}

Emplayees Solary % chonge includes increases awarded for annual pay
Twaid Gind Corter proQresson
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Details of Directors’ service contracts and
letters of appointment

Details of the service contfracts of

the Executive Directors and letters of
appointment of the Non-Executive
Drrectors in ploce at 31 March 2016 are

os follows

Chns Jones T May 2000

Peter Perry 1 August 2006
Peter Bndgewater 1 Septernber 2014
Rabert Ayhing 3 Cctober 2008
Stephen Palmer 26 October 2009

Menna Richards

22 Novermnber 2010

Anno Walker 3 March 20N
John Warren 3 May 2012
Grohem Edwords 1 October 2013

Joanne Kennck

1 November 2015

2 In 2015-14, NBS odvised on the benchmarking
of Dwectors ond executive teamn remunerchon
and provided generol remunerahon advice to the
Rernuneration Commuttee NBS alse provided advice
N relation 1o non-exacutive director fees, but bos no
other connection with the Group Dunng 2015-16, NES
recerved fees amounting to £64983 in relotion to
odvice provided 1o the Remuneration Committes The
Group alsa sought advce from KPMG (pensions) and
information from Quontum Actuerial LLP (pensien data)
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HOW PAY IS DETERMINED

Remuneration Committee

The Rermunerohon Committee 1s charred by Anna Walker
James Strachan stepped down from the Boord following

the 2015 AGM ot which point Anna took over s charr

In 2015-16, the other members of the Cormmittee were

Robert Ayling, Menna Richards and John Warren

The Board considers that all the members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent and, In the cose of Robert Ayling,
that he was considered to be independent on his appointment
as Chatrman of the Company The Chief Executive and

the Director of Human Resources attend meetings of the
Remuneration Commmuttee by invitation (except where their own
remuneration i1s discussed} The Remunerohion Committee wos
convened on three occasions in 2015-16

The role of the Commuttee 15 to approve, implement
and keep under review the Remuneration Palicy of the Board
ond speaftcally

—to agree the Policy and framewark and service contracts
for the remuneration of the Charrman end the Executive
Directors, and the remuneration framework for the
executive team together with the Director of Environment,
Director of Capita! Delivery and Director of Procurement
and Estates, and

— to determine varioble pay arrangements that encourage
and recognise good performance ond reward indvduals
in a farr and responsible manner for ther contnbution to
the long-term success of the Compony

In 2015-16, the Remuneration Committee receved independent
advice from New Bridge Street (NBS), o trading name of Aon
Hewitt Limuted {an Aon plc company) NBS is a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct ond any
advice given 1s governed by the Code The Group has a long
standing relationship with NBS and the Committee is satisfied
that the adwvice it recenves remains independent and objectve 2

Dunng 2015-16, the actvihies of the Remuneration Commuttee
included approving the 2015 Remunerahon Report; assessing
performance achieved against the condmhons attached to

the 2014-15 AVPS and LTVPS ond ogreeing awards to be
made fo participants, reviewing salaries and AVPS for the
broader executive team, consideration of remuneration and
penston frends and best practice, deterrmining the salary of the
Executive Directors and the Chairman’s fee for 2015-16 and
reviewing the Commnittee’s terms of reference, ond determining
the fotal remunerahon for the Managing Director of DCCS Lid,
now Menoaging Director of Retall Services

At last year's AGM, Members voted in favour of the Annual
Report on Remuneration, the Remuneration Pelicy and the
design of the LTVPS
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DIRECTORS' REPORT"

This Report should be read in conjunction with the Strategic
Report, Corporate Governance Report and the Audit Committee
Report, which collectively constitute the Directors’ Report
For further information, see contents list on page 65

DIRECTORS

The names and brief biographical detarts of the Directors
as ot March 2016 are gven on page 67 of this document

All Directors served throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, except
Joanne Keniick who joined in Novernber 2015 All Directors will stand
for re-elechion at the 2016 AGM with the exception of Robert Ayling

who will stand down from the Board This will meet the requirement
uvnder our Articles of Association for one third of Directors to retire

by rotation Alastar Lyons will stand for elechon for the first e as
Non-executive Director fo replace Robert Ayling The Board has endorsed
the effectiveness and commitment (and, in respect of the Non-Executive
Directors, the independence) of the Directors ond recommends each

for re-elechion Further details are set out In the Notice of the 2016 AGM
which will take place on Friday 8 July 2016

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appontment are made avallable
for inspection on request fo the Company Secretary

No Director has, or has had, o matenal financial interest, directly or
indirectly, in any contract significant to the Compgany's business and the
Board has not been requested fo use, and has not used, i1s discretion
under Article 57 of Glos Cymru's Articles of Associotion which allows the
approval of a potantial conflict of interest Details of the remuneration

of indmidual Directors and of the remuneration strategy approved by the
Board are included 1n the Remunerahon Report for the yeor ended

31 March 2016 contained in this Annual Report A resolution will be
proposed af the 2016 AGM to approve the 2016 Remunerahon Repart

We publish our Corporate Governance Code on our website During the
year, the Directors considered whether the cormpany was a gaing concern
and provided a long-term viability statement, avallable on page 63

The Company has in place Directors’ and Officers’ insurance giving cover
agoinst legal actton brought agamst the Directors and an indemnity in
cireumstances where a Director has not acted fraudulently or dishonestly
The indemnity I1s a qualifying mdernmity for the purpose of the Compenies
Act and 1s for the benefit of all Directers No claims have been made
against this policy since the date of the last report
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EMPLOYEES

At 31 March 2016, the

Group had 3,042 employees
Qur success 15 dependent
upon our having highly
commutted and mohvated
people We are committed to
developing our people for the
chollenges of operahing our
business in the future

We do not disciminate against
applicants or employees on the
basis of age, disability, gender
reassignment, marital or cwil
portner status, pregnancy or
maternity, race, colour, nahcnality,
ethnic or national ongin, religion
or belief, sex or sexual onentation
("protected charactenshcs” in
accordance with the Equality
Act 2010) or any other personal
charactenstic If an employee 15
disabled or becomes disabled,
we consider any reasenable
adjustments that would help
overcome or minumise the
dfficubty 1t s the policy of the
Group that the training, career
development and promohion

of a disabled person should,

as far as possible, be identical
to that of o person who does
not suffer from a disobility

The Group 15 carmrmitted to
respecttng human nghts in
respect of colleagues and
customers and plons to monitor
its progress In this regard
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MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015

We are committed to meeting
the aims of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015 We strongly oppose
slovery ond human trafficking 1n
our supply chains ond any part
of our business To be trusted

to do the nght thing 1s one of
our core values We would never
knowingly engage with supplers
or contractors involved n stavery
or human trafficking

Qur Anh-Slavery Policy sets

out Glas Cymru's commitment
to acting ethically end

with integrity in our supply

chamn arrangements, and

the safeguards we have
implemented to require thot our
suppliers and controctors comply
with the Modern Slavery Act

As part of our procurernent
process, any potential contractor
or supplier wil be required

to confirm that they comply
with the Modern Slavery Act
and, If appointed, we require that
they flow down the requirements
we place on them to any
sub-contractors they use to
provide therr services to us

QOur terms and conditions will
include contractual provisions
relating to compliance with the
Medern Slavery Act We will
implement these new provisions
Iin all new agreements, upon
renewal of existing agreements
ond upon 1ssue of purchase
orders We have written 1o our
existing suppliers to alert them
to the requirements of the Act
and our policy in this area

Qur Human Resources teormn
maintomns recruitment polices
to protect against slavery and/
or human trafficking in our own
operatons

To date we have not found
any evidence of slavery or
human trafficking in our
current supply chain
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THE DIRECTORS CONSIDER THAT THE ANNUAL REPORT

AND ACCOUNTS

(consolidated financiol staterments of Glas Cymru), taken os a whole, are
farr, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary
for stakeholders to assess the company's performance, business model
and strategy In order to arnve ot this posihon, the Board were assisted

i the following ways

—— the Annual Report was drofted by senior management and overall
co-orchnahon overseen by the Finance and Commercial Director
to ensure consistency

—reviews of drafts were undertaken by members of the Executive team
and a verfication process invelving the compony's ouditors hos been
undertaken

— the final droft wos reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to review
and approval by the Board, and submission to Members

The Board has prepared a Strategtc Report which provides a summary
of the development and performance of the company's business In the
year ended 31 March 2016 and covers likely future developments

Glas Cymru Anghyfngedig (Company number 03975719) 1s an unhmited
company mcerperated in Englond and Wales Our registered office 1s
Pentwyn Road, Nelson, CF46 6LY

Dunng the year Glos Cymru Cyfyngedig has been re-registered as Glas
Cymru Anghyfyngedig and Glas Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig has been
created to be the holding company for the Glas Cymru Group and
ulhmate parent of the operationat company Dvwr Cymru Cyfyngedig

This Annual Report and Accounts document consolidates the activity
and results of the (renamed) Glas Cyrmiru Anghyfyngedig company
(‘Glas Cymru') and it's subsidiaries The first Annual Report an Accounts
for the new holding company, Glos Cyrmru Holdings Cyfyngedig, will be
produced as af 31 March 2017

There have been no activities or tronsachons in the new holding company
{Glas Cymiru Holdings Cyfyngedig), or i#s subsidianes, since incorporation,
other than those covered by this Annual Report and Accounts

More information on Principal Activities can be found on page 14 0

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group haos delivered a strong financiol performance dunng the year
to 31 March 2016, has continued to deleverage, with geaning falling from
60%-57%, end has retained its sector-leading credit rafings

REVENUE

Glas Cymru's turnover in the year to 31 March 2016 was £743 million
(2015 £753 mullron), a modest reduction reflects Ofwat’s PR14 Final
Determination pricing adjustment of -11%
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SUPPORTING EDUCATION

We have o poart to play 1n helping our future customers
understond how they can help and protect the
environment Indeed, investng in educoation and
engaging with the communihies we serve is vital to
achieving our vision This 1s why we have four Discovery
Centres (Elan Valley near Rhayader, Cilfynydd near
Pontypndd, Cog Moors near Dinas Powys and Brenig
in the Denbighshire moors), visited by over 14,000
children every year They offer o ronge of fun, practical
actmties and programmes so children and families
con expenence the world of water at first hand

Due to the success of our centres, we now implement
an autreach programme where our teachers regularly
visit primary and secondary schools to deliver
workshops on the behavioural change compaigns we
undertake involving woter efficiency {Love Dvir} and
pollution (Let's Stop the Block) Around 31,000 pupils
o year benefit from this programme
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OPERATIONAL ITEMS

Glas Cymiru incurred total operational costs (excluding infrastructure
renewal expenditure on maintaining our underground pipe network,
deprectation and excephional iterns) of £297 million {2015 £295 million),
a number of specific cost increases (Retall business transformation costs,
power hedging and energy contract termination costs) have been parhally
offset by driving efficiency savings from the msourcing of operational
contracts, income from hydro ossets ond debt collechon improverments

All water and sewerage companies use a lot of power, particularly for
water treatrent and pumping processes The undulohng topogrophy
across Wales maokes this o particular challenge for us Power costs duning
2015-16 were £43 million {2015 £44 million) There remoins significant
uncertainty over future energy costs, and we have forward purchased o
proporhon of the estimated power requirements of the business for the
four years to March 2020

Woater ond sewerage componies ore not permitted to disconnect supplies
to non-paying domestic customers and cash collecton has contnued

to be choltenging The high prionty and increased focus on debt recovery
in the Retall business has resulted In collections improvements during the
year, and as a consequence the bad debt charge for the vear has follen
sightly to £27 milhon (2015 £30 million) We are targehing customers
who won't pay therr bills, as opposed to those who can't pay, and the
reduction comes prnncipally from some 900 charging orders over praperty
owned by custormers, which have been secured over around £2 million

of our customers’ debt

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

During the year a business rates refund of £20 millon was received
following o longstanding challenge of the 2005 water network
assessment This has been freated as excephonal due to its size

FINANCING COSTS

Net interest payable of £123 million {excluding accountng losses
on denvatives noted below) was £22 milkon fower than the previous
year This is principally due to the impact of lower RP) values on
index-linked bonds

Glos Cymru has o number of denvative swop cantracts which fix or
inflation-link the cost of debt and, while these are effective commercial
hedges, they do not qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39 Changes
in market values create volohlity in the mcome staterment and farr value
gains 1n 2015-16 amounted to £39 million (2015 losses of £157 million)
There 1s, however, no impact on cash flows the compony intends to hold
its rernaiming swaps to the motunty of the underlying debt and, over the
Ife of the swaps, such losses will revert to zero

UNDERLYING PROFIT

The underlying prohit before tax was £18 milion (See page 114)

The consolidated income staterment shows o profit before taxation

of £77 milllon (2015 loss of £100 milhon) which tokes inte account the
fair value and one-off finance movements, exceptional items as discussed
obove ond the change of the voluation basis for fixed assets
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PENSION FUNDING

The statement of comprehensive
income reports defined benefit
pension scheme actuanal losses
of £25 millien (2015 £32
rmillien) and the balence sheet
iabiity as at 31 March 2016 wos
£57 milion (2015 £33 mullion)
This valuation 1s on an IAS 19
basis for accounting purposes
and 1s not consistent with the
actuonal valuction of the scheme
for funding purposes The lotest
such valuahon of the scheme,
as at 31 March 2013, projected
a smalt deficit, recoverable

by payments of £1 milion per
onnum until 2018 Plans are

in place to mihgate exposure to
any significant oddeonal future
Irabilities by the closure of most
sechons of the scheme with
effect from 1 April 2017

NET ASSETS

The consolidated bolance
sheet shows net assets of
£1,082 million at 31 March
2016 (2015 net habilities

of £6 million) Excluding non-
cosh foir value odjustments for
denvatve financiol instruments,
referred to above, the Group has
net assets of £1.47 million
(2015 assets of £416 million)

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are satisfied

that the business has
adequate resources to
conhnue i business for the
foreseeable future Accordingly,
the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2016
hove been prepared on o going
concern basis

Information on Key "
Performance Indicators pog
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CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Glas Cymru's strong finoncial posihion has been bullt up over the last

15 years, and provides o stable base from which it can respond positively
to the challenges of economic uncertainty and drnive forward its continuing
large copital programme

Glos Cymru works with an allionce of portners to delver the capital
investrment progrormme at the best value for money for customers

Total coprtal expenditure duning the year {including infrastructure renewals
expenditure) wos £279 milkon (2015 £379 million) The reduchon

1s mainly due to o temporary slowdown In our capital construction
programme at the start of the current five year regulatory period (AMP&})
We will be increasing our construction programme again next year

We invested around £15 billion over the five year period from 2010 to
2015 This investment programme brought sustained improvements in
customer service, dnnking water quality and the environment The Group
plans to invest a further £17 bilhon over the course of the current five year
regulatary pentod (2015-2020), our largest ever investment programme

CREDIT RATINGS AND INTEREST RATE MANAGEMENT

Glas Cymru has the strongest credit rafings n the water sector, reflecting
the Company’s high level of creditworthuiness The rahings of the
Company’s Class A and B debt at 31 March 2016 were A/A3/A frorm
Stondard & Poaor's (S&P), Moody's and Fitch Ratings respectvely

As at 31 March 2016, approximately 65% of gross debt was index-linked
via bonds and derivatives (2015 65%), with the remainder at fixed interest
rates The expecfed matunty of the outstanding fixed-rate and index-
Iinked bonds roanges from 2021 to 2057, with not mare than 20% falling
due in any two-year perod, In accordance with our refinancing policy

GEARING POLICY

Glas Cymru’s gearing to RCV policy 1s to torget gearing at or around
60% and interest cover ratios commensurate with maintaining our sector
leading ‘A’ grade credit ratings This should help us to maintain our low
nsk profile gwing the Company access to low cast financing throughout
AMP6 and beyond

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESERVES

Glas Cymru cims to offer o secure, low nsk investment to investors

By building and maintaining a strong financiol position, we intend to
keep our borrowing costs low, enabling us to finance future INvestment
efficiently

On Glas Cymiu's acquisiion of Welsh Water in Moy 2001, gearing (net
debt/Regulatory Capital Volue) stood ot 93% Since then, the financial
position has improved steadly Gearing to RCV has fallen to 57% by

31 March 2016 (2015 60%) and ‘customer reserves’ {(RCV less net debt)
were £2 1 billion

As at 31 Morch 2016, the Company had availlable tota! iquidity of

£372 milion, including cash bolances of £92 millon With funding already
in place for the early years of AMP6, we will seek to raise finance of
oround £500 million over the course of the AMPS perniod to March 2020
As part of this exercise we ore in the final stages of ogreeing o £250
rmillien facility with the Europeon Investment Bank

WATER AID
As befits our operating model, we do not engage In corporate
sponsorship but we conhinue to provide support to WaterAud
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BEING A GOOD NEIGHBOUR

We know that our actvities,
including maintaining

and repainng our assets

and networks, can cause
disturbances or disruption to
local communities We plon every
scheme thoroughly to fry and
ensure that this 1s minmmised
and this includes working with
our construction partners, local
authonties, highways ogency,
households and businesses to
find the most agreeable solution

Where cur actmihes can
potentially have a negative
econorric impact

{for example roadwork’s
preventing or reducing footfall
to retailers), we olso look ot how
we con offer support through
compensatory measures

We continue to be deterrmined
to play our part In o sustainable
and more prosperous country
through o sccially and
environmentally responsible
approach to our day-to-day
ochvities, and by helping the
communities we serve

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
As one of the biggest companies
In Wales with o 3,000 strong
workforce and a majer, mulh-
bilion pound investrment
programme, the way we act

has a profound influence on

the socral, economic and
environmental wellbetng of Wales
and the English regions we serve

We are therefore pleased that
acting 1n an environrmentally
sustainable, economically
beneficial and socially
responsible manner has been
at the heart of our activities over
the past 12 months

This year we year we have
included an impact statement
n our Strategic Report showing
our value added activihes in the
commurity

Impact stotement page @
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ACCESS AND RECREATION

We are the custodian of a national
asset In Wales—some 40,000
hectares {99,000 acres) of scenic land
that Is rich in scenery and biodwersity
This land also offers sigmificant
opportunity for public recreation with
around o milhon visitors o year visiting
one of our 17 major reservorr sites
where we provide a range of sporting,
recreational and leisure facilihes

IMAGE REMOVED
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WORKING WITH OTHERS

To help us provide our services and safequard the environment,

we have continued to collaborate with key partners and commurity
organisations in the delivery of a wide range of inthatives .
These have including the following

Working with Notural Resources Wales ond the farming industry
we have come together in partnership to tackle levels of pesticides
i water This has enabled us to provide on extensive awareness
carmpoign with the offer of the free hire of the weed wiper, an
ofternative application methad that reduces pesticide run-off

We have biodiversity action plans at a number of our sifes including

—— providing breeding sites for great crested grebes ot Talybont
n Brecon Beacons Natonal Park,

— monitoring red squirrel numbers and working to increase number
of srmall bird species at Liyn Brerig in North Wales,

— partnering with North Wales Wildlife Trust on their works ot
Gors Maen Llwyd nature reserve, next to our Liyn Brenig site,

—— surveying bees around our Elan estate to improve an
understanding about pollinating insects, distribution ond habitat
management;

— trapping moths and ecological survey at Elan Valley in mid Wales,

— monitoring woodlands on some of our sites to improve our
understanding of upland woodland management

We also work with others to mamntain and enhance biodiversity,
including the following

—we contributed to the Liyn Fens LIFE Project in Anglesey, which 1s
the largest wetland restoration project in Wales If fenland habitats
thrive, other plants and msects get a new lease of life, making
them greot places for local people and visitors to enjoy but are
also great sources for drninking water supplies,

—uas part of our current investment programme, we are working with
Natural Resources Wales, Brecon Beacons National Park Authonty
and other stakeholders to deliver two peat restoration projects
within S5SIs we partly own,

——we support chantable organisattons to develop and deliver local
achons that will support others to take actions that contnbute
to national effort to ensure ‘good ecological status’ of our
watercourses under the Water Framework Directive,

—as part of our effort to tackle invasive non-notive species, which i1s
considered o major threat to biodiversity locally and globally, we
support third sector organisations to delver effective actions on
the ground within our operational area Two landscape projects
have been supported to dote, one in the Dee catchment and one
in the Wye and Usk catchment

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

We are commtted to high stondards of occupational Health ond Safety and
over the period 2015-16 our like-for like performance improved with fewer
RIDDOR oceidents More information on our health and sofety strategy ond
performance Is provided in our 2016 Occupatonal Health and Sofety Report
which 1s avolable on our website gloscymiru com
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INNOVATION

The Independent Envronmental
Adwisory Panel {made up of
regulotors, acaderics and
envronmental stakeholders)
continues to advise the business
an all of the science and research
we undertake The Ponel
continues to be instrumental

in assisting us with the design

of many of cur research proposals
and supports the business
through offenng advice

The Panel has olso assisted

us to tap nto the expertise and
resources avallable in such bodies
and to build our relationships
with thern, so as to leverage
funding ond expertise into our
scrence ond research work

More generally, we have driven
elements of the naticnal research
and development agendo by
porticipaton in water industry
research inifiatives, most notably
through membership of UK
Water Industry Research Limited
{UKWIR) which monages and
coordinates the research interests
of UK water componies

We have also engoged with a wide
range of stakeholders through

a number of workshops, and our
2016 Innovaton conference

POLITICAL DONATIONS

It 1s Board policy not to moke
donations to poltical parhies or
to incur political expenditure and
duning 2015-16 no donations or
payments were made which are
required to be disclosed under
sechon 366 of the Companies
Act 2006
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GREENHOUSE GASES

The release of greenhouse gases (GHG) has an impact on chimote
chonge which, either directly or indirectly, presents considerable nsks
both to the business and the environment The Group seeks to recduce
s releases of greenhouse gases where possible and measures this
through the calculation of our operational carbon emissions

These emissions are dominated by gnd supplied energy {electrcity and
gos) accounting for 84% of the total In 2015-16 our operational carbon
ermissions fell 11% to 230 KCO2e from 261 kiCOZ2e* In 2014-15

There were three key components to this change

——the carbon content of grid supplied electricity fell 6%, reversing
much of the previcus year’s rise and confributing to the overall
fall iIn emissions,

— consurnphon of electricity rose 3 5% to 467 GWh, an unwanted
record high, os o result of increased pumping In the Waste Water
business dunng the very wet winter However, we generated 21%
of this volumae from aur own renewahle energy sites helping to
mitigate against any nse in externally sourced electrnicity The increase
in electricity consumption before the impact of energy generation
would have been equivalent to 8 ktCO2e if it had all been imported
from gnid,

——renewable energy production rose to 97 GWh (60 in GWh
2014-15) with record cutputs from all technologies anaerobic
digeshon {45 GWh), hydro (49 GWh) and solar {3 GWh) Thirteen
additionol renewable energy sites caome online 2015-16 included
hydro turbines ot Cowlyd Lower, Tyn y Waun and Dolbenmaen,
nine solar arrays and the biomethane injechon {gas-to-gnd} plant
ot Five Fords The biggest source of additional generation was the
full year effect of the ex-lnfinis hydro assets acquired in early 2015

If calculated on a hke-for-like basis to last year, the emissions would have
fallen by 5% Almost all of these emissions come from the operational
businesses Qur offices account for under 3% of the annual total
emiIssions

WELSH LANGUAGE SCHEME

We welcome dealing with customers and other stakeholders in Welsh

or English and aim to provide an effective stondard of service in both
languoges Cur Welsh Language Scheme 15 an approved scheme under
the provisions of the Welsh Language Act 1993 and we are working
closely with the Welsh Language Commissioner's office to prepare for
the implementahon of the provisions of the Welsh Longuoge Measure
20M This report 15 avallable in Welsh

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Condition F of the Instrument of Appomtment, under which

Welsh Water operates, requires that we pubhish oddittonal financial
nformohon os on ‘oppomnted business' A copy of this informahon
1s pubhshed on our website

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR-END

There have been no post balonce sheet eveats

*This wos amended post bolance sheet date to 268 KCOZe from 257 KCO2e
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2016 AGM will be held on
Fridoy 8 July 2016 ot St Dovid's
Hotel, Cordiff The business for
the AGM includes

——the approval of the Directors'
Report;

——the approval of the Financiol
Staternents for the year
ended 31 March 2016
and the approval of the
Remuneration Report for
the year ended 31 March
2016 and approval of the
Remuneration Policy,

——the election of Joanne
Kennck and Alastarr Lyons
as Directors,

— the re-election
of all Directors,

———a resolution to authonse the
Company to make donations
to EU poiitical organisations
and to incur EU political
expenditure up to defined
lirnits,

——resclutions to appoint the
auditors and to outhorse
the Audit Committee to fix
therr fees

These resolutions are all matters
of ordinary business—there I1s no
special business

Further information 1n respect
of all resolutions 1s provided In
the Nohce of 2016 AGM sent
to the Members of Glas Cymru
with this report
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
Group and parent company financial staterments in accordance with
applcable low and regulations

Company low requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they have elected to prepare the Group and the parent company
finoncial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU
and applicable law

Under company law the Dhrectors must not approve the financral
stoternents unless they are sahsfied that they give o true ond fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group ond parent company and of their
profit or loss for that period In prepanng each of the Group ond parent
cempany financial statements, the Directors are required to

——select suitable accounting policies and then apply themn consistently,
——make judgements ond eshmates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as odopted by the EU, and

—— prepore the financial staterments on the going concern basis unless
it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Group and the porent
company wili continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's transachons and
disclose with reasonable accuracy ot any hme the financiol position of the
parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard

the assetfs of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregulorties

The Directors have decided to voluntanly prepare o Directors’
Remuneration Report in accordonce with Schedule 8 to The Large

and Medium-sized Companies and Group {(Accounts and Reports)
{(Amendment) Regulatons 2013 made under the Comparies Act 2006,
os If those requirements were to opply to the company The Directors
hove also prepared a Corporate Governance Statement 10 line with the
guidance 1ssued by OFWAT

The Cirectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the
corporote and financial information included on the company's website
Legislation in the UK governing the preparatton and dissermination of
financial stoterments may differ from legislotion in other yjunsdictions

We consider the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, i1s far,
balonced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company's positon and performance,
business model and strategy

By order of the Board
Nicolo Williams

General Counsel and Company
Secretory

3 June 2016
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AUDITORS

KPMG replaces Price
Woaterhouse Coopers as auditors
to Glas Cymru for the accounts
for the year ended 31 March
2016 As part of the audit
process we have confirmed
thot, as far as each Director

1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit inforrmation of which the
cuditors ore unaware, that they
have taken steps to be made
oware of any such information
ond to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware
of that information A resolution
1o appoint KPMG will be put to
Members at the 2016 AGM

We confirm thot to the best
of our knowledge

—— The financial statements,
prepared 1n accordance with
the applicable accounting
standards, give a true and
fair view of the company's
performonce

—— The strategic report
includes o fair review of the
performance of the business,
s nsks and strategy for the
future

-——— The Directors consider
the annual report to
be fair, batanced and
understandable
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Independent Auditor’s report
to the Directors of Glas Cymru
Anghyfyngedig

Report on the financial
statements

Opinions and conclusions anising
from our audit

1 Qur opinion on the financial statements
is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Glas Cymru
Anghyfyngedig for the year ended 31 March 2016 set out
onpages 114 to 144 In our opinion

= the financial statements give a true and farr view of the
state of the Group's and of the parent company's affairs
as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

¢ the Group's financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(IFRSs as adopted by the EU),

= the parent company’s financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006, and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004

2 Qur assessment of nisks of material
misstatement

In arrving at our audit opinion above on the financial
statements the risks of matenal misstatement that had the
greatest effect on our audit were as follows

Revenue recognition (£743 2 million) and accrued income
on metered sales (£64 9 million}

Refer to page 80 (Report from the Audit Committee),
page 119 {(accounting policy) and page 133 {financial
disclosures)

The nsk

Revenue recognition 1s one of the key judgemental areas
for the financial statements, particularly n relation to the
estimate of the revenue value of water supplied to metered
customers between the last meter reading and the end

of the financial year

The calculation of revenue from metered customers and
resulting accrued income derves from an estimation of
velume of water used in the penod, the number of customers
on meters and the price per unit of water

10 FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our responsea

In this area our principal audit pracedures included testing
the processes and controls in place to ensure that the
completeness and accuracy of both revenue recagnition

and the metered sales accrual were captured, performed IT
controls testing over the Rapid Xtra system so that rehance
could be ptaced upon the completeness and accuracy of

the revenue recognised and the measured income accrual
calculation, and performed substantive analytical reviews over
the different revenue streams and accrual, taking into account
key drivers of the balance, including prce changes that have
been agreed to the Group’s published scheme of charges

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
of 1ts revenue recogrition

Classificatton of costs between operating expenditure
and capital expenditure (£245 8 million}

Refer to page 80 {Report from the Audit Committee),
page 119 (accounting policy} and page 130 {financial
disclosures}

The nsk

The company ncurs a high leve! of expenditure on fixed
assets, including repaw and maintenance, and enhancement
costs There 15 a high degree of judgement involved in
determining whether costs, both initial and subsequent
expenditure, including employee and other internal
expenditure, on both infrastructure and non-infrastructure
assets, meet the relevant entena for capitalisation {directly
attributable to the asset, prowide probable econormic benefit
and can be measured relably) Cue to the significant impact
of the decision to ¢lassify expenses as operating or capital
on both the company’s profit and the balance sheet this is
one of the key judgemental areas in our audit

Our response

In this area our audit procedures included the assessment
of both the company's capitalisation policy against the
requirements of the accounting standards, and the
application of this policy to costs incurred in the year

over both infrastructure and non-infrastructure assets

Qur controls testing included selecung a sample of projects
throughout the financial year to check that the classification
of expenditure 1s subject to review and authorisation from
the approprrate level within the business hierarchy

Our substantive testing assessed the judgements made
over this sample of projects and the findings of a third party
assessment on capitalised items We held discussions

with management and challenged the level of capitalisation
based on the company’s accounting policy for classification
of expenditure We compared the level of employee and
other internal expenditure incurred against pnor year
balances and current year budget information to identify
material changes in the nature or quantum of costs
capitahsed, with any significant movements corroborated
and investigated where necessary
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Provision for doubtful debtors (£85 3 milhon)

Refer to page 80 (Report from the Audit Committee),
page 120 (accounting pelicy) and page 133 (financial
disclosures)

The nsk

The provision for doubtful debts 15 a significant nsk area due
to the statutory requirement to provide water to customers
wha will be unable to pay The calculation 1s considered a key
audit nisk as a result of the complexity of the calculation, its
subjective nature, and because of its size and the fact that any
change in the balance sheet provision would directly impact
profit The provision methodology 1s based upon historical
cash callections, and any other external impacting factors, to
estimate the proportion of the year end receivables that the
Group expects to receive

QOur response

In this area our audit procedures included, amang others,

an assessment of whether the calculation incorporated
appropriate relevant information, nisks and data This included
a consideration of whether the provision methodology
incorporated all of the relevant information to accurately
calculate the level of irrecoverable debt, a recalculation of
the bad debt provision calculation to test the mathematical
accuracy, testing the completeness and accuracy of the data
extracted from the company's billing system used to calculate
the provision, performing sensitivity analysis on a number of
the assumptions made, in particular future cash collection
rates, and considering the data in respect of historical cash
collection trends

We challenged the Drrectors’ assumptions over the cash
collection profiles based on our analysis of histonical trends,
operational performance, histonc wrte offs, economic trends,
pricing levels and the level of provisioning across the industry
obtained through a KPMG bad debt benchmarking exercise
that 1s performed across the sector We have also considered
the adequacy of the company’s disclosures about the degree
of estimation uncertainty involved in calculating the provision

Accuracy of the pensions assumptions in relation to the
defined benefit scheme and therr impact on the pension
hability (£54 5 million}

Refer to page 80 {Report from the Audit Committee),
page 120 (accounting policy} and page 143 {financial disclosures)

The nsk

The pensions assumptions are considered a key audit nsk
based upon therr subjective nature, and the matenal impact
which these can have on the profit and loss account and
the batance sheet The nisk 15 that the assumptions used
around key areas such as discount rates, retall price index,
mortality rates and the expected return on equities are
outside of an acceptable range, which could lead to
over-or-understatement of the hiability with a corresponding
effect on 10tal comprehensive mcome

Our response

In this area our audit procedures included, among others,
an assessment, with the help of our own actuanal specialists,
of whether the assumptions used, being the discount rate,
retail pnce index, mortality rates and expected return on
equities, were within an acceptable range by companson
aganst external market data and assumptions made across
arange of similar schemes We have also considered whether
the actuanal calculations based on the assumptions of the
Directors, were based an the appropnate scheme assets
and liabilities We have also considered the adequacy of the
Group's disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the deficit
to changes in the assumptions
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Derivative finanaal instrument valuations (£414 O million)

Refer to page B0 (Report from the Audit Commuttee),
page 121 {accounting policy) and page 134 (financial disdosures)

The nsk

The Group has significant denvative financial instruments,
the valuation of which 1s determined through the application
of valuation techmgues which often involve the exercise

of Judgement and the use of assumptions and estimates
Due to the significance of financial instruments and the
related estimation uncertanty, this s considered a key

audit nsk

Our response

in this area our audit procedures included, among cthers,
an assessment of controls over the identification,
measurement and management of dervative financial
instruments and assessed the methodologtes, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in determining fair vatues,
a companison of observable inputs into valuation models
such as gquoted prices to externally avalable market data,
and a recalculation of valuations utilising our own valuation
speciahsts

Additionally, we assessed whether the financial statement
disclosures of fair value risks and sensitviies appropriataly
reflect the Group’s exposure to valuation nsk

3 Qur application of materiality and
an overview of the scope of our audtit

The matenality for the financial statements as a whole was
setat £10 0 millon This has been determined with reference
to a benchmark of the company’s gross assets (of which

it represents 0 18%), which we consider to be one of the
principal considerations for Members of the company in
assessing its financial performance

Qur audit of the company was undertaken to the materiality
level specified above and was all performed at the company’s
head office in Nelson, Treharns and S5t Mellons, Cardiff

We report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £500,000,
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds
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4 Our opinion on other matters prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006 and under the terms
of our engagement 1s unmodified

In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the
Directors have engaged us to audit the information in

the Directers’ Remuneration Report that is descnbed as
having been audited, which the Directors have decided to
prepare as if the company were required to comply with the
requirements of Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups [Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 (S1 2008 No 410} made under the Campanies Act 2006

In our opnlon

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report which we
were engaged to audit has been properly prepared in
accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-
sized Comparnies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 made under the Companies Act 2006,
as If those requirements were to apply to the company, and

* the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared s consistent with the
financial statements

5 We have nothing to report on the disclosures
of principal risks

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit,
we have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to
in relation to

* the Directors’ statement of long-term viability on page 63,
concerning the principal nsks, their management,
and, based on that, the Directors’ assessment and
expectations of the Group's continuing in cperation over
the 5 years to 2021, or

+ the disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements
concerning the use of the going concern basis of
accounting

6 We have nothing to report in respect of the
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland} we are required to report to you
if, based on the knowledge we acquired durning our audit,

we have identsfied other informatian in the annual repart that
contans a matenal inconsistency with either that knowledge
or the financial statements, a matenal misstaterment of fact,
or that 15 otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report to you if

* we have identified matenal inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired duning our audit and the Directors’
statement that they consider that the annual report and
financial statements taken as a whole s far, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's position and
performance, business model and strategy, or

* the Audit Cammuttee report does not appropnately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee

T2 FINANCIAL REVIEW

Under the Companies Act 2006 and under the terms of our
engagement we are reguired to report to you i,
1N OUr opINIoN

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financal statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report which we were engaged to
audit are not In agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

* certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the infermation and explanations
we require for our audit

In addition to our audit of the financral statements,

the Directors have engaged us to review thewr Corporate
Governance Statement in ine with the gurdance 1ssued
by OFWAT Under the terms of our engagement we are
required to review

* the Directors’ statements, set out on page 63 in relation
to going concern and longer-term viability, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement
on page 72 in the Corporate Governance Report relating
to the company’s compliance with the eleven provisions
of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code specifted
for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above
responsibilities

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 107, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial staternents
and far bemng satsfied that they gwe a true and fan view

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
1s provided on the Financial Reporting Councl’s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate This report 1s made
solely to the company’s Members as a body and 1s subject
to iImportant explanations and disclaimers regarding our
responsibilities, published on our website at

www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukeo2014b, which are
incorporated into this report as if set out in full and

should be read to provide an understanding of the purpose
of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis
of our cpimions

James Ledward
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
3 Assembly Square
Britanria Quay

Carchff

CF104AX

3 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Continuing octvities Note £m £m fm £m
Revenue T43 2 7525
Operating costs
QOperational expenditure 3 (297 3) (294 7)
Exceptional items 4 200 (19 5)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (58 0) (577)
Depreciotion and amorhsotion 3 (2477} {178 5)
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (s8z4) (550 4)
Operating prof.l.t" B - e "“'l-ﬁ-(;-é T 2021
Financing costs
Finance 'costs payable ond similar charges 50 1287 {1479)
Finance income recevable 56 33
Foir value gains/{losses) on derivetive financial instruments  Bb 393 (1571)
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" ©38) @0
Profit/(loss} baefore taxation 770 (99 6)
Toxation 6 89 195
Proftflloss) for thayear T sso (801)
Underlying profit for the year
2016 2015
£m £m
Profitf{loss) before taxation per Income Stoterment T70 (99 6)
Adjustment for
- Foir vatue {gains)/losses on dervative financial statements {see note 5b) (39 3) 1571
- Depreciotion charge on revalued assets [charge of valuation bases, see note 8) 552 -
+ Accounting profit on lease terminchion . 84
- Swap terminahon - 85
- Exceptional items (see note 4) {20 0) 195
Undarlying profit for the year ST 29 aa
Undarlying profit excluding depraciation on revalued assats w1 7

The company has elected to take the exemphon under sechon 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present
the parent company's income statement The profit of the parent company for the year was £nil (2015 £n1l)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE, INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £fm £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 859 (801
Items thot will not be reclossifisd to profit or logs
Actuanal loss recognised In thg pension scherne 22 (24 &) {32 2)
Retated deferred tax 7 a7 59
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,2478 -
Related deferred tox 7 (224 6) -
Totol sarms that wil ot be reclassified o profit of toss T Tio023 | (263)
'.r;;n.l- ;;;prehcnsivs incoma/(expanse) for the year 7% 'i ,08.8- é- ---------- E 10.64).

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Year ended Year anded Year anded Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 Morch 31 March
2016 2016 2016 2015

Revaluation Retained
reserve earnings Total Total
£m £m £m £m
{Beficst} freserves ot stort of penod - (6 4) {6 4) 1000
Profit/(loss) for the parncd - B85 9 859 (801)
Actuonal loss net of tax - (209) {(209) (26 3)
Revaluation net of fax 1,023 2 - 1,023 2 -
Transfer to retaned earnings {45 3) 453 - -
Reserves{({defici) ot end of period 9779 1039 10818 64)

There were no chonges In reserves of the parent company during the year (2015 none)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £m fm
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant ond equipment 9 48413 35784
Intangible assets 10 1057 1006
Financial assets
- denvative financial Instrurnents 16 o2 -
""""""""""""""""""""" ST T asar2 T 3em0
Current assets
Trade ond other recervables 12 5442 5326
Inventones 21 20
Financial ossets
- dervative financial instrurnents 16 36 37
Cosh and cash equivalents 13 1351 212
................................ T e e o 6850 o 809 5“-
Tobebossets oo T Tseszz sases
Liabilities
Current liokilities
Trade ond other payables 14 (527 4) {539 3)
Financiol labilmes
- borrowings 15 (T3 5) (1517)
- darivative financial instrumaents 16 (24 0) (215)
Provisions for other hobilhes and charges 18 (32) (&)
"""""""""""""""""""""""""" e (6281} (86)
Net currant assets . 569 809
Non-currant liabidities
Trade and other payables 14 (159 2) (99 8)
Financiol labilities
- borrowings 15 (2,8697) (2,998 4)
- dervative finoncial instruments 16 {393 8) (404 3)
Post employment banefits 22 (56 5) (32 5)
Prowisions for other habilties and charges 18 (13) (215)
""""""""""" o T T 4% (3sses)
Net assets before deferred tox 15136 2134
Deferred tax - net 7 {431 8) {219 8)
Net assets/(liabilrhies) B 1,0818 ©4)
Raurves-ll(;:;iclf) o oo ) 11,0818 ?6-4—)

The financial statements en pages 113 ::" 4 W F%&—‘t
to 146 were approved by the Boord of

Directors on 3 June 2016 and were C A Jones
signed on is behalf by Chief Executive

M6 FINANCIAL REVIEW | REGISTERED NQ 3975Ti9

P J Bndgewater
Finance and Commaercial Director
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current ossets
lrvestrment in subsidianies n - -
Trade and other recewvables 12 34 34
o T -3 4 34
Current assets
Cosh and cash equivalents 13 01 01
e
Liabilities
Current licbilities
Trade and ather poyables 14 (35} (35}
------ o T o (35) o (3 5)-
Net assets ) B crrTm T e
Reserves  CTTTmmmmmommmmmmmmmmmmmmm
Retained earnings - -
'i';ful ceserves T - T I

The finoncial staternents on poges 113
to 146 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 3 June 2016 and were
signed on its behalf by

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

& 4 ez

C A Jones
Chief Executve

oty et

P J Brndgewater
Finance and Commercial Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Note £ £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 1%a 3689 3810
Interest paid 19b {128 9) (123 5)
Corporation tox recewved 02 16
Net cash generated from opercting ochivities 240 2 2591
Cash flows from iavesting octivities
Interest receved 56 32
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (195 Q) (266 6)
Purchose of intangible assets {250) (25 2)
Acquisthon of subsidiary - (197)
Grants and contributions recerved 167 163
Not cash autflow from ivesting octivities {1977} (292 0)
Nat cash flow befors financing achvities 425 (329)
Cash flows from financeing activities
Long-term loans receved - 1600
Bank account movements (80 4) 779
Term loan repayments 146 6) (15 9}
Finance lease pnncipal payments (514) (574}
Other loan repayments ©2) (©2)
Net cash inflow from financing activities (178 6) 164 4
(Decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivaleats 20b 1361) 1315
Cash and ¢ash equivolents ot 1 Apnl 21z 1397
Cash and caosh equivalents at 31 March 13 1351 2nz

The parent company had no cosh flows during the year (2015 none}
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Notes to the financial statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES, FINANCING RISK MANAGEMENT AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2016

The principal accounting policies
adaopted n the preparation of these
financial staternents are set out
below These policies have been
opphed consistently to both of the
years presented with the exception
of a chonge of accounting valuation
bosis for farr value property, plant
and equipment as at the balonce
sheet date, further information is
provided in note 8

Basis of preparation

The consalidated finoncial
statements of Glos Cymiru have
been prepared in accardance with
International Finoncral Reporting
Standords (IFRS) end IFRS
nferpretatons committee {IFRS
IC) as odopted by the European
Union and the Cormpanies Act
2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS and IFRIC
interpretahons The consolidated
financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost
convention, os modified by the
revaluation of fixed assets, financial
assets and financial hobilities
{(including dervative financial
instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss

Going concern

As descrbed in the financing nsk
rmanagement sechon the Group
meets its day to day working capital
requiremnent through its bank
faciihes The Group's forecosts
and projections, taking account
of reasonably possible changes

in trading performance, show that
it should be able to operate within
its current facilies After maoking
enguires, the Directors hove a
reasonable expectahon thot the
Group has adequate resources to
conhnue operahonal existence for
the foreseeable future The Group
therefore continues to adopt the
going concern bosis 1n preparing
its financiol statements

The preparation of financiol
staternents in conforming with

IFRS requires the use of certain
cntical accounting eshimates

It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

policies The areas including o higher
degree of judgerment or complexrty,
or areas where assumphans ond
estimates are significant to the
finoncial statements are disclosed
on page 123

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial
statements include the finonciol
stotements of the company and

its subsidianes The results of
companies ond businesses acquired
duning the year are deolt with in the
consolidated finangial statements
from the dote of acquison Intra-
group fransachons ond profits are
elrmnated on consolidation

Changes 1n accounting polictes and
disclosures

The following new standards,
interpretahons and amendments

to standards and interpretations
have been 1ssued but are not
effective for the financial year
beginning 1 Apnt 2015 and have not
been odopted early

— Clarfication of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciahon and
Amorhsahon-—-Amendments
to 1AS 16 and |1AS 38

— Annual Improvermnents to
IFRSs—2012-2014 cycle

— Disclosure Inhatve—Amendments |
o lAS1

~— IFRS 2 Financial Instruments

— IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Custormers

— Effective date of IFRS 15—
amendment to IFRS 15

—IFRS 16 Leases-single on-balance
sheet model for operating and
finonce leases

The Directors currently anhcipate
that the adophon of these Standards
ond Interpretations in future periods
will have no motenol mpact on the
finonciol staterments of the Group

Revenue recognrhion

Revenue represents the income
recevable in the ordinary course

of business for services provided,
excluding Value Added Tax Where
services have been provided but for
which no invoice has been raised
at the year-end an eshmate of the
value s included in revenue (see
the 'Cnhcal accounhing estimates’

section for further detaills) Revenue
recognised reflects the value of
services provided to customers in the
year Where customers have made
payments in advance as at the year
end, this I1s recognised as deferred
income

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In
a manner consistent with the internal
reparting provided to the chief
operahng decision-maker The chief
operating decision-maoker, who is
responsible for allocahing resources
and assessing performance of

the operoting segment, has been
tdentified as the steering committee
that makes strategic decisiens

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment were
included af cost less accurmulated
deprecichon up to 31 March 2015

The economic value of the Group's
water and sewerage business is
denved from the Regulatory Capitol
Vaolue (RCV) set by Ofwat durng
it's five-yearly price reviews The
Group has decided thot a far value
opproach to valuing its assets
better reflects the underlying value
of the assets than historical cost
accounting which understates the
assets value In use

A previous revaluation of regulated
assets was undertoken as at

31 March 2004 and was used as

a 'deermed cost’ for the Group's
fixed assets under the transitional
rules availoble on first time adoption
of IFRS

As at 31 March 2016 the total volue
of tangible and intangible fixed
assets hos been revalued to the
Group's ‘shadow RCV, being the

31 March 2016 RCV published by
Otwat 1n s PR14 Final determinahon
as adjusted for the impact of any
fotex overfunderspend and the
Qutcome Delivery Incentive rewards/
penolties The classes of asset
impacted are infrastructure assets
and cperahonal structures

The carmying value of assets

will be reviewd for mpaimment

if circumstances dictate that

the carrying value may not be
recoverable, asset ines and residual
values are reviewed annually
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MNotes to tha financial stataments

1) Infrastructure assets
Infrastructure assets compnse
pnnapolly impounding reservorrs
and o network of underground
woter and wastewoter systems

For accounting purposes, the
woter systern 1s segmented

into components represenhng
categones of asset classes with
similar charactenstcs and asset
Ives The wastewater system is
segmented info components
representing geogrophical operating
areas, reflecting the way the Group
operates its wastewater activihes

Expenditure on nfrastructure

assets reloting fo increases in
capacity, enhancements or

materal replacements of network
components 1s treafed as oddihons
Expenditure incurred tn repairing
and maintaining the operating
capobilty of ndvduol infrastructure
components, "infrastructure renewals
expenditure] 1s expensed In the year
in which the expenditure 1s incurred

The depreciation charge for
infrastructure assets 1s determined
for each component of the network,
the useful overage econarmic Ives of
the infrastructure components range
principally from 60 to 150 years

2) Other assets

Other assets are depreciated on
a straight ine basis over therr
eshmated useful economic lives,
which are as follows

Freehold buildings 60 years

Operotonal structures 5 - 80 years

Plant, equipment and 3 - 40 years
computer hardware

Assets 1n the course of
construction are not depreciated
unthl commussioned Land 1s not
depreciated

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowtng
costs directly ottnbutable to the
acquisthion, construction and
production of qualifynng assets
Qualifying assets are assets that
necessonly take a substantial
pertod of hme to get ready for therr
intended use or sale

Intangtble assets
Intangible assets, which compnise
principally computer software,
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systemns developrnents and
research and development, are
included ot cost less accumulated
omortisation Cost reflects
purchase prce together with any
expenditure directly otiributoble
to bringing the asset into use,
including directly oHnbutable
internol costs Research
expenditure is recognised os an
expense os tncurred Costs tncurred
on development projects are
recognised as intangible assets
when the relevant recogniion
critena are met {as per |AS 38}

The carrying values of intangible
assets are reviewed for imparrment
if circumstances indicate they may
not be recoverable Intangible
assets ore omortised on a straight
line bosis over ther estimated
useful economic lives, which range
between 3 and 20 years These
asset lives are reviewed annually

Leased assets

Certain ossets are finonced by
leasing arrangements which
transfer substanhally all the nsks
ond rewords of ownership of an
osset to the lessee {finance leases)
These assets are copitalised and
included 1n ‘property, plant ond
equipment’ with the corresponding
hability to the lessor included within
'financial labilities—borrowings'
Leasing payments consist of a
copital element ond o finance
charge, the capital element reduces
the obligation to the lessor and
the finance chorge 1s recognised
over the perod of the lease based
on its implicit rate so as to give

o constont rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the labilty

All other leases are regarded os
operahng leases Rental costs
arnrsing under operating leases are
charged to the income staterment
on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease

Grants and customer contnbutions
Grants and custormer contnbutions
n respect of expenditure on
property, plant and equipment have
been offset against these ossets

Grants in respect of revenue
expenditure are credited to the
income statement over the same
penod as the related expenditure
15 incurred

Capital expenditure programme
incentive payments

The Group's agreements with its
construction partners involved

1n delwering capital expenditure
programmes incorporate incentve
bonuses payable after completion
of the programmes The cost of
property, plant and equipment
additicns includes an accrual for
incentive bonuses earmed to date,
relating to projects substantially
completed at the year-end, where
the hkelhood of moking the
incentive payment i1s considered
probable Amounts recoverable
from contract partners relahng

to targets not being achieved are
recognised only on completed
projects

Trade recevables

Trade recevables are recognised
wihally ot farr value and measured
subsequently at amorhsed cost
less provision for impairment

They are first assessed indwiduolly
for impairment, or collectively
where the recevobles are not
significant indwvidually Where
there 1s no objective evidence

of impairment for an indwidual
recevable, 1t 1s included in o group
of recewvables with stmilar credit
nsk characteristics and these are
assessed collectively for impairment
based on theirr ageing Movements
in the provision for impairment are
recorded in the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ond cash equivalents include
highly Ilquid investments that are
readily converhble into known
amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant nisk of
change in value Such investments
are normally those with less than
three months' maturity from the
dote of acquisition and typically
nclude cash mn hand and deposits
with banks or ather financiol
nshtutions

Pension costs

1) Defined benefit scheme

The Group cperotes a defined
benefit scherme which is funded
by both employer and employee
contributions Actuanal valuations
of the scheme are carried out at
intervals of not more than three
years Contnbution rates are based
on the advice of a professionally
qualified octuary
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Notas to the financial statements

The hability recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plons s
the present value of the defined
benefit cbligation ot the end of the
reporting period less the farr volue
of plan assets The defined benefit
ebligation 15 calculated annually
by an independent actuary using
the projected unit credit rmethod
The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rotes of
high-guality corporote bonds that
are denominoted in the currency
in which the benefits will be poid,
and that have terms to matunty
approxinating to the terms of the
related pension obhligotion

Actuanal gons ond losses arising
from expenence adjustments and
changes in actuanal assumptions
are charged or credited to reserves
in other comprehensive income 1n
the period in which they arise

Past-service costs are recognised
immediately on the face of the
profit and loss account

2) Defined contribution scheme
The Group aperates a defined
contribution scheme for those
employees who are not members
of the defined benefit scheme
Obligations for contnibutions to

the scheme are recogmsed as an
expense In the iIncome statement 1n
the period in which they onse

Financial hobilrhes

Debt 15 measured imhally ot fair
value, being net proceeds after
deduction of directly attnbutable
1ssue costs, with subsequent
measurerment ot amortised cost
Debt 1ssue costs are recogmised
in the income statement over the
expected term of such instruments
at a constont rate on the carmyng
amount

Trade payables are obligahons

to pay for goods and services
acquired i the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Accounts
poyable are classified as current
labilities f payrment 1s due within
one year, or In the normal operating
cycle of the business

Derwvative instruments utihsed
by the Group are interest rate,
inflation swaps and power hedges
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Dervative instruments are used
for hedging purposes to olter the
nsk profite of existing underlying
exposures within the Group
Dervatives are recognised nitrally
and subsequently re-measured
at farr value Dunng the yeor to
31 Morch 2016, none of the
Group's denvatives qualified for
hedge accounting under |IAS 39
{2015 none) These instruments
are carried ot far volue with
changes In foir value being
recognised immediately 1n the
inceme statement

Ceferred taxation

Deferred income tax i1s provided

in full, using the liabihty method,
on temporory differences arnsing
between the tox bases of assets
ond liobiliies and their carrying
omounts in the consohdated
financial statements However,
the deferred income tax 1s not
accounted for if it anses from
inthol recognition of an asset or
lability 1in @ transaction other than
a business combinahon that at
the time of the tronsaction offects
neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss Deferred income

tax 1s determined using tox

rates {and lows) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet dote and
are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset s
realised or the deferred mncome tax
hability 1s settled

Deferred income tox has been
recogrused n relation to rolled
over gains except for where
reinvestment has been made in
certain operational assets which
the cormpany plans to use until
the end of therr useful economic
ife The company anticipates that
these assets will then be scropped
for neglgible proceeds, or proceeds
less thon therr tox base, and
therefore no chorgeable gain

1s expected to anse in the future

Deferred income tax ossets are
recognised to the extent that it1s
probable that future toxable profits
will be available against which

the temporary differences can be
uhlised

Provistons
Provistons for restructuring costs,
diloprdathons and uninsured losses

are recognised when the Group
hos a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past
events, it 1s probable that an
outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligaton, and the
amount has been eshmated
reliobly Restructunng provisions
comprise employee severance and
pension fund top-up costs Where
the Group recewves claims that are
either not covered by insurance or
where there 15 an element of the
claim for which insuronce cover is
not available, o provision is made
for the expected future habilities
Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses

Where there 15 a number of

similar obligations, the likelihood
thot on outflow will be required

in settlement 1s determined by
considering the class of obligotions
as a whole A provision 1s
recognised even if the likelihood

of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same
class of obligation 1s smal!

Excephonal items

Exceptional items are those
significant items which are
disclosed seporately by virtue of
therr size and/for nature to enable
a true undertanding of the Group's
financial performonce

Use of adjusted measures

The Group presents an underlying
profit before tox measure This

15 used for internal performonce
onalysis as management considers
that this better represents the
underlying performance of the
business Adjustments are made
for excephonal items, addiional
deprecration charge in the year
on revalued assets, lease and
swap terminohions and far value
movernents on denvatives

FINANCING RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Treasury actvities are manoged
within o formal set of freasury
policies and objechves, which 1s
reviewed regularly and approved by
the Board The policies specifically
prohibit any transactions of o
speculative noture and the use

of complex financral instruments
Certain detailed policies for
managting mterest rate, currency
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Notes to the financial statements

and inflahon nsk and that for
managing hiquidity nsk are approved
by the Boord and may be chonged
anly with the consent of Dér Cymru
Cyfyngedig's Secunity Trustee The
nisk is rhgated further by imiting
exposure to any one counterparty
The Group uses financial
instruments to raise finance ond
manage operafional nsk, these
instruments principally include hsted
bonds, finance leases, bank loan
facies and dervotives

Credit nsk

The Group has a prudent policy

for investing cash and short term
bank deposits, set by the bond
documentahon within the Common
Terms Agreement Deposits can

be placed with our Account Bank
for overnight nsk only or for up to
one year with counterparhes thot
have a minimum short-term rating
of A1/P1/F1 from Standard &
Poor's, Moody's and Fitch Rahngs
respectively Deposits of over

one yeor should be placed with
counterpartes that have a minimum
rating of AA-/A03/AA-

In prachce, in the current economic
environment the Group has adopted
o more prudent approach to cash
management and timed deposits
are placed for o maoximum of
three months with banks subject to
minimum short-term rahing criteria
of Al/P1/F1 Bond and commercial
poper purchases of up to one year
can be placed with certain
AAA-rated supranationals only
The maximurm cash investment
with a single counterparty was
£29m (2015 £48m})

Interest rate nsk

The Group hedges of least 85%

of its fotal outstonding financial
liabilities, tncluding finonce leoses,
nto either mdex-linked or fixed rote
abligations For this purpose flaating
rate interest liobilities are hedged
through a combination of denvative
instruments and cash balances

The regulatory framework under
which revenues and the regulatory
asset value are indexed olso exposes
the Group to inflation nsk Therefore
subject to market constraints and
Board approval, the Group may seek
to mise new debt through index-
Iinked instruments or enter into
appropnate hedging transachons
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The Group analyses #s interest
rote exposure on a dynamic

basis Vanous scenanos are
simulated taking into consideration
refinoncing, renewal of exishing
positions, alternative financing

ond hedging Of tota! borrowings
of £2,943m as at 31 March 2016
(2015 £3150m) none related to
floating rate debt (2015 none)
The Group therefore considers
overall interest rate exposure at the
balance sheet date to be minimal

As at 31 Morch 2016, 100% (2015
100%) of the Group's gross debt
was ot fixed or index-linked ('RF{"}
rates of interest after toking into
account interest rate and RPI
swaps The hedges established

to manage interest rate nisks are
economic in nature, but do not
satisfy the specific requirements
of {AS 39 in order to be treated as
hedges for accounting purposes
Accordingly, all movements in the
farr value of derivative financial
instruments are reflected 1n

the income staterment This

has resulted in o net hability of
£414m in the balance sheet at

31 Morch 2016 (2015 £422m)
but, assurring that the swaps are
held to matunty, this will ulhmately
reduce to £nil

Power price hedges

The company enters into contracts
which fix the price of a proportion
of future power purchases in order
to reduce the impact of power
price variances These contracts
qualify as financial instruments
and are included In the financial
statements

Refinancing nisk

Refinancing nsk 1s managed by
maintaining o balonce between the
continuity of funding ond flexibility
through the use of borrowings
across a range of instrurments,
types and matunties The Group's
policy 15 to ensure that the maturity
profile does not impose on
excessive strain on its ability

to repay loans Under this policy,
no more than 20% of the principal
of Group borrowings of £2943m
(2015 £3150m} should fall due

in any 24 month period

Liquidity nsk

The Group maintains committed
banking facilihes \n order to provide
flexibility in the manogement of its

hquidity

Under the Common Terms
Agreerment which governs
obligations to bondholders and
other financial creditors, the Group
15 required to have cash avallable
to fund operations for 12 months
As at 31 March 2016, the Group
had committed undrawn borrowing
facilities of £280m (2015 £190m)
and cosh and cash equivalents
(excluding debt service payments
account} of £80m (2015 £129m)

In 2014, the Group cgreed o

loan facility of £230m with the
European Investment Bank £160m
of the facility was drown dunng
2015 The remamning facility of
£70m waos drawn on 17 May 2016
The Group also has an undrawn
loan facility of £60m with KFW-
IPEX Bank which 1s available up to
May 2017

The Group has £150m of undrown
revolving credit facilihes, £130m
of these will expire in May 2020
and the remainder are avallable
unhl August 2019 with an option
to extend (subject to the consent
of the provider) for o further year
to 2020 There 1s also a £10m
overdraft facility (2015 £10m}
which i1s renewable on an annual
basis

As ot 31 March 2016 there was also
a spectal hquidity facility of £135m
{2015 £135m), this 1s required in
order to meet certamn inferest and
other obligations thot connot be
funded through operating cash flow
in the event of a stondstill being
declared by the Secunty Trustee,
following an event of default

under the Group's debt financing
covenants The facility 1s renewable
on an annual basis

Caprtal nsk

The Group's objective when
managing capital Is to sofeguard
its abilify to continue as a going
concern Gen the regulatory
environment in which the Group
operates, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the
gearing roho This 1s calculated
as net debt {as defined in the
Group's borrowing covenants)
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os a proportion of its Regulatory
Copital Value {RCV) as Iinked to
movements in the Retall Prices
Index and determined by Ofwat
As at 31 March 2016 regulatory
gearing wos 57%

In respect of the risks detalled
above, further quantitative
disclosures are provided in note 17

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The preparotion of financial
statements conforming to IFRS
requires the use of estmates

and assumptions that affect

the reported omounts of assets
and liobilihes ot the date of the
financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and
expenses dunng the reporting
period Although these estimates
are based on management's best
knowledge of the amount, event
or actions, actual results ultimaotely
moy differ from those eshmates

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Indviduol impairment losses on
customer debts are calculated
based on an indwvidual assessment
of expected cash flows Collective
impoirment losses on recenvables
with similar credit nisk are
calculated using a statistical model
The key assurnption 1n the model
15 the probability of a fallure to
recover amounts when they foll

into arrears The probabity of
falling to recover 1s deterrmined

by post expenence, adjusted

for changes in external factors

The accuracy of the impairment
calculation would therefore be
offected by unexpected changes
to the economic situahon, and to
changes 1n custorner behaviour

To the extent that the failure to
recover debts in orrears alters by
1%, the provision for impairment
would increase or decrease by £0 8
milhon {2015 £0 8 million)

Pansion benefits

The present value of the pension
obligotions 15 dependent on

the actuarniol calculation, which
includes o number of assumptions
These assumptions include the
discount rote, which is used to
calculate the present value of the
estimaoted future cash outflows

GLAS CYMRU | REPORT & ACCOUNTS

that will be required to meet the
pension cbligahons In determining
the discount rate to use, the

Group considers market ytelds

of high quelity corporate bonds,
denorminoted in sterling, that have
hmes to matunty approximahing
the terms of the pension llability
Were this discount rate to reduce
or increase by 01%, the carrying
value of the pension obligations as
at 31 March 2016 would increase or
reduce by £77m (2015 £8 3m)

Measured income accrual

Revenue includes an accrual for
unbilled charges ot the year-end
The accrual 1s estmated using

a defined methedology based
upon the weighted average woter
consumpton by tanff, which 1s
calculated using histonical billing
informahan adjusted for changes
in external factors, such as weather
The total accrual as ot 31 March
2016 was £64 9 million (2015
£64 2 milhion) A 1% chonge n
actual consumption from that
eshmated would have the effect of
increasing or decreasing the accrual
by £07 million (2015 £07 million)

fair volue estimation

In accordance with IFRS 13 Farr
Value Measurement trading and
treasury dernvotives of the Group
are categorised into different levels,

Level 1 Quoted prices {(unadjusted)
n active markets for idenhcal
assets or habilities

Level 2 |nputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 thot
are observable for the asset or
hability, erther directly {prnces) or
indirectly {(derived from pnces)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or
hability not based on observable
market data

All of the Group's trading and
treosury denvatives are categorised
at Level 2 and as at 31 March 2016
were valued as follows

Assets Trading denvatives £0 2m,
Treosury derwvatives £3 6m (March
2015 Trading denvatives £nil,
Treasury dervatives £3 7m)

Liabilites Trading dervatives
£9 4m Treasury dervatives
£408 2 {(March 2015 Trading
derivatives £4 2m, Treasury
dervotives £425 8m)

Trading derivahves relate to power
pnce hedges Treasury denvatives
relate to interest rate swap

contracts and are recorded on the
baolonce sheet at farr volue These
have all been assessed as Level 2

The power prnce hedging controcts
have been fair valued using rates
that are quoted In an achive
market Interest rate swops are far
valued using forward interest rates
extracted from observable vield
curves The effects of discounting
are generally insignificant for Level
2 dervatives

Level 2 debt investmants are
valued using a discounted cash
flow approach, which discounts
the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from
observable market prices of other
quoted debt instruments of the
counterpartres

There were no transfars between
levels 1 and 2 during the year

Capitalisation

There 1s a high degree of
judgement involved in determining
whether costs, both inihal and
subsequent expenditure, ncluding
employee and other internal
expenditure on both infrastructure
and non-infrastructure ossets,
meet the relevant criteria for
copitalisation (directly attnbutable
to the asset, provide probable
economitc benefit ond con be
measured rehably) and therefore
are included n the valuotion of
property, plant and equipment, or
alternatively should be expensed
immediately

2. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Directors consider that there
1s only one operating segment,
berng the operation of water and
seweroge business (and penpheral
commercial activities) in the UK
As the Group has only domestic
actvhes there 1s also only cne
geographical segment, therefore,
the disclosures for this segment
have clso already been given In
these financial statements
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3 PROFIT/{LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

The following items have been included in arriving at the profit/{loss} before taxation

Group 2016 2015
£m £fm
Opserational expanditure
- Power 426 441
- Chemicals 95 a1
- Materials and equiprment 57 55
- Vehicles and plant T2 70
- Office expanses T3 50
- Property costs 45 42
- lnsurance 45 39
- Sewerage contractors 149 17
- Laboeratories and analytical services 0é6 09
- Collection commissions 40 40
- IT contracts 136 89
- Bought-in services and other costs 356 257
Employee costs (note 21} 1272 226
Staff costs capitahised (46 2) 454)
Research and development credit (1) -
Trade recevables impairment 270 297
Rates 253 263
Natural Resources Wales/Ervironment Agency charges T 58
Fees poyable to auditors 04 03
Total operotional expenditure before exceptional itams 2973 2947
Exceptional items (20 0) 195
Total operctional expenditura including exceptional iterms 2773 3142
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 580 577
Depreciohon ond amortisation
- Depreciation of property plant ond equipment 2307 1662
- Release of deferred income (35) (2 3)
- Amortisation of intangible assets 199 146
Total depreciaticn and omortisation 2471 1785
';;.fol opcrt;hng coss 582 4 5504
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Services provided by the Group's auditors

During the year, the Group obtained the following sernces from s stotutory auditors

Group 2016 2015
£000 £000
Audit foes
Audit of parent company and consolidated financral stotements 10 13
Audit of subsidiary companies 85 98
Totaloudt fees T s m
Avdit-related assurance services
Review of intenim financial statements 22 23
Regulatory audit services pursuant to legislation 29 29
Regulatory price review assurance work - 60
Scheme of charges assurance work 22 22
Investor report reviews 5 8
To?.c.n‘lc;u-dlt-r:;n;i o-adl;:relc-afed assuronce serw.c.;; -------- o - -"173 o 253. )
Other services
Replocement billings system project ossurance work - 68
Assurance on Group restructure 3 -
Pensions advice 235 -
Tox adwice 5 -
Assurance on morket opening 25 _
Other - 2
Totof other services T 268 0
Total cost of services provided by the Group's avdifors T am s

Regulatory oudit services include oudit work on the Annual Performonce Report

The Board has adopted o formal policy with respect o services recewed from external cuditors The external
auditors will not be used for internal audit services and afl nen-cudit work above a threshold of £25,000 will be
subject to prior competitive tendenng and opproval by the Audit Committee

4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

During the year to 31 March 2016, a business rates refund of £20 milllon was receved relating to the 2005 water
network assessment This has been treoted as exceptional due to its size

On 22 March 2015 Glas Cymru announced a Selective Voluntary Severance Scheme as part of the AMP& change
programme n order to assist the business in meeting Ofwat’s Final Determination of revenue controls for the
pencd from Apnl 2015 to Morch 2020 As a consequence £176 million of restructunng costs were considered
excephonat by nature and were disclosed separately in the financiol statements to 31 March 2015

A credit of £21 mullion related to the releose of unuhlised provision in respect of o previous programme of
restructuring A further £4 0 millien excephional chorge orose following the write-off of goodwill ansing on the
acquisthon of hydro assets through an asset purchase vehicle In totol, this gave nse to an excephonal charge for

the penod to 31 March 2015 of £195 million
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5. FINANCING COSTS

a) Finonce cost bafore fair value gains/(losses) on denvative financial instruments

Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Interest payable on bonds (877 (872)
Indexation on index-linked bonds {137) (28 6)
Indexation on index-linked loan 14) -
Interest payable on finance leases {including swaps to RPI} (14 4) (217)
Other loan interest (127 {130)
Other interast payabte and finance costs {2 3) 32}
Net intarest charge on pension scheme liabilities no) {0O7)
Accounting profit on termunation of leose - B84
Swap termination - {8 5)
Capitalisation of borrowing costs under |AS 23 (2016 34%, 2015 5 3%) 39 60
o e e e az87n) ¢ (1479)
Finance income 56 33
Net finance cost bafara far value adjustments T n23y (144 6)

b) Fair velue gains/({losses) on dernivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instrumants are held for economic hedging purposes although they do not qualify os
accounhing hedges under IAS 39 Consequently, the Group's interest rate and index-linked swaps are fair valued ot
each bolance sheet date with the net loss or gain disclosed in the income statement Over the life of these swaps,
If held to matunty, these farr value adjustments will reverse and reduce to zero (See note 16 In respect of dervative
finoncial Instruments held on the balance sheet)

Graup 2016 2015

£m £fm

Farr value gains/(losses) on interest rote swaps 152 (367)

Farr value of interest rate swaps terminated - a8z

Fawr value goins/{losses) on index-linked swaps 241 (128 6)
Totol forr valua gains/{losses) on danvatve financiol instruments ) 393 (1577

Interest rate swap movements are caused by fluctuations in long-term swap rotes, while the index-linked swap
movements result from fluctuations between the value of index-linked gilts ond 3-month LIBOR

No interest rate swaps were terminated during the year to 31 March 2016 Three interest rates swops were
terminated on 31 March 2015 ot a cost of £8 5m
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6.TAXATION

Analysis of (charge)/credit in the year

Group 2016 2015
£m £m

Current tox

- Current tax on profits for the yeor [(+D}] {on
- Current tax on research and development credit (02) {on
- Adjustment in respact of priar years a4 05
Totol coment fox ST ‘o1 o3

Deferred tax

- Ongination and reversal of timing differences (259 8) 257
- Adjustment in respect of prar year (0 3) (08&)
- Effect of tax rate chonge 480 -
Totol deferred fox (note 7) B @2y 251
Taxation .(;L;rge)l et T ( i._’12“(‘))“ o -2:.54:'
Anoclysed as

Credited to Income Staternent 89 195
Credited to Statement of Comprehensive Income - pension scheme 37 59
Chorged to Statement of Comprehensive Income - revaluation reserve {224 &) -

T T @200 254

Tax trading losses carried forward as at 31 March 2016 are circa £232m (2015 circo £286m)

The effective rate of tax for the year 1s higher (2015 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tox in the UK
of 20% {2015 21%) The differences are explomned below

Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Profit{{loss} before tax 770 (99 6)
Proft/{loss) before tax multiplied by the corporation tax rate in the UK of 20% (2015 21%) 154 (209)
Effect of
- Adjustments in respect of prior yeors (0 2) -
- Qther permanent differences 01 10
- Effect of pension poyments in excess of service charge {01 {0 &)
- Effect of tax rate change {48 0) 10
- Movement on deferred tax asset relating to revoluotion reserve 2496 -
- Movernent on deferred tax asset relahing to pension scheme {4 8) {59)
Total toxation (charge)/cradit 2120 {25 4)
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T DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 15 calculated in full on temparary differences under the liobility rmethod using a tax rate of 18% (2015
20%)

The mavement in the deferred tax provision 1s as shown below

Group 2016 2015
£m £m
At 1 April 2198 2413
Cradrt to Income Stotement {89) (19 6}
Charge fo Statement of Comprehensive Income 37 (59)
Deferred tox recogrised on business combinotion - 40
Charge to Revaluation Reserve 224 6 -
At AMach S ana 298
Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Effect of
- Tox allowances In excess of depreciation 3012 3674
- Deferred tax on revoluation of fixed assets 2496 -
- Capitol goins rolled over 29 e
T e e 5537 3106
- Deferred tax on tox losses carned forward {42 0) (572)
- Defarrad tax on losses on dernvative financial instruments {68 6) (84 4)
- Pensions {98) &)
- Other tox differences {15) 37
Net provision for deferred fox s 2198

Deferred tox assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences gving nse to
deferred tox assets becouse it is proboble that these assets will be recovered Under the current tox regme, trading
tax losses carned forward will be ovalloble to offset trading profits 1n future pertods

The Company has no deferred tox bolonce (2015 £nil)
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8 REVALUATION RESERVE

The economic value of the Group's water ond seweroge business i1s derived from the Regulatory Capital Volue
(RCV) set by Ofwat dunngit's five-yearly price reviews The Group hos decided that a farr value approach to vatutng
its assets better reflects the underlying volue of the assets than historical cost accounting which understates the
assets value in use

A previous revaluction of regulcted assets was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and was used as o ‘'deemed cost’
for the Group's fixed assets under the transitional rules availloble on first time adoption of IFRS

As ot 31 March 2016 the fotal volue of tangible and intangible fixed assets hos been revolued to the Group's
‘shadow RCV, being the 31 March 2016 RCV published by Ofwat in its PR14 Final determination as adjusted for
the impact of any totex overfunderspend ond the Outcome Delivery Incentive rewards/penalties The classes of
assetf impacted are infrostructure assets and operational structures

The carrying value of assets will be reviewd for impairment If circumstances dictate thot the carrpng value may not
be recoverable, asset nes and residual values are reviewed annually

Revaluotion reserve movement 31 March 2016

£m

Revaluation raserve as at 1 April 2015 -

Revaluation of assets to RCV 1,2478
Depreciation charge on revolued assets {565 2}
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" T e2e
Deferred tox on revoluohcn {224 6)
Deferred tox on depreciatan charge 99
T o T ey
Revoluction reserve as of 31 March 2016 o T 9779

P
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Current year Plant,
equipment,
Freehold tond  Infrastructure Operational computer
Group & buldings assets structures hardware Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At Apnl 2015 375 17897 35499 2579 56350
Revaluatton - 1954 - - 1954
Additions net of grants and contributions 41 1050 1320 41 2458
Disposal - - - (C2) (02)
At 31 March 2016 16 2,0901 3,6819 262 4 6,076 C
Accumulated deprectation
At Apnl 2015 191 2904 14940 2531 2,056 6
Revaluchon - {330 5) {(7219) - (1,052 4)
Chorge for the year o7 401 1831 68 2307
Releosed on disposal - - - 02 {C2)
At 31 March 2016 198 - 955 2 2597 1,234
Not book volue
At 31 March 2016 218 2,0901 27267 27 48413
At 31 March 2016 (historic cost bases) 218 1,574 0 2,050 2 27 3,6487
The net book value of property, plant and equipment includes £1090m in respect of assets in the course
of construchon (2015 £98 Om)
The net book value of property, plant and equipment includes £35 7m of borrowing costs capstalised
In accordance with 1AS 23 {2015 £33 3m), of which £3 4m were additions in the yeor {2015 £5 ém}
Prior year Plant,
aguipment,
Freehold lond  Infrastructure Qperctional computer
Group & buldings assets structures hardware Total
£m frm £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 368 17358 33073 2528 53327
Additions net of grants and contnbutions oT 539 2426 51 3023
At 31 March 2015 375 17897 35499 2579 56350
Accumulated depreciotion
At 1 Apnl 2014 187 2626 1,363 4 2457 1,8904
Charge for the year 04 278 1306 74 662
At 31 March 2015 191 2904 14940 2531 20566
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 184 14993 20559 48 35784
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Assets held under finance leases

Included within the obove cre assets held under finance leases as anolysed below

Group
Currant year Infrastructure Operationol

assets structures Total

£m £m £m

At 31 Morch 2016
Cost 6nes ni7 7295
Accumulated depreciation (105 6) {815) {1871
Nef book value o T T s062 362 5424

Prior year Infrastructure QOperctional
ossels structures Total
£m £m £m
At 31 Morch 2015
Cost eng 7 7895
Accurmulaoted depreciation (979) (1009) (198 8)
Netbookwolve T o9 e 5907
The parent company owns no property, plant or equipment
10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group Cost Amartisation Net book valve
Current year £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2015 2163 {5 7) 1006
Addtions/(charge far the year) 250 (199} 51
At3iMarch20t6 T a3 7 w356 1057
Pnior year Cost Amortisotion Net book value
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2014 1850 1011} 839
Addtions/{charge for the year) 313 (4 6) 167
At 31 M-or;:h 2015 N 216 3 B (1157 T _1606"

intangible assets comprise cormputer software and reloted systern developments

The net book value of Intangible assets includes £20 2m in respect of ossets in the course of construction (2015
£47m) The net book value of intangible assets includes £2 8m of borrowing costs capitahsed in accordance with
1AS 23 (2015 £2 3m), of which £0 5m were additions in the year {2015 £04m)

The parent compony owns no intangible assets
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1 INVESTMENTS

Group
Equity of less than 10% 1s held in the following unlisted company

Principol activihies Country of incorporation Holding

Water Research Centre (1989) plc  Woter research England and Wales B" Ordinary Shares of £1

Parent Company \

The parent company has a £1 investment in Glas Cymru {Secunties) Cyfyngedig {100% holding) and has indirect
investments in the foflowing subsidiary undertakings

Principal activities Country of incorporotion Holding
D Cymiru (Heldings) Lirmited Holding company Englond and Wales 100%
Dvir Cymru Cyfyngedig Water and sewerage Englond and Woles 100%
Dwr Cymru (Financing) Limeted Raising finance Caymon Islands 100%
Welsh Water Utilthes Finonce plc Dormant England and Wales 100%
Hydro 1 Limited Dormant Englond and Wales 100%
Dwer Cymru Custormer Services Limited Dormant Englond and Wales 100%

Dvir Cymru Customer Services Limited ceased trading during the year It s the Group's intention to hquidate the
dormant entities Welsh Water Utilifies Finonce plc, Hydre 1 Limited and Dwr Cymiru Customer Services Limited by
31 December 2016

Further information on the Group's structure i1s available 1n the Annual Report on poge 71
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
Current £m £m £m £m
Trade recevobles 5370 5279 - -
Provision for impoirment of recevables (85 3) (789) - -
Tade recewobles - net as17 4as0 - N
Prepayments and accrued income 820 74 3 - -
Other recevables 105 93 - -
Non-current
Armounts receivable from Group undertakings - - 34 34
""""" o ST 34 34
Toi;l ;;nda and other rocoivobla-s. ....... 5442 o .5;32 6 B 34 ’ -34—1—

All non-current receivables are due within five yeors fram the bolance sheet date

As at 31 March 2016, based on a review of histoncal collection rates it was considered thot £85 3m (2015 £78 9)
of trade recevables were impared and these have therefore been provided for The impared recevables relate
rmainly to the supply of measured and unmeasured water Trade recevables aged greater than one month are paost
due, the net column shows amounts deemed not to be iImparred

The ageing of recewvables was as follows

Current yeor Total Prowvided for Nat
Trade receivobles £m £m £m
Billed in advance 3737 - T3y
Under one manth 187 (80) 107
Between one and six months 389 (17 3) 216
Between six months ond one year 306 {61) 245
Between one ond two years 46 8 37 151
Between two and three yeors 261 (20 0) 61
Ovaer three years 22 {2 2) -
-------------------------------------------------- 5370 o T “(85 3) T 4517
Prior year Total Provided for Net
Trade receivables £m £m £m
Billed in advance 3775 - 3775
Under one month 247 (72) 175
Between one and six months 281 {14 167
Between six months and one year 442 (147) 301
Between ong and two years 307 (252) 55
Between two and three years 204 (187 17
Over three years 23 {2 3) -
T mmmmmmmm mmmmm—m—— 5219 oy 4490
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The maximum exposure to credif nsks of the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recewvoble
mentioned above The Group does not hold any collateral as security

Movements in the provision for iImpairment of trade recevables are as follows

2016 2015

£m im

At 1 Apnl 789 659
Charge to Income Statement 264 2N
Recevobles wntten off during the yeor as uncollectable (200) (6en
M3March T o 853 789

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operationa! expenditure

The other classes of trade and other receivables do not contain impaired ossets All trode and other recevables
are denominated in Sterling

The tfotal charge to the income staterment of £270m {2015 £297m) incudes the bad debt element of local
authority collection charges where local authorities collect debt on the Group's behalf (2016 £0 6m, 2015 £0 6m)

13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2016 205 2016 2015
£m fm £m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 477 1362 o1 Ci
Short-term deposits ara 1360 - -
S Crmmmm e o 1351 2Nz O:I- -------- O'l

The effective interest rate on short-terrn deposits as at 31 March 2016 was 0 5% (2015 0 4%) and these
deposits had an overage matunty of 43 days (2015 30 days) With the excephon of 3m Euros, all cash and cash
equivalents are held 1n Sterling

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Compony
2016 2015 2016 2015
Current £m £m £m £m
Trade poyables an 493 - -
Copital poycbles 413 409 - -
Amounts due to Group undertakings - - as 35
Social secunty and other taxes 40 39 - -
Accruals ond deferred income 4450 4452 - -
) 5214 5393 35 35
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Non-curreat £m £m £m £m
Deferred income 1592 998 - -
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15 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

Current
Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Cash ond cash equivclents 428 1232
Interest accruals o8 60
Unamartised bond premium 06 06
Unamartised bond issue costs (0 4) (03}
European Investment Bonk loans 203 ne
Local autharity loans o1 03
Finance lease obligations 93 03
e T T as 117
Non-current
Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Interest accruals 468 528
Bonds 1,987 4 20055
Unomorhsed bond premivm 66 73
Unamorhsed bond 1ssue costs (4 3) 47)
Kfw Bank loan - 350
European Investment Bank loans 3861 4050
Local authonity loans o6 06
Finonce lease obligations 4465 4969
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 2,86;7"" 2,998 4.

The parent company, Glas Cymru Anghyfyngedig has no borrowings

A secunty packoge wos gronted by Evir Cymiu Cyfyngedig (DCC), as part of the Group's bond pragramme
for the benefit of holders of senier bonds, finance lessors and other seniar financial creditors

The obligations of DCC are guaranteed by the company, Glas Cymru (Secunties) Cyfyngedig and Dvr Cymru
{Holdings) Limited The main elements of the secunty packoge are

— a first fixed ond floating security over all of DCC's assets and undertaking, to the extent permitted by the
Water Industry Act, other applicable law ond its licence, ond

— o fixed and floating secunty given by the guarantors referred to above which are acerued on each of these
componies’ assets including, in the case of Dvwr Cymru (Holdings) Limited, a first fixed charge over its shares
n DCC

The Group's Class A Bonds of £979m (2015 £973 7m) benefit from a guarantee from MBIA UK Insurance
Limited {"MBIA") MBIAs credit rating has been reduced to Ba2 and BB by Moody's and S&P respectively,

and 15 no longer rated by Fitch The credit rating of the Class A bonds has therefore defoulted 1o the higher
underlying rating of these bonds, of A3/A/A from Moady's, S&P and Fitch respectively The underlying rating
reflects the standalone credit quality of these bonds without the benefit of the MBIA guarantee, and 1s the same
as the credit ratings of the Group's Closs B bonds of £1,008 4m (2015 £1,000 6m)
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16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derwvative finonciol instruments ore held for economic hedging purposes However, they do not qualfy
as accounting hedges under IAS 39 and movements in their fair value are taken to the Income Stotement

(see note 5b) The foir values of all dervative financial instruments held by the Group ore the result

of mark-to-market pricing by the 1ssuing counterparties and as such fall within Level 2 of the fair value

hterarchy set out in IFRS 7

Group - current year Farr values
Assels Liobilities
£m £m
Current
Index-linked swaps 36
Interest rate swops -
Power hadging swaps -
e e L e = e ee e = wcommee caoe aemen wee mae = e e - -___3 U
Non-current o o T
Index-linked swaps -
Interest rote swops -
Power hedging swaps o2
___________ e e U .,._o,.z_.... .
h T3 e
Group - prior year Farr values
Assets Liobilities
£m £m
Curront
Index-linked swaps 37 (32 0)
Interest rate swaps - (95)
TTm T mmm—m—m—— E 2~ =
Mon-current
Index-linked swops - (3076)
Interest rate swaps - {967)
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" T T T T T M aoa )
Total T a7 T (4258)

In occordonce with 1AS 39, ‘Financial instruments Recognition ond Meosurement; the Group has reviewed all
contracts for embedded derrvatives thot are required fo be accounted for separately if they do not meet certain

requirements set out in the standard The Group has no such embedded dervotives as per IAS 39

The parent company has no dervative financial nstruments or embedded dervatves

Interest rate swops

At 31 March 2016 on interest rate swop fixes the interest rote on £192m (2015 £192m) of floating habilities held
by the Group The matunty date of the swap 1s 31 March 2031 and the quarterly LIBOR fixed interest rate 1s 5 67%

Index-linked swops
Finance lease swaps

The index-hnked swops hove the effect of index-linking the inferest rate on £382m (2015 £425m) of finance

lease habilities by reference to the Retaill Prices Index ("RPI*)

The notional armount of index-haked swaps cllocated 1o finonce leases os ot 31 March 2016 1s £400m (2015
£427m), representing the overage balance on the finonce leases subject to floating interest rotes for the yeor to
31 March 2016 The nefional amount amorhises over the life of the swaps to match the average floating rate

balances of the leases
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The principal terms are os follows

Notional armount £400m amortsing (2015 £427m amortising)
Average swap matunty 23 years (2015 23 years)

Average interest rate 163% fixed plus RPI (2015 163% fixed plus RPI)
Bond swap

The index-linked swaps have the effect of iIndex-linking the interest rote on £100m of fixed rate bonds by reference
to the RPI

The principal terms are as follows

Indexed notional amount £133m (2015 £137)

Swap maturity 41 years (2015 42 years)

Interest rate 135% indexed by RPI (2015 135% indexed by RPI)

17 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The policies of the Group in respect of finoncial nsk management are included N the accounting pelicies note
on page 121 The numerical financial instrument disclosures as required by IFRS 7 are set out below

a) Interest rate nsk

The effective Inferast rotes at the bolonce sheet dates were as follows

2016 2015
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 05% 04%
Liobilities
Bonds 4 4% 4 4%
European Investment Bonk loans o07% 12%
KW loan - 12%
Local authonty loans 42% 40%
Finance leose obligations 10% 08%

Trade ond other recevables and poyables are non interest-beanng

The effective interest rates ignore the effect of the Interest rate and index-linked swops set out in note 16
They also exclude the indexation charge applicable to the iIndex-linked bonds
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b) Liguidity nsk

Group - current year Within 1 year 1- 2 yeors 2 - 5years > 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Assots
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 1351
Trade ond other recevobles - W - .. 5442
O, L. 4-- S S T e e T e €193
Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 428 - - . 428
Bonds 6 o7 32m 1,666 2 1994 6
Euvropean Investrment Bank loans 203 216 959 268 6 406 4
Locol authenty lcans 01 01 04 o1 o0 §
Finonce leose obhgations 93 105 405 3955 4558
Trade and other payobles 5274 18 49 1525 686 6
Future Inferest payable | | e 1088 MOT3 3047 223 14301
706 3 1420 T735 33952 50170
Group - prior year Within 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - Byeors > 5 years Total
£fm £fm £m £m £m
Assets
Cash ond cosh equivalents 272 - - - 2N 2
Trade and other recevables 5326 - - - 5326
TroTmrrmmmmmm e Tsozs T o 8038
Libilhes 77 T T o
Cash ond cash equivalents 1232 - - - 1232
Bonds 06 06 o7 2015 20134
KfW Bonk loan - - 350 - 350
Europeon Investiment Bank loans neé 203 723 324 466
Local authority loens 03 o1 05 - 09
Finance lease obligations 103 501 360 4108 5072
Trode and other payables 5393 18 49 930 6390
Future Interest payable 1037 1044 3001 11,0157 15239
"""""""""""" " 7890 1773 aags 38434 | 52592
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due os follows
2016 2015
£m £m
Gross finance lease habilities
Within one year 163 162
Between two ond five years 906 1230
After five years . L 4547 5058
576 6450
Future mnterest - M5B (1378)
Netfioancelease iobihtes T N 5072
Net finance lease hobilities are repoyable os follows I e e e i
Within one ysar {note 15) 93 ] 03
Between two and five yeors 510 860
After five years . 3955 4109
Total over ane yeor (note 15) 446 5 496 9
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c) Fair values

The fair values of the Group's dervative financial mstruments are set out In note 16 The following fable surmmanses
the far value and book value of the Group's bonds

2016 2015

Book value Fair value Book volue Fair value

£m £m £m £m

Bonds (note 16) 1,994 6 2,604 9 20134 26716

The far volues of all other financial nstruments are equal to the book values

d) Borrowing faciliies

As ot 31 March 2016, the Group had available uadrawn committed borrowing facilihies of £280m expinng as set
out below, in respect of which all condirons precedent had been met (2015 £190m)

2016 2015
£m fm
Expiring in less than 1yeor

- term loon factity 70 -

Expiring in more than 1 year
- revolving credit focilihies 150 120
termloonfeelly i e e 60 70

P e e e

) 280 190

The remaining £70m of a £230m loan facility with European Investment Bank was drawn on 17 May 2016

The Group also has an undrawn loan facility of £60 million with KFW-IPEX Bank which can be drawn up to May
2017, and £150m of undrawn revolving credit facilities of which £130m will expire in May 2020 The remaining £20
million 15 availlable unhl August 2019 with an ophon to extend for a further year to 2020

Cwr Cymru Cyfyngedig also has a £10m overdraft facility renewable on an onnuol basis

At 31 March 2016 Dvr Cymiru (Financing) Limited also had ¢ special liquidity facility of £135m (2015 £135m)
which it I1s required to maintoin in order to meet certain Group Interest ond other obligatons that cannot be funded
through operating cash flow of the Group, in the event of a standstll being declared by the Secunity Trustee

A stondshit would occur in the event that Dvir Cymru Cyfyngedig defaults on its debt financing covenants

No such covenant default has arisen dunng the year The facilty 1s renewable on an annual basis

All of the above facilities are at floating rates of interest

e) Capital nsk management

Gearing rotios

2016 2015

£m £m

Totol borrowings {2,943) {3,50)
Less cosh ond cash equivalents 135 2N
Net debt i T o ST ST {2,608) (2,879)
Regulatory copital value (RCV) 4,983 4,831
Totol coprtal T mmmmmm———— ———— 2,175 1,952
Less unomorhised bond costs and swap indexation (38) (5)
'I";)t-c-:l“copnol per bond covenont;;" ....... N 2137 1947
Gearing rotic 57% 60%

As set out on page 122, the Group monitors its cepital structure bosed on a regulatory geanng ratio which
compares its net debt to the Ofwat-determined RCV
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18 PROVISIONS FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND CHANGES

Restructuring  Dilaptdotion Ununsured Other
provision proviston loss prowvision provisions Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2015 77 17 46 36 276
Charged to income staterment - - 08 06 14
Unused amounts reversed - {0 6) - - {06)
Utibsed in year (118} {03) {15) 03) 139)
A3 March2006 &g o8 39 39 145
Split os
Amounts to be uhlised within one year 28 04 - - iz
Amounts to be utised after mere than one year 31 04 39 39 n3
At3March20v6 59 o8 a9 a9 1 45

The parent company has no provisions at 31 March 2016 (2015 £nil)

Restructuring provision

This provides for the cost of restructuring assoctated with a reduction in the headcount by around 360

Dilapidations provision

This provision relates to estimated dilapidation costs, which will be incurred over the next five years

Uninsured loss provision

This provision is in respect of uninsured losses and instances where insurance does not cover a deduchble
amount The vhilisation penod of these habilihes 1s uncertain due to the nature of claims, but 1s estmated

to be within five years

Other provisions

Other prowisions are made for certain other obligotions which anse dunng the ordinary course of the

Group’s bustness
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79 NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

o) Coash generated from operations

Reconciltation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

Group 2016 2015
£m £m
Operoting profit 1608 2021
Adjustments for
- Depreciation ond amortisation 24T 185
- Changes in working capttal
Increase in trade and other recewvables (118) (74)
(Increose)/decrease in inventones {O1) 03
Decrease in trade ond other poyables {12 4) (67)
Pension contnbuhons obove service cost {186) (24)
(Decrecse)/increase In provisions {131 126
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" S C@ve) (e
- Other adjustments - 40
Cosh generated from operations T " T3eas | 380
b) Interest paid
Group 2016 2015
£m £m
tnterest poyoble per wncorne stoterment 287 1479
Less non-cash itermns
- tndexation on index-hnked bonds (137 (28 &)
- Indexation on index-linked delbxt {14) -
- Amorhisation of bond I1ssue costs 02) Loe)]
- Interest charge on pension scheme habilities 10) -
- Amortisation of bond 1s5ue premium o7 [¢X5)
- Effect of capitalisation under [AS 23 39 60
- Accounting profit on lease termination - 84
- Decrease/{(incrense) in accruals n3 {10 5)
T o ez T @44
Interest poid 28 1235
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20 ANALYSIS AND RECONCILIATION OF NET DEBT

@) Net debt ot the balance sheet date may be analysed as

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 1351 272 01 ol

Debt due ofter one year (2,376 4) (2,4487) - -

Debt due within one yeor (63 4) 135 4) - -

Finonce leases {455 8) {507 2) - -

Accruad interest (AT 6) (58 B) - -

T T @essa @mson - -
Net (debtifcash R 28087  (28789) on 01

b) The movement in net debt duning the year may be summarnsed o3

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Net {debt)fcash at start of year {2,878 9) 12,815 95) 0‘1 01
Movement in net cash {1361} 1315 - -
Movement in debt arising fram cash flows 1786 (164 4) - -
Movemant in net dabt arising from cash flows - 425 @29y - - -

Moverment 1n accrued Interest
Indexation of index-linked debt

Bond indexation

Accounting profit on lease termination

Other non-cosh movamants

Movernent in net debt during the yeor

Net (debt)/cash ot end of year (2,8087) (2,878 9) o1 01
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21 EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Staff costs for the Group dunng the year

2016 2015
£m £m
Wages and solaries 1049 1007
Social security costs 97 96
Other pension costs 126 123
T ST T e T T eze
Of the above, £46 2m (2015 £45 4m) has been capitalised
Average monthly numbaer of people employed by the Group 2016 2015
{tneluding Executive Dirgctors) Number Number
Regulated water and sewerage actvities 3,007 2962

For further information see the Remunerction Report on page 84

22 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Greup operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme {based on final pensionable salary
and pensionable service), the Welsh Woter Pension Scheme The ossets of the scheme ore held in
a separate trustee-administered fund

The Welsh Water Pension Scherme was closed to new members from 31 December 2005 and a new defined
contnbution scheme, the Dwr Cymru Defined Contribution Scheme, was introduced from 1 Januery 2006

Defined banefit scheme

A full actuarial valuation of the scheme was undertoken as at 31 March 2013 by Joanne Eynon of Quantum
Adwvisory, on independent, professionally qualified actuary, using the projected unit method This valuahon has been
updated as at 31 March 2016 and the principal assumptions made by the octuanes were

2016 2015
Discount rate 36% 34%
Inflation assumption 30% 30%
Rate of increase in pensionable salanes 30% 20%
Rate of increase 1 pensions in poyment 29% 29%
Post rahrament mortolity (life expactancy)
- Current pensioners aged 65 - males 870 years 87 2 yeors
- Current pensioners aged 65 - femoles 88 9 years 89 4 years
- Future pensioners aged 65 (currently aged 45) - males 88 2 years 88 6 years
- Future pensioners aged 65 (currently aged 45) - fernales 90 4 years 909 years
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EFRBS

During 201, the Company put orrangements i place vio an Employer Financed Retirement Benefit Scheme (EFRBS)
for four 'capped’ Executive Members of the scheme The accrua! of benefits under this agreement 1s conditional on
rermaining a member of the Dvir Cymiru Welsh Water Scherme At 31 March 2016, there were three Executive Members
with enhtlements under this arrangerment, one of whorn has commenced the receipt of hus benefits

The mortahty assumpthions are the S2PxA base tables with future improvements in ine with the CM1 2015

projection model with a long term trend rote of 1% p a

The major categortes of plan assets, as a percentage of total assets ond the expected long-term rates of return

thereon, were as follows

Present value of obligation Fair volue of plan assets Total
£m £m £m
At Apnl 2015 3966 (3661) 305
Current service cost 100 - 00
Interest expense/income 134 {12 4} 10
Past service cost - - -
Expenses T ST o5 05
oo e g T me ns.
Remeasuremaents
Gain from change 1n dermographic assumphons (4 5) - (4 5)
Gain frem chonge in finonciol assumptions 204 - 204
Experience gans {75) 62 87
o R 84 62 T246
Contributtons - {121 21
Benefits paid {15 3) 153 -
T 32 )
At3March 2006 T 513 - (358 6) 545
Present value of obligoton Farr vafue of plan assets Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2014 3201 (318 9) 12
Current service cost 87 - 87
Interest expense/income 147 (147} -
Past service cost 04 - 04
Expenses - 02 o2
Y (145) E
Remeasuraments
Gain from change in demogrophic assumphons - - -
{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 607 - 607
Experience gomns - (28 4) (28 4)
- 607 (28 4) 323
Contributions - {12 3) (12 3)
Benefits pard (80) 80 -
o ) @o (43) (12 3)
At 31 March 2015 - 3966 (3661) 305
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The total amount recogrised 1n the balance sheet 1s made up as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Present valve of funded obhgatons @131} {396 6)
Far value of plan ossets 3586 3661
S e (545 (305)
EFRBS unfunded hobility {20} (20}
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet o (565  (325)
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 201
Experence adjusiments ansing an scheme assets
Amount (Em) {16 2) (24 2) (29) 179 95) 82)
Percentage of scheme ossets 45% T% 1% 6% 4% 4%
Experence adjustments ansing an scheme hobilities
Amount {fm) (& 4) (607) (51} (57 (16 4) 36
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 2% 15% 2% 5% 6% 2%
Present volue of scheme habiities (£m) 4131 396 6 3200 3232 2127 2384
Fair value of scheme assets (£m) 3586 3661 3188 291 2408 2229
Deficit (£m} {54 5) (305) (12} {321) (319} (15 5)

The contributions paid In the year to 31 March 2016 include special contributions of £1 3m (2015 £13m)

There were no contrubutions paid Into the scheme to augment the benefits in respect of scheme members who
left the company via selective voluntary severance {2015 nil} The special contnbutions expected to be paid i1n line
with the extant schedule of contributions dunng the financial year ended 31 March 2017 amounts to £13m

Change in assumption Increase in hobilites
Discount rate 010% £77Tm
Price inflation O10% £73m
Life expectoncy 1 yaar £(9Thm

The above sensitvity analysis 1s based on 1solated changes 1n eoch assumption whilst holding all over assumption
constant ln practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and there 1s likely fo be some level of correlotion between the

rmovements in different assumpthions
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23 CAPITAL AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's business plan at 31 March 2016 shows net copital expenditure and infrostructure renewals expenditure
of £365m (2015 £332m) dunng the next financial year While only a porfion of this amaount has been formally
contracted for, the Group 1s effectively committed to the total as part of its overall capital expenditure programme
approved by its regulator

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the exemption afforded by |IAS 24 there 1s no disclosure in the consolidated financial
stotements of fransactions with entities that are part of the Glas Cymru Anghyfyngedig Group
The company has not entered into transachons with any other Group company duning the year (2015 none)

25 STATUS OF THE COMPANY

The company i1s hmited by guarantee and does not have any share copital In the event of the company being
wound up, the hobibty of the members 1s imited to £1 each

26 ELAN VALLEY TRUST FUND

In 1984 Welsh Water Authority entered into a condiional sale and purchase agreement with Severn Trent Water
Authonty for the sale of the aqueduct and associated works by which the bulk supply to Severn Trent reservoirs 1s
conveyed

The sum of £317m, representing the constderaton for the conditional sole, was invested in a trust fund

The pnncipal function of the fund was to provide an Income to Welsh Water Authority, whilst preserving the capital
value of the fund in real terms Weltsh Water Authonty's interest in this fund was vested in Dwr Cymru Cyfyngedig
under the provisions of the Water Act 1989

The ossets of the fund are not included In these financial statements As at 31 March 2016 the market value of the
trust fund was £111m (2015 £113m)

Interest recevable includes £3 5m (2015 £2 5m) in respect of distnbutions from the Elan Valley Trust Fund

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liobilities other than those arising from n ordinary course of the Group's business and on
these no material losses are anhicipated

28 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate ond viltmate holding company and controlling party 1s Glas Cymru Haldings Cyfyngedig,
o company registered 1n England and Wales on 15 December 2015 The largest and smallest group with which the
reports of the company are consohdated in ot 31 March 2016 1s that headed by Glas Cymru Anghyfyngedig
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GLOSSARY

Abstrachon The removal of water from ony source

AMP The woter industry operates on five-yearly cycles called Asset Management Plans'
AMPS5 ran frorm 2010 to 2015 and AMPS will run from 2015-2020

Anaarcbic digestion A process by which organic matenal 1s broken down by bactena ond other
micro-crgonisms to generate renewable energy

Assats These include infrastructure such as water mains and sewers, dams and reservoirs,
water and sewage treatment works, pumping stattons, compaony laboratories, depots
and workshops

AVPS Annual Varioble Pay Scheme - A performance related element of emoluments

Bacteriological Failures

The dninking water supplied to customers s sampled and onalysed against o range
of chemucal and bacterologicol parameters If o sample shows o bactenologrcal
parameter thot exceeds the it specified in the regulations, it ts deemed

a bacterological falure

Capital investment programme

A water compony's planned construchon wark to build,
replace and renew assets

Catchment An area of land through which water drains inte o body of water
(such as o river or reservolr)
c50 Cambined Sewer Overflows act os relief valves which prevent the oveidoading of sewers

which could otherwise lead to flooding of properties and sewage freatment works

Company limited by guarantee

0
A private company that does not have shareholders or share copital

CPNI Centre for the Protection of National Infrastructure

CCWater Consumer Counail for Water - see page 22

Credit rahng Credit ratings provide an assessment of the credit quality of @ company which
can affect the cost of borrowing

Customer Payment Account The Custorner Poyment Account {as defined by the Common Terms Agreement)

1s the cllocation of Customer Reserves used specificolly for rebates to customers

Customsar Reserves

Customer Reserves 1s the difference between the RCV and net debt and is therefore
o meosure of the value created by the business for custorners Some of that valve con
be used for investrnent in the business and rebotes to customers We aim to keep net
debt to be 60% of the RCV and retoined Customer Reserves as the remaining 40%

Dischorge permits Legal agreements issved by the environmental regulatar relating to the amount,
quolity ond frequency of wostewoter that con be returned to the environment

DWI1 Dnnking Water Inspectorate - see poge 22

Drinking Woter Safety Plan This 15 a proactve method of assessing nsk to drinking water quality, which better
protects public health

Drought plan Statutory plan produced by a water company that detaills the echons to be taken
to manage the supply of water in o drought

Effluent Water that flows from o sewoge treatment plant after it has been treated
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Environment Agency (EA)

An executive, non-departmental Government body that has a statutory duty to protect
and enhance the enwronment in England - see page 22

Financeability The ability of appointed woter comparres to finance their funchions through debt,
equity or retained earnings

Gearing Net debt expressed os a percentage of regulatory copital value

Glas Cymnu Glas Cymru s the generic nome used to refer to the Goup helding company
Glas Cymru Cyfungedig was formed in 2000 to own, finance, ond manoge Dvr Cyrmru
Welsh Water Durnng 2015/16 Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig was reregistered as Glos Cymru
Anghytngedig and Glas Cymru Holdings Cyfyngedig wos crected to be the holding
company for the Glas Cymru Group

Groundwater Water thot ¢an be found in the scturated zone of the sail

Group Glos Cymru and all its subsidianes

IcT Information and communications technology

Lenkage Water lost between the treatment works and the custorner's home
or business

Let’s Stop the Block Behavioural change compaign being undertaken by Welsh Water which osks
customers to help reduce the number of sewer blockages

Laag-term Vartable Pay Scheme A performonce related element of emoluments

‘Look-up' Compliance

Thus 15 where o wostewater treatment works (WWTW) fails to meet the consented
parameters set by the NRW or EA for less than 95% of the tme

MCPA

Herbicide

Mean Zanal Comphonce

Mean Zonal Cormplionce (MZC) 1s @ measure of complionce in oll the water quality
zones for 39 key chemical and bactenological paramaeters derved from the stotutory
monitoring programme of samples taken from custorners faps

Magalitres

One megalitre 1s equal to 1,000 cubic metres or one rmillion htres
A standord Olympic-size swimming pool contains 2 5 magalitres of water

Natural Resources Woles (NAW)

Welsh Government sponsored body whose purpose it I1s to ensure that the natural
resources of Wales are sustainably maintained, enhanced and used - see page 22

Non-Executve Directors Members of Glas Cymru's Board Non-Executive Directors are not responsible for the
day-fo-day running but challenge management and oversee the ruaning of the Group

Ofwat The economic regulator of the water sector In England ond Wales

Operating costs Total operating expenditure of the business, net of any operating tncome,

primarly any profits or losses on the disposal of fixed assets

Pollution Incidents

An accrdental or deliberate release of contarmmants such as ails, fuels and chemicals
that con be harmful o humon health and the environment

Private Sewer Transfer (PST) In 200, the UK Government fronsferred ownership of most of the privote sewers
in England and Wales fo the 10 woter and sewerage compares, to form port
of the public sewer network

Pumping station Used to pump water or sewerage from one place to another

Qualrty and Eavironment Committee

(QEC)

Board level Cormrruttee in Glas Cymru which addresses pertormance and operchional
risk 1ssues across the compony

RoinScape

Clas Cymru's opproach to manoging surface water and overloaded sewers
{sustanable urbon droinage systems)
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This means the change 1n o finonciol number ofter rerming the effact of inflation

Recl termns
Regulotory Coprtal Voluve The asset value of Dwr Cymry, determined by Ofwat, on which our investment returns
{or Regulatory Returns) is allowed to be made This 1s, i effect, o proxy
for the aconomic value in use of the appointed business of Dvir Cymru Cyfyngedig
Resarvoir A natural or ortificol lake where water 15 collected and stored until needed
Riging main A pumped pipeline that carnes wostewater
Scoracard A stahstical record used by Welsh Water to measure achievement or progress towards

o particular geal

Sarvice Incantive Mechanism (SIM)

This 15 an Ofwat measure designed to improve the level of custorner serice
thot water compaonies pronde

Service reservorr

Thas 15 a tank containing drinking water that is usually sited within or near
to o water distnbution system

Serviceabilrty The copobility of o system of assets to delver an expected level of service
to consumers and fo the environment now and inta the future

Sewer An underground pipe thot takes household and non-household wastewater away from
properhes for treatment and disposal

Sawer flooding QOccurs when wastewater escapes from sewer pipes through o manhcle cover

ar a dran, or by backing up through tollets

Safety Takes Every Person (STEF)

Behavioural safety training which emphasises that each indmdual has responsibility
for Health and Safety issues

5851 Special Site of Scientfic Interest

Storm tank A tank into which, in wet weather, stormwater and wastewater is stored untl the
wostewater treatrment works con treat ot

Supply/demand bolance The balance of the volume of water available

Surface water Run-off from rainwater that falls ontoe customners’ properties (such as roofs,
paths and driveways)

Surfoace water droinoge The removal of rainwoter, snow or melted ice from extenor oreas of a property

{such os roofs and driveways) often to a surfoce water sewer ar combined sewer

Sustainable Urbon Drainage (SUDS)

A sustainable drainage system 1s designed ta reduce the potenhiol impact of new
ond existing developments with respect to surface woter drainage dischorges

Totex The total sum of capital expenditure ond operational expenditure

Teunk main A man through which water s fed mnto o woter distnbution system
A trunk main will often run from o woter treatment works to a serace reservorr

Wastowater Waste matter from houwsehold or non-household properties that 1s camed away
from properhes in sewers or drains

Wastewater traatment works Wastewater freatment works ore designed to remove biological or chemical
waste products from water belore 1t 1S returned to water sources

Woater main A large pipe that carnes treated water to households

Woter Resource Management Plon

This outlines how o water company will maintoin o sustainable balance between water
supplies and demand over the next 25 years

Water treatment works

Water treatment plants produce dnnking water for public consumption
or industrial water for manufactuning or other business operations
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MEASURES OF SUCCESS: DEFINITIONS

Ala

Safety of Bnnking Water
(% complionce)

Provide safe drinking woter that meets the Dnnking Water Inspectorate's
standards

The percentage of the sample tests that are compliant with the
standards We toke over 250,000 samples tests per year at our water
treatment works, service reservoirs and at customer taps

Alb

Safety of Drinking Water
{Mean zonal compliance)

Mean Zonal compliance 1s published annually in the Drinking Water
Inspectorate (EWI) report The MZC covers 39 different parometers such
as Iron, Lead and Alumintum, which are tested to estabhsh the quality

of water as received by customers MZC 1s calculated as the average

of the compliance levels for each parameter in each of our 87 water
quality zones, which range n size from 27 populction to almost 100,000
population (The maximum allowable population s any one water quality
zone 15 100,000 allowoble within the DWI regulations)

Customer acceptobility

The number of contacts receved from customers In the year regarding
the appearance, taste or odour of drinking water, expressed as a rate per
1,000 customers

A3

Reliability of Supply

The overage number of minutes that custorners are without water within
our supply area (includes both planned and unplanned interruptions)

Bl

Abstraction for water for use

The percentage compliance with our abstraction licences, as 1ssued
by Regulators

B2

Treating wostewater

For each of our wastewater treatment works there 1s a perrmit which
regulates the quality of wastewater the compony s allowed to discharge
into nvers and coastal waters, which is regulated by the NRW

The measure s the % compliance against the discharge perrmits

B3a

Prevenhing pollutions
(cat 1,28.3)

Reduce the number of pollution incidents (caused by blockages
or collopsed sewers)

Pollution incidents are categonsed as cotegory 1, 2 or 3 incident and
reported by Naturol Resources Wales and the Environment Agency

Category 1 - the most severe and hove a mojor or serous impact
on the environment, people or propetty

Category 2 - sigrificant impaoct or effect on the envircnment, peaple
or property

Category 3 - minor or minimal impact on the environment, people
or property

B3b

Prevenhng polluthons
{cat 3 only)

As above but only category 3 pollution incidents {minor or minimal
impact on the environment, people or property)
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Responding to cimate change

Reduce the amount of rainwater entering our sewers

The measure 1s the volume of surface water removed from the system,
expressed os the number of equivalent properties

cz2 Carbon footprnint To generate more renewable energy and therefore to offset our carbon
emissions and the cost of imported energy (GWh hours per year)

D1 SIM Service incentive mechanism (SIM} 15 a0 measure introduced by the
Regulator Ofwat to moaitor and report customer service information
acrass oll water & wostewater companies as a comparative measure

D2 At Risk Customer Service The number of customers who are an our register of "ot nsk” They are
deemed to be “at nsk” because therr service has repeactedly fallen short
in one of the following five areas discolouration of water, interruptions to
supply, low pressure, odour from wastewoter assets and sewer flooding

D3 Properties flooded in the year The number of properties suffenng internal sewer flooding per year

D4a  Business Customer Sahsfaction Business customer sotisfacticn as measured by either satisfied or very

% satisfied sotisfied in the six monthly survey undertaken
D4b  MNon Household Customer Business customer satisfaction as measured by the average customer
Sathsfacton score out of a total of 5 then converted to a percentage

D5 Earntng the Trust of Customers Customer trust as meosured in an annual survey we undertake

El Affordable Bills The company will conhnue to make bills more affordaoble by maintaiming
faling bills in real terms, beating inflation by around 1% o year

E2 Help for Disadvantaged Help more customers who genuinely struggle to pay their bills

customers by providing assistance through a range of scciol tanffs ond our
Customer Assistance Fund

F1 Asset Serviceabilty Maintain our assets Serviceabihity includes o basket of sub-measures
used by Ofwat te moritor the effectiveness of our asset management
and the maintenance of our assets

F2 Leakage Reduce our leckage levels — megalitres per day {Ml/d)

F3 Asset Resilience Improve the resillence score of our most strategic assets

Improve the percentage of strategic assets that are resilent against
a set of cntena Strategic assets are those where failure would hove
a majer impact on service to customers or on the environment
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